








BUSINESS HGHLIGHTS

2011 RESULTS

Grew revenue 5% $9 Je arYet pt to de ad crg91 or ut ala rrr

Achieved 7% crease in adjusted operating income .4 tv ro ur no

cx or onarag rId.sr plr

Improved the adjusted operating margin by 40bps to 393%

Increased diluted EPS as adjusted by 8%

Generated $26 billion in adjusted operating cash flow to tr da 2b or or .2

esef ar rut rrJ

Maintained an unwavering focus on investment performance of ac AUM tpr rr ba ri

Matcr troket era eov ttfa ca

Launched Investing for New World initiative in early 2012 to build the BlackRock brand It or-t at Iv

rb dgro rartrdttetsop rt tTct Mtr do

Awarded $673 billion in net new business in long-term investments by clients

ra UI at end tern91 v.aA

Managed $2516 trillion in AUM for institutionalcLients 0oar ott Ut ror on rur opabt at nveo

tlra er ret to

Added net new business of $31.2 billion defined contribution br Mt ar

If aa nvetr art .r yr vder odd

Managed $4033 billion of AUM for retail and high net worth investors tf car uad at tr If ad dMtea

far of edour Yet fare rg tetr rtutaIfjnafo

Added $70.1 biltton of net inflows in passive strategies nCf trw dorr dcx o.g oat

aded oJ cts 99 atos vat nv otwen tIlt rm

Remained the worlds top ETP manageras iShares gtned $rJ on 1W MI as If yar Al 91 $r0 ar

91 rr oat pro fter tve ar aM qu duct Me tr

Generated record revenues of $510 million in BlackRock Solutions as rn rat 91 a.ro We be ugf

Ta ontaen dadvan yea

Produced 23% organic growth in multi-asset enl tt yeat If 5.2 ow sa al attn 1W ti

getd aIf at naY ft deard ftdut ary martaara ass gr nan

Continued growth in alternatives capabilities at dtr tfe ar 4. at AJM ard bust plaforn s/f edg Jr

funds afford ra eat to prtvatr equty renrv of pr war





MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS
Wa t202

was wa ppor aye

vector Oh Vt re ci ott S.c launcc

dstr ip raer pa reuoretrgtt

pc rr arkato rca po cc ca

cc ia 0pr asas r0 gad rrntl AFaL

Pp irgard up Aa StFert od ot ng

arttqrakearduraa pa Jr EJro7ofie

and or reF Ioht VVO gi are

TodeF
r.g

Ph rd ard BFaZ

ryrptr ar cutFecrvcFyt

cr gavc say ta ty ar ng otP ty

nthsc0 cFOCJ hoyeard yr loo

as 1W sos oty Fod err foe rst

ardatort tsFrr aecjV to rer Wt FVCO

rrert ordrvereyute Vpaaovoai 0W

actveano rau ua tjros.T eSPiu

erdodtcoyeai ar extyw er eta ted

outpe rn-F or ar rrnrg Tarko equiy

Ice ag rd ate avor

ud F5 Ca yr Fl rip aoreey

oFdtt satr

Bta Po Pr av pat teao wg rg

rca ns but rae Suet re5 rd

tgrrvt War icr car enussbyhJVadieed

operat rrrr bt urd Aed an- rgo per

oC re as ad uatd add ienseo

urad urted pew Fgn-a 097 der nstwt

our pc tr er ac

went te orrpa Ao te ooera rig cc

fowFoaoto$26b nV uppoitnpa8 FCS

flour erd per totaL we etuF rod

$u bF to sbaie Is ougt vidard ard

otareFcpurchaocc arIa rtnuFnotorerve

rra gtut cur Pci

nap rico oFlO raFr 07 ur ire lcF 356

over epa di inVat ra

he qu d.ta uF at rW

rCo vo ber VICe tcd

oF lys cc tu doFf rg uoo

rpu to odite errar layntod

Brrvo An-eF IV rca 49 ran ci urp oW

cdt oarjt r0

hicvd pntF arti ew ar

lood ho SP idex pi Plo

tt teat tt ya dcun-r

ttts ewa act

201 VV moleted

rtogr at and ade OV lent dcc rr It

FCP 0Foertat ct oh
peratFi V1

wt web VCVS or

vertrrc ap rFerao ins du tWa oF

artonto FIC FL gra HdkR

dd eec ta

Bind ap aPr Ic cta roe rots cv

IFP cit sin arur ert orr ant

stru tuiep tu Itat an arer to

rotuF Fr in



iaasalV at

tars st up rafta rnvestr

ft te .5 aS ía /5 IrA

rrayr kssad kdt a5ad

ía arrar Vt

dL
ar veapry

ía ía tat rp La

ra cr vr

jar Tc IL ía

ft rar c.a ía

Sr tc tra VS

ar asp 0t aíí iS

tLra

rasir daVr ira

rapft

as aida sp.víar ia-ca im

ía rta ur rip ra

r5t tV

raa a1 er5e

r5 yItihtaL
pa mite cv ci

vs hap an at

Sr as ía rca Sc

Va ía as pp ar

La arga La ía ev
icr atrlt Ii

die arc is ad vs

dcv vim Li

ata tat ía mica ft

ap ía ave Svv Va

PR tam is

as cf timb rt ar ta ad

ii at vo Pu ha ja arab

ia Sfj Ttim 15

ra aaa lara ía ma ía

tL Ta apva spar

Ba pSI ía

aa pam alp cc ía

Vuaapla aas

IL agtraakt ía

55p Sy .5 IVaS ci ía as

ía Ia

ía app at ass

ía Lp

avg ma ftrvtsa cv

aaam at ft star ad ci La

fta an ap ad at ta La

ara emata mt entvthíaae a5

area hr ads aa íavt ha di raer

is deca be dim taaa as tL

fLea Tar Pat 55 pa drty
LL ci

admada íaetaa age 55

as at asses era ca ag pp rt ec La

lea grr
afteat ra\ STe at íat Cr

sa dwe 5av im ci seatíaaat

aIpL bar ark abva ate ía

beta at ía mar tamking carat Tn sw always

ry
kaim

Stacy

pal

aAaA as

La Lr ik

vuar ajg

ft hi

Ut ci

5ar

tn ar

arts sam aym ik Sta ds

npda if ía md ar

1a ryada

aLpd war It

15 sard dl aJCSí

at jF

nat rat ae if

aL ía iVaCUV

ía ftC

ems ftc

near



omoat pr app

crop ri vrs rr rt pnco rp ned tg

ot rotr at ro nag roe atab and jr

rc rcrad/ ddrr oroat avetor okr

pratforrnforprondF nraetrort Ut roemp

Pm nr iv

Active ProductsA ro vieg

Porn or

entr 1OF ur b0a 1v earmd LA or

rev us rn avargPAF VCr$.2t01

aged cfrr e.Wr mt ar

Cu rtf CF pO roar err er

aoer1evrdtterorraF t.S pmtng

ttcr aerratmr nec Ve r-ou ago rrrra

al Fr rr ret rt ci tavr

Fm Ia

ttv Pm
YF Jo ma

rat Cr ra

ki lam Jp CIF

010 X0iF 0r ro tttr atrn

iF fe

icF to ard

-u or pcI rn ad

r0
mIt te rrr

rev ro odr rra

ityBa La or

apr0 FTP H0b turd rt coo OF

rv pot tar op Fat OpF

ed itu

Ca ar rgt
td rat

otfr var rca Fe

CCUC0I rr apor

rl Uut Jv

ad Ip Ft ix

AlternativesA rre vi am

md atli

ala at
ar Fir

er tvrr roC

od CJFP

dl 10 cam arc

at rcudc rpc tat Fig

mop ur

urd turd

utr as ado

orct rof ai

a\ FU CF

OFt SrOFCd ma yes

edt La

tper FO 0r

FEar trnF .0

FEC duo rs
arc

MutttAssetClassSolutrons leg OaF

0t dF tr

ry tr 00 try Uarrar to iF Fp Ct



Li 0rjr ar

tar no

Aa hr

tra at ra

ntajr ad pa ro

air civ

tarra pa for

aa da

rrU aft rr .1 ar

nr aaif t/
oaf

ott ía .aactfaa

aar B0 ac ft ìa at

oh ala

cifay ía tata aft

aa La rat $32/

dr.aa

ft aa ar rta

Passive Products aa La

aa tr art tat

rd/a ETh aft rat

ía ft r.r daaaayt/c/aa ax

ry akaa ai aa

aa if jaa to arc

hr a0a rn td
ar hal aa

h- ad apc ra of ft
faaif

ifif

ra auld rhO

op aba at arr

ía apa /ayoa arr.rr

ft liaa ht/

aaob ara aif

atad baitd yg arft aahab..dir

atar aa ph ftd va rk

tay ft /yla ha ataira

a/ if
.tc.t apa

tdrab ca

ya rar aa rdajaraaa dE Pa

y/a rgr0t Ba pdar a/ad ta

rotatr aaa at if advaaa ardrdvaaa

Pat rrt as

daifaarl ol lo da/partf claw

çftat ga aoaI fyr/r tao or

ad yr arsgarrrr ar at ato0 dr

oartafts gd/p rrps as arcsrard

rt iat rib rr

if tat ap aa ar

a/ Pr raaaada atyr ra

aaía rtrcla/ qa at par

Pa.aro a0d /rr hr

rata ar pr if
ft Is pa

aard hrr ía $a

ab0dr .a ra

/a ha adr.aaap a.oaa if

Jr ar ardifrrt

app paraaa aa
ad Ia ap Pr aa

if ía pr ar Ba ha ad

It rt tra ao if

ara

pat pAhP/ f$a rraa pa tsa

.ab .a raaaa /a cc

Riak Management Advisory Services arc

auay ard daaif rr

far pa0 ro adaldr.1

ath at ar thai if ar

t.ifaI aryaa r.a- ía

war ía asra

aaa rt aararLaarwab radbt

ad ra/ifa darififaa oat Br

at
ç.r apir aIif ar

ta gtb 0a

if raa

art rar aata oaf yaap to

oattsatarta if POt Pa

apta 7ad a/a In rt at aal

tt aaaaa La aa Iarrifr

anaa pr aifrpMadl ...o

aarataa aft rr ad ha rapa

ab/taat tbsNsaa ra dardA oa lo aaaa

at pa .3 taxpayr.r

ara pa rar

daa vabstrapo arc an bta

oat arataa rat ha

di tb apr aaal
Ba a0 aa ta

rda2 2$



in itacrta tas
dro st ri10g lo as

Li Joist ap rracd rar an

or aaaa

tag Iotawo
pi

r1 appa as La

rat sgr ar pa

tilt lasro t0
ds yMarks naar

an tt ar as rI dr
lao adt aa ac0ay

as tora L0a Mt as
xr lo stars toato

it0 La at at caP

rca

oaf at tad

at ar ri

of ar las

Mat or Li

tat rarcsttatadabatapaa

tat rst atrstira

cc ra nA it

cA osa ass otr Ma

aot rtrrjt is rat Id DA ii

t\ a0torFsaM1agst cii AM
stir arts rdr tat ipt ra

sat raE at ar as

ss to as tEa raa ctoa mf

ar 5\S rsadap sE

M511 ttsPcotds ta car

/rtipar as sonar Wa rr sot an dads tat

ti If rstrgaasa an

aot at at tags

acpp cc pt

tatatt tnatrstd it

na aP
Ma taatto st

otp paoi tata pr

ap pp ut tt
yr oar/ to or

-1tad tpl ./s r55

av root at

sac Mc Ia5

taar rn tt
ap t1 pa Ji

undo tra Is

to pittor tot

tt pa dtt Pa
dos sat st sos It

ta0 ci Pa

ma sP5 5m5 0r0

cna sa

do cc0 s0socat arp to spIn arprr

it ii

Sr attda

0r od rat pat

is Id oat

is

It /li5 idO

ar at vol

55 rac tt tt con

Not rd acIng. ci

It

tt sa

tm



dvmc ía

0teHa

no _r or

od rei

Cr

to It

yx krtr

tart ce

rutr er 1O1r
ba tat rane or ad

en en tr

tt oPk

te ed eM teen tt

Pot or be tese at el and
pp or

by Pr gprB

to Ma ta onelt

an meet ant rd

rt ar Pt at as .1 ccc rk at

waie ngc vet or

ot yea atootorH 3t1woaskd or

tatrcvaravettcnerp

to 0ctta odor t0te

.ot tPve poplar oaaj edtde

BackRooktam yt nop i0eor nc od rg eadors

ke Mark Hornhe an oar or Asra Hod

be d0 Pt tar

ar nob torHatttl

cdt n.e at kP

no do ke no rno pp od no

no at

npy Pr wrr

to kraac

Jr Cr to noM no

ad bat nnM tt

ha Hr

eon

.aarcn et Ftc

norrnanadCtreHxc cc

rt

pa tt ed
nov tr

no or

ra pea trUe

no tH

ad ttnr

trerd raPt

MM
noPt

/- da an

do

trr or

pP nra

tt

Ire

Pit

tr

eprf

nit detect

Mt rre

no odnrtla

an Pt art no 01 pp JO no

on tr rd

MIPU at



OUR BUSINESS

GLOBAL CLIENTELE
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

Blackkock Inc BlackRockortheCompafly iatheworlds

largest publicly traded investment msnagementfirm Aa of

December 31 2D11 the Company managed $3513 trillion of

aaaeta under management AUMon behalf of institutional

and individual investors worldwide The Company providea

wide array of pasaively and actively managed producta

including varioua equitieafixed income multi-aaaet class

alternative nveatment and caah management producfa

BlackRock offera clients diveraified acceaa to global marketa

through aeparate accounta collective investment truata

open-end and cloaed-end mutualfunda exchange traded

producta hedge funda and funda of funda In addition

Blockpock Solutiona provides market riak management

financial marketa adviaory and enterpriae inveatment ayatem

aervicea to broad baae of clienta Financial marketa adviaory

aervicea include valuation of illiquid aecuritiea diapoaitiona

and workout aaaignmenta including long-term portfolio liqui

dation aaaignmenta riak management and atrategic planning

and execution

Aa of December31 2D11equity ownerahip of BlackRock wee

as follows

Financial Highlights

idol applicable
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Explanation of Use of Non-GAAP FinanciaL Measures

teepelalises lot all pateS ate dateS lies IS Gsspaeps censslidaled slaleesnls ol incees as Isllsms

Variance

PNC

Barclays

Other

Voting

common stock Capital stock1

24.0% 21.0%

2.2% 19.7%

73.8% 59.3%

100.0% 100.0%

lii
Incisdes outstanding common and sen-soheg prsierred stock

yearendedoecember3l 2011 vs.201D 2OlDvs.2009

DotoromountsinmillionsexceptperohorodOtO 2011 2010 2009 Amoust Amount

GAAP basis

Total revenue $9081 $8.61 $4700 $469 5% $3912 83%

Totalexpenses $5832 $5614 $3422 $218 4% $2192 64%

Operatingincome $3249 $2998 $1278 $251 8% $1720 135%

Operating margin 35.8% 34.9% 27.2% 1.0% 3% 7.6% 28%

Non-operating income expensel

less net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests $116 $36 $261 $1521 $54

Net income attributable to SlackPock Inc $2337 $2063 $675 $274 13% $1.1 88 136%

Diluted earnings per common share $12.37 $10.55 $6.11 $1.62 17% $4.44 73%

Effective tax rate 25.4% 32.0% 30.0% 6.6% 21% 2.0% 7%

As adjusted

Operatingincomei $3392 $3167 $1570 $225 7% $1597 102%

Operatingrnargin
39.7% 39.3% 36.2% 0.4% 1% 1.1% 3%

Non-operating income espense

less net income loss attributable

to non-controlling interests1 $113 $25 $46 $136 $71

Net income attributable

to BlackPock Inc.w $2239 $2139 $1021 $100 5% $1118 110%

Diluted earnings per common share1 iei $11.85 $10.94 $7.13 $0.91 6% $3.61 53%

Effective tax rate 31.7% 33.0% 33.0% 1.3% 4%
Other

Assets under management end of period $351 2681 $3560968 $3346256 $48267 1% $214712 6%

Diluted weighted-average common

shares outstandingic 187116410 192692047 139481449 5575637 3% 53210598 38%

Shares outstanding end of period 178309109 191191553 88806296 28824441 7% 2385257 1%

Book value per share $140.07 $1 36.09 $1 28.86 $3.98 3% $7.23 6%

Cash dividends declared

and paid per share $5.50 $4.00 $3.12 $1.50 38% $0.88 28%

tsiai Biscksock stsckheiders waite eecisdieg snpmpeaied retaised esreisge disided by tetsi csrnmee sod preferred shares estetasdieg at December si slice rsspschse pear eed

hiackeock repents its hesecisi resuiie is accardasce with accaseheg priecipies geeersiy accepted is the Pissed states lCAAPl hewesen meesgemeni beheses that essissheg the temparrys

oegeirg operating mecCa was be enhaecsd if nesesters base sddiirieesi nee-tAAP basis hosecisi msaeame Msesgemeei msiems ese-tAAP hesecisi mesesms to assess oegsiee epemtiess sad

for the resonso described beissi casaiders them sobs effectise isdirsiess mr bsiii msasgemesi and issesiars at bisckRocks hnsscisi periawsece seer time Blsckhacbs msssgemesi does set

sdsocsie lust issesiere ceesider sash ese-PAAP hesecisi meseeme is isolation tram or sea substitute far fiesecisi isiermainee pmpsred in accerdasce with GASP

al Operating incnme an ndjnnted and npnrnting margin an ndjnnted

Operatieg income so sdissied egesie eperaheg income teAr basis escisdieg certain items msesgemeei deems eee-eecsrrieg en transactions thai sitimateip muiui set impact Biscksecke book

ssise so indicated is the isbie beism tpershng isceme ssed far apessbng margin mesasremeni egasis epensuing isceme as ediseted encisdisg the irnpsci em cieeed-esd feed isanch costs and

cammiseiens Dpersiieg margie as edissied egesia operating incame seed far spersuing margie measurement disided by resanee aced far apensheg margie mesasremeat as indrcsied is
the

esbie beiam



Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in milliona
2011 201 2DD9

Dperating income GAAP basis $3249 $2998 $1278

Non-GAAP expense adjustments

801 transaction/integration costs

Employee compenaation and benefita 25 ED

General and adminiatration
65 123

Total 801 transaction/integration costa
90 183

U.K leaae exit costa 63

Restructuring charges 32 22

PNC LliPfunding obligation
44 58 59

Merritt Lynch compensation contribution 10 10

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciationl on deferred compensation plans 13 11 18

Operating incomeasadjusted
3392 3167 1570

Closed-end fund launch coats 26 15

Closed-end fund launch commissions

Operating income used for operating margin measurement $3421 $3184 $1573

Revenue GA4P basis $9081 $8612 $4700

Non-GMP adjustments

Distribution and servicing costs 386 l4D8l 14771

Amortization of deferred sales commissions 81 1021 11 DC

Revenue used for operating margin measurement $8614 $8.1 D2 $4.1 23

OperatingmarginGAAPbasis
35.8% 34.8% 27.2%

Operatingmarginasadjusted
39.7% 39.3% 38.2%

Management bnhannn npeeting incnrnn an adianned and nnaiatinn macin an adiunted ai ettachna indinatatn at Biackflackn financini nnntnrmancn nnni time and thanetom ninnide anatni

dincinoam In vinnntatn

Operating inanme as adlnstexl

Ott tanoactinn and intagratina cnntn cnnnintad nancitalia at cnetnnnnatiaa antenna legal lean maikating and piamntinnnl nccnnancY and cannalting eaynannn incutnad
in caninactina with the OGI

acqainitian fine Oatclayn naatnactaaig chargan racntdad in 201 and 2009 cnnnintad at cnmnannatinn canto and ntatanaianai teen tantnnctnting chnrynn in 2009 nina inciadad accnpancy cantn

bK inane exit cantn enenent cnatn to enit iwo iacatinnn vi London in the thud qaarten 2011

the minion at caiata000tiaa antenna aaanciatad mith certain iang-term incantian yiaan lLTitl that han bean an mci ha landed thnnagh dintabatinna to tatticitanta at ahatea at Biackkack atack

hold by tNt and Mental Lynch caah cnmyenaatian caattibatian yattian at which han beau receinad han heart excluded bacanne ttieae chargea attimateiy do ani ieyact Oiacktackn book ealne

the antenna elated to tie Martili Lynch canh cainynanatian cantabatian caaaad at the anti oh nba third gaartan 2bt

tainyannatian antenna annaciatad with ayyneciatiaa Idanteciation no inanatmanta inlated to cantaia Olacktack datarrad camyannatina dana han bean eachidnd an ratatan an innantmeatn oat aaida

tat thena ylana which nabatantially afloat thin aayaaaa am atantad in nan-atatatirrid incama aetannal

Managamant baiieaaa nyaretiag income aaciaaina at thaaa coata in nnatai inannatn itt analnetvtg biackhackn apaintummig nertarmanna and umaiyn enhance tha camtarahdita at thin iritannatian tam

the rntattaug teanda trenentad

Operating margin as adjasted

Oteeting income aned tar mnaantvig ayeating margin no edianted ia agaal In ntnratiag income en adinatad aeciadvig tha iintact at ciaaed-ead toad mooch coata and cainmmnai000

Management behenea the aecinaina at nach canto and cammianinna in anatal tecanne thean canto can tiactaata canaideebly nod nenennea annaciated with Inn exteaditam at thene canta call not

tnty imyact the tnmtanyn manila antil tature yenada

Oyenating margin an adiantad ellawn the tainlmany to cnotarn yettntmancn tins tenad In tnnriad by adianting tan itama that may ant nacar tenet intmqaeatly am amna linac an economic afloat in

non-atematimmig inucama tnnmaiea at anch adiaatmaentn inclade neatmctanng charges 901 tnaanactian and integretian canto bK tenon nail canto cloned-end fund laaitch canto cammiaai000 taid

in certain amydayaen on camtmnnaatinn and tinctantmnna in camnamannetian netenae boned an mamk-ta-iaarknt manaiaenta in inneatmanta bald In toad contain camtennalian tlana Thn tommnany elan

ones atemnting macin en adanted to monitor cnntaeta tertnnmnnce end attictenca end an benchmark to camateme ito taitaimance mith atiem caintalien Management noen bath ttie OAAP

end ann-eden financial meanama in enameling the tinancial tentarmance at bieckaack the aan-tAAt measame by itaalt may tone tmilati000 becanan it dana ant inclada allot the Oamynanyn

mnennen end eatennea

Aenenan aned tar ateretiag mengia an ediasted eacladea diatnibatian and nanaicina canha paid to nalated tanmlien and oIlier third tamtien Management behmenan the eaclaaian of aach canto in asetal

bacanne it cneataa caaaialency in tue tnaetment tan contain coatnecta tar nimilen nennicen which doe lathe terms at the cantrecta are accanatad tar nader thAt one net hania within inneatmant

adelanmy adminiatmalian teen end ancanitian leading malone Amnartiaatiaa at deferred nolan camminainas in eacladad Inns macnan aned tar nyameting margin meeanmmaal as admasted beceaae

anch coats anar time attant dintabalina tee canaan eamad by the tamtaay blackhack eachiden tmia reannan ased tar atameltag margin an ediasted ttme canto elated
ha

each at thiene itema en

many tar aach attnattmng nenenana

IN Nsx-eperating iscemn espensn less ant incame lass altribatable ts ana-cealnahliag inlerests as adiastad

Nan-nynnatimmig iacame antennal lena net income iaaa attnibatable In nan-canlratliag laternata Ntll en adiaatad eaaaia naa-aynmatiag income enyenae GAAP beam lean ant iticame laas

annuibutabia to 5th OAAP beam edianlad tar carayennatian antenna esanciatad with lettecieliall dnymcietian an inanatmanta elated to certain Olackaack datemed cainyenaatiaa dean the

casna000tina antenna attant in
acardad hum ayemeting immmcamn thin camnensetman enyanan ban bean iacladed hi ann-apnmating income Inanensel lens ant income lanai eltnibateble to aOl en

adantad to attoel melanIn an inaaatmnntn set enide tar these ylana mahichi era reyanted in nan-aynratummmg income external GAAP beam
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Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Non-operating income expense GAAP basis $114 $23 $6
Less Net income toss attributable to NCI 13 22

Non-operating income expenseY 116 36 28
Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 18
Non-operating income expense less net income toss

attributable to NC as adjusted $113 $25 $46

Net of net incsme ions attribotabie to noo-cnstroiling interests

Maoageinent belienes 000-opetoting income expense less net income loss attributable to NCI as adlusted provides Comparability of this information smong reporting periodo aiid is an

effective measure ton rnoiewinq BiackNocks non-operating contribution to its resslto As compensation expense associated with appreciation depreciation on innestments related to certain

deterred csmp0055tisn plans which is inclsded is operating income substantially stfseto tile gain loss no the irrioestinents set aside for these plans management believes non-operating

income expense less net Income loss attributable tn Nd as adjusted provides usetul rnleasune tsr both maoagement and investors ot BisckRocks non-spersteig results that impact

hook value

Net income attributable to BlackRnck Inc as adjusted

Management believes net iscurne attributable tn Blackqsck Inc as adjusted and diluted eurrsngs per csmmoni ohare as adjusted are useful measures of Blacktocko profitability asd financial

performance Net income attributable to Blackhnck Inc as adusted equals net income attributable to BluckRsck Inc SAAb banis adjusted for significant nun-recurring items clrargeo that

ultimately will not impact BlackRocks honk salue sr certain tan items that dn not impact cash flnw

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions except per shore doto 2011 2010 2009

Net income attributable to Blackpock Inc GAAP basis $2337 $2063 $875

Non-GAAP adjustments net of taxf

BG transaction/integration costs 59 129

U.K lease exit costs 43

Restructuring charges 22 14

PNC LTlPfunding obligation 30 40 41

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution

Income tax law changes/election 198 30 45
Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted $2239 $2139 $1021

Allocation of net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted

Common shares11 $2218 $2109 $995

Participating restricted stock units 21 30 26

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted $2239 $2139 $1021

Diluted weighted-average common shares outstandingly 187116410 92692047 39481449

Diluted earnings per common share GAAP basisa $12.37 $10.55 $6.11

Diluted earnings per common share as adjusted5 $11.85 $10.94 $7.13

Sen note Operating income as adjusted and nperating margin as adlusted for information on BOi trarrssction/integration cysts 5K base exit costs PNC Lt1P fonding sbhgation Merrill Lynch

compensation contribstion arid nestrocturing charges

Poring the years ended Pecember 31 2011 20t5 and 2009 adjustments primarily related tn state tax election arid certain enacted U.K Japan U.S state and local tan legislation which

resulted in the re-measurement of certain deferred incnme toe liabilities primarily related to acquired indefinite-Used intangible assets Tire resnnitxrg increase or decrease in income tacos has been

eacluded from set incsme attributable Blackltnck Inc as adiuvted as thene items will riot have cash tInny impact and to ensure csmparabnlity for periods presented

dl Fnr the years ended Pecember 31 20t 2010 arid 2009 rrsn5AAP adiustrnentn worn fan nffectnd at 31.8% 33% and 30% respectively winch reflects tire Inlended rote applicable to tire

adjustments

Ic Nnn.notirmg panticipeting preferred shares are cnrnsidnned to bn common ntock equivalents fur
psrposes

of determining fiasic and diluted earningn per share calculations Certeirm unvested rnstnicted

stock units are not included in this number as they are deemed participating securities in accnndascn with required provisions of Accounting Standards Codification 2db-lIt EuosngsperShnare For

the years endud Secnrnbor 31 2011 2018 and 2309 average nntstunding participatiiiiy securities were .8 million 2.0 million and 3.8 million respectively

BlacloRock has portfolio managers located around the

world including in the United States the United Kingdom

the Netherlands Japan Hong Kong Singapore Australia

and Germany The Company provides wide array of prod

ucts including passively and actively managed equities

fixed income multi-asset class cash management and

alternatives BLackRock offers clients diversified access

to global markets through separate accounts collective

investment trusts open-end and closed-end mutual funds

exchange traded products hedge funds and funds of funds

BlackRock provides global advisory services for private

investment funds and retail products The Companys non-

U.S investment funds are based in number of domiciles

and cover range of asset classes including equities fixed

income cash management and alternatives

leader in exchange traded products for institutional retail

and high net worth investors There are 504 jShares products

globally across equities fixed income and commodities

which trade like common stocks on 20 exchanges worldwide

iShores AUM totaled $593.4 billion at December31 2D11.The

BlackRock Global Funds the Companys primary retail fund

group offered outside the United States are authorized for

distribution in 35 jurisdictions worldwide Additional fund

offerings include structured products real estate funds

hedge funds hedge funds of funds private equity funds and

funds offunds managed futures funds and exchange funds

These products are sold to both U.S and non-U.S high net

worth retail and institutional investors in wide variety of

active and passive strategies covering both equity and fixed

income assets

In the United States retail offerings include various open-end BlackRocks client base consists offinancial institutions

and closed-end funds including iShares the global product and other corporate clients pension plans charities official
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institutions such as central banks sovereign wealth funds

supranational authorities and other government entities high

net worth individuals and retail investors around the world

BlackRock maintains significant sales and marketing pres

ence both inside and outside the United States that is focused

on establishing and maintaining retail and institutional invest

ment management relationships by marketing its services to

investors directly and through financial professionals pension

consultants and establishingthird-party distribution relation

ships BlackRock also distributes its products and services

through Merrill Lynch under global distribution agreement

in effect until January 2014 After such term the agreement

will renew for one automatic three-year extension if certain

conditions are met

BlackRock derives substantial portion of its revenue from

investment advisory and administration fees which are rec

ognized as the services are performed Such fees are primarily

based on pre-determined percentages of the market value of

AUM or percentages of committed capital during investment

periods of certain alternative products and are effected by

changes in AUM including market appreciation or deprecia

tion foreign exchange translation and net subscriptions or

redemptions Net subscriptions or redemptions represent

the sum of new client assets additional fundings from exist

ing clients including dividend reinvestment withdrawals of

assets from and termination of client accounts and distribu

tions to investors representing return of capital and return on

investments to investors Market appreciation or depreciation

includes current income earned on and changes in the fair

value of securities held in client accounts Foreign exchange

translation reflects the impact of converting non-U.S dollar-

denominated AUM into U.S dollars for reporting purposes

BLackRock also earns revenue by Lending securities on behalf

of chents primarilyto brokerage institutions The securities

loaned are secured by collateral in the form of cash or securities

with minimums generally rangingfrom approximately 102%

to 112% of the value of the Loaned securities The revenue

earned is shared between BlackRock and the funds or other

third-party accounts managed by the Companyfrom which

the securities are borrowed

Investment advisory agreements for certain separate accounts

and investmentfunds provide for performance fees based

upon relative and/or absolute investment performance in

addition to base fees based on AUM Investment advisory

performance fees generally are earned after given period of

time and when investment performance exceeds contractual

threshold As such the timing of recognition of performance

fees may increase the volatility of BlackRocks revenue and

earnings Historically the magnitude of performance fees

in the third and fourth quarters generally exceeds the first

two calendar quarters in year due to the greater number of

products with performance measurement periods that end on

either September30 or December31

BlackRock provides variety
of risk management invest

ment analytic and investment system and advisory services

to financial institutions pension funds asset managers

foundatjons consultants mutual fund sponsors real estate

investment trusts and government agencies These services

are provided under the brand name BlackRock Solutions and

include wide array of risk management services valuation

services related to iLliquid securities disposition and workout

assignments including long-term portfoLio hquidation assign

ments strategic planning and execution and enterprise

investment system outsourcing to clients Approximately

$10 trillion of positions are processed on the Companys

Aladdin operating platform which serves as the investment/

risk solutions system for BLackRock and other institutional

investors Fees earned for Black/Rock Solutions and advisory

services are determined using some or all of the following

methods fixed fees ii percentages of various attributes

ofadvisoryAUM orvaLueof positions on theAladdin platform

and iii performance fees if contractual thresholds are met

BlackRock builds upon its leadership position to meet the

growing need for investment and risk management solutions

Through its scale and diversity of products it is able to provide

its clients with customized solutions including fiduciary
out-

sourcing for liability-driven investments and overlay strategies

for pension plan sponsors balance sheet management and

related services for insurance companies and target date and

target return funds as well as asset allocation portfolios for

retail investors BlackRock is also able to service these clients

via itsALaddin platform to provide risk management and other

outsourcing services for institutional investors and custom

and tailored solutions to address complex risk exposures

The Company earns fees for transjtjon management services

comprised of commissions from acting as an introducing

broker-dealer in buying and selling securities on behalf of its

customers Commissions related to transition management

services are recorded on trade-date basis as securities

transactions occur

Operating expenses reflect employee compensation and

benefits distribution and servicing costs amortization of

deferred sales commissions direct fund expenses general

and administration expenses and amortization offinite-lived

intangible assets

Employee compensation and benefits expense includes

salaries commissions temporary help deferred and

incentive compensation employer payroll taxes and related

benefit costs

Distribution and servicingcosts which are primariLyAUM

driven include payments made to MerriLL Lynch-affiliated

entities under global distribution agreement to PNC and

Barclays as well as other third parties pri marl ly associated

with obtaining and retaining client investments in certain

BlackPock products

Direct fund expenses primerilyconsist of
third-party

non

advisoryexpenses incurred by BlackRock related to certain

funds for the use of index trademarks reference data

for indices custodial services fund administration fund

accounting transfer agent services shareholder reporting

services Legal expenses audit and tax services as well as other

fund-related expenses directly attributable to the non-advisory

operations of the fund These expenses mayvary over time with

fluctuations in AUM number of shareholder accounts or other

attributes directly related to volume of business

General and administration expenses include marketing and

promotional occupancy and office-related costs portfolio

services incLuding clearing expenses related to transition

management services technology professional services
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communications closed-end fund launch costs and other

general and administration expenses including foreign cur

rency remeasurement costs

Non-operating income expense includes the effect

of changes in the valuations on investments excluding

available-for-sale investments and earnings on equity

method investments as well as interest and dividend income

and interest expense Other comprehensive income includes

changes in valuations related to available-for-sale invest

ments BlackRock primarily holds seed and co-investments

in sponsored investment products that invest in variety of

asset classes including private equity distressed credit

mortgage debt securities hedge funds and real estate

Investments generally are made for co-investment purposes

to establish performance track record to hedge exposure

to certain deferred compensation plans or for regulatory

Assets Under Management

Core

Currency and commodities

Long-term

Cash management
Sub-total

Advisory1

Total

purposes including Federal Reserve Bank stock BlackRock

does not engage in proprietary trading or other investment

activities that could conflict with the interests of its clients

In addition non-operating income expense includes the

impact of changes in the valuations of consolidated spon

sored investment funds and consolidated collateralized loan

obligations The portion of non-operating income expense

not attributable to BlackRock is allocated to non-controlling

interests on the consolidated statements of income

Assets Under Management

AUM for reporting purposes is generally based upon how invest

ment advisory and administration fees are calculated for each

portfolio Net asset values total assets committed assets or

other measures may be used to determine portfolio AUM

Data reflecto tire reclassification of prior period AUM into the current period presentation

Advisory AUM represents long-term portfolio liquidation asnitnments

December 31 Variance

Dolloromounts in millions 2011 2010 2009 2011 vs 2010 2010 vs 2009

Equity

Active $275156 $334532 $348574 18% 4%
Institutional index 865299 911775 806082 5% 13%

iShores 419651 448160 381399 6% 18%

Fixed income

Active 614804 592303 595580 4% 1%
Institutional index 479116 425930 357557 12% 19%

iShores 153802 123091 102490 25% 20%

Multi-assetclass 225170 185587 142029 21% 31%

Alternatives

Core 63647 63603 66058 4%
Currency and commodities 41301 46135 36043 10% 28%

Long-term 3137946 3131116 2.835.812 10%

Cash management 254665 279175 349277 9% 20%
Sub-total 3392611 3410291 3185089 1% 7%

Adcxscry121 120070 150677 161167 20% 7%
Total $3512681 $3560968 $3346256 1% 6%

Mix of Assets Under Management by Asset Class

December 31

2011 2010 2009

Equity

Active 8% 9% 10%

Institutional index 25% 26% 25%

iShores 12% 13% 11%

Fixed income

Active 18% 17% 18%

Institutional index 14% 12% 11%

iShores 4% 3% 3%

Multi-asset class 6% 5% 4%

Alternativesihi

2% 2% 2%

1% 1% 1%

90% 88% 85%

7% 8% 10%

97% 96% 95%

3% 4% 5%

100% 100% 100%
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The following table presents the component changes in BlsckRocks AUM forthe years ended December31 2011 2010 and 2009

Dollar amounts

in millions

Equity

Data reflects the reclassification of Drier pei 104 A5M to the currerrt period presentation

21 Amounts include planned distributions representing retanrr of capital and retain on iroesiment tn investors

67349

22899
29903

14547

28251

27513

7.070

48.287

$3.51 2681

Market

appreciation

depreciation

131206

61424

112021

57761

120969

61 60

266981

17099

214712

$3560968

84436

491 22

11642

46956

2894

1850252

143706

1.085

2039105

$3346256

Amounts include outflows doe to manager concentration coonideratiorrs prior to third quarter 2011 and outflows from ocientitic action equity performance prior to nocood quarter 20t1

Foreign excharrge rnfiecto the impact of converting non-U.S dollar denominated AUM irrto U.S dollars for reportirrg pirnpooen

Advisory ADM represents lang-term portfolio liquidation asoigomento

AUM decreased approximately $48.3 billion or 1% to

$3513 trillion at December 31 2011 from $3561 trillion at

December 31 2010 The decline in AUM was primarily attrib

utable to $34.6 billion in net market and foreign exchange

vauation decines $29.9 bibion of advisory distributions

and $22.9 billion of cash management net outflows partially

offset by $67.3 billion of long-term net new business before

givingeffecttothefinalBGl merger-related outflows of

$28.3 billion recorded in the first half of 2011

Net market depreciation of $27.5 billion included

$1 281 billion of depreciation in equity products resulting

from the decLine in global equity partially offset by

appreciation in fixed income products of $1 007 billion

The $7.1 billion net decrease in AUM from converting non-

U.S dollar denominated AUM into U.S dollars was primarily

due to the strengthening of the U.S dollar against the euro

pound sterling and Canadian dollar partially offset by weak

ening of the US dollar against the Japanese yen

Year ended December 31

2010 2009

$3346256 $1307151
Dollar amounts in millions

2011

Beginning assets under management $3560968

Net subscriptions/redemptionstr

Long-term

Cash management

Advisory0

Total net mubmcriptionm/redemptions

BGI merger-related outflow

Acquisitions0

Market sppreciation/depreciation

Foreign exchangeiOi

Total change

Ending assets under management --

It Amounts inchide planned distributions representing retorn of capital and return on iriseotroent to investors

Adniosry AUM represents long-term portfolio hqiiidatinn aooignments

Amounts incisde satfiomo due ta manager
csocentratisrr corrsideratiOnn prior to third quarter Phil arid outfiowo from scientific acrise equity performance prior to vecond quarter 2011

141
Am000ts inctude AdM acquired from Darciayo in

December 2009 and P3 Capital Management
LLC

in April 20U9 and P01 acquisition adjuotmeirtn 02010

Foreign exchange reflects thu impact of corraerting non-U.S dollar denominated SUM into U.S doiaro ton reporting parposes

BlackRock has historically grown aggregate AUM through organic growth and acquisitions Management believes that the

Company will be able to continue to grow AUM by focusing on strong investment performance the efficient delivery of beta for

index products client service and by developing new products and new distribution capabilities

The followingtable presents the component changes in BlsckRocks AUM for the year ended December31 2011

Net 80 merger-

December 31 subscriptions related Foreign December31

2010 redemotionso outflows3 exchangeu 2011

Active $334532 $22876 $6943 $29793 $236 $275156

Institutional index 911.775 22403 20630 48402 153 865299

iShares 448160 24612 49863 3258 419651

Fixed income

Active 592303 17398 413 40.366 54 614804

Institutional index 425.930 51 52 113 55.463 2988 479116

Shores 123091 26876 4824 989 153802

Multi-asset class 185587 42.654 401 2.670 225170

Alternatives0

Core 63.603 48 1521 179 31 63647

Currency and commodities 46135 3818 1452 446 41301

Long-term 3131116 67349 28251 29089 3.179 3137946

Cash management 279175 22899 128 1.739 254665

Sub-total 3.410291 44450 28251 28961 4.918 3392611

Advisory5 150677 29903 1448 2152 120070

Total $3560968 $14547 $28251 $27513 $7070 $3512681
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Business Outlook

The diversity
of the Companys business model which offers

significant breadth of asset classes along with alpha end beta

management styles and its global reach allows BlackRockto

capture asset flows as investor sentiment shifts BlackRock fin

ished 2011 with strong index flows as clients continued to rebal

ance their portfolios from active products due to volatile market

conditions BlackRock expects such conditions to continue into

2012 due to the European sovereign debt crisis global political

elections in 2012 and continued unrest in the Middle East

In early 2012 BlackRock continues to see signs of economic

strength in the United States as the pace of expansion ac

celerates and the unemployment rate declines During 2012

BlackRock expects emerging economies to outperform while

the United States and Japan grow at lower rates and Europe

faces slow economic recovery BlackRock will actively moni

tor global monetary policies including quantitative easing

and the direction of interest rates bank lending policies the

Euro crisis global political elections and the U.S debt ceiling

and housing market along with the effects on global corporate

earnings growth

The Company offers broad range of equity fixed income

multi-asset and alternative products designed to track vari

ous indices target returns in excess of specified benchmarks

or focus on absolute returns BlackRocks broad set of product

offerings risk skills and tools allow the Company to work with

clients in meeting their investment objectives over both short

and long-term horizons While investing for stable income

continues to be core objective of many clients BlackRock

expects clients to trend toward indexing retirement and in

come alternatives and multi-asset class solutions along with

risk management tools and advisory services

The following items could impact the Companys results in

2012 and beyond

AUM and FLows

As investors shift preferences between asset classes and

active and passive investment styles the Companys broad

product profile including wide array of offerings in asset

types and management styles should enable it to retain

and capture revenue As equity markets improve and with

no sign of rising interest rates from their historic lows in the

near term BlackRock expects clients who in the tatter half

of 2011 were delaying investment decisions to re-risk into

beta and alpha equity and alternative products

BlackRocks unique combination of index and active capa

bilities positions it well to assist companies in narrowingthe

gap on underfunded pension plans by implementing barbell

strategies using combination of index alpha and alterna

tive products In addition as retirement money moves away

from defined benefit plans into defined contribution plans

and ultimately to individuals BlackRock is well positioned to

offer individual investment options with its LifePath target

date portfolios and wide array of ETF5 and other mutual

fund products

BtackRock has leading global market share in exchange

traded products ETP due to its large array of products

and AUM in this market The global growth of the ETP

market reflects both continued adoption and new product

introduction with investor product preferences driven to

varying degrees by performance as measured by track

ing error which is the difference between net returns on

the ElF and the corresponding targeted index liquidity

bid-ask spread tax efficiency transparency and client

service Industry asset growth has historically been linked

to positive markets with investors looking to capitalize on

strong market returns In the continued environ ment of

ultra-low interest rates industry flows shifted toward fixed

income oriented products and within equities to developed

markets and awayfrom broad and single-country emerging

marketfunds.Additionalasset managers mayenterthe

marketplace and offer similarexchange traded products at

lowerfee structures however the Company believes that

many factors beyond pricing influence investor preferences

BlackRock believes alternative products will become more

important for both institutional and retail clients to invest in

alpha-generating products to generate higher returns The

Company significantly invested in its alternatives platform

during 2011 for products expected to be introduced in 2012

which will invest in private equity renewable power real

estate as well as other opportunistic asset classes

Cash management assets may continue to decline from

year-end levels if clients begin to re-risk their portfolios in

search of yield or equity return opportunities aerates

remain low including those in the United States as the

Federal Reserve currently expects U.S rates to remain low

until 2014 The Companys diversified global product offer

ings client service and independent advice may enable it to

retain portion of these assets

ReguLatory Reform

The regulatory environment in 2011 continued to evolve for

financial institutions as well as money market funds with

the intent of the reform supported by BlackRock to protect

the industry and our clients Regulatory reform continues to

evolve and may affect the competitive environment includ

ing liquidity and trading costs and may provide BlackRock

and its clients with risks as well as opportunities

Performance fees and BRS/advisory fees

While most of BlackRocks absolute return AUM products

eligible
for performance fees are marginally below high

water marks return to higher market levels may

enable the Companys alternative investment products to

contribute additional performance fee revenue

The sovereign uncertainty in 2011 across Europe and an

increasing focus on risk management led to unique oppor

tunities for BlackRocks risk tools and advisory services

combining the Companys extensive capital markets and

structuring expertise with rigorous modeling and analyti

cal capabilities across an increasingly global client base

In 2012 the Company expects continuing strong global

demand for itsAladdin operating platform and its com
prehensive risk reportingfrom sophisticated institutional

investors and governmental agencies investing in longer

term risk management solutions as well as strong demand

for financial market advisory services
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Future opportunities

The Company plans to continue to nvest in its people its

platform and its global BlackRock brand In addition it will

build out key products and geographic locations as well as

an internal trading platform on its enterprise systems to

cross trades within its platform and potentially among other

client transactions which is expected to result in lower

portfolio
transaction costs and ultimately increased perfor

mance returns for clients

Operating results for the year ended December31 2011

compared with the year ended December31 2010

Operating Income and Operating Margin Overview

GAAP

Dollor omounts In millions

Revenue

Expenses

Operating income

Operoting morgin

Year ended December 31

2011 2010

$9081 $8612

5832 5614

$3249 $2998

35.8% 34.8%

Variance

Amount Change

$469 5%

218 4%

$251 8%

1.0% 3%

The increase in operating income and operating margin for

the year ended December 31 2011 was attributable to the

$469 million increase in revenue primarily due to higher base

fees associated with growth in long-term average AUM which

included the benefit of higher average markets and the benefit

of net new business and higher BlockSock Solutions and

advisory revenue partially offset by lower performance fees The

increase in revenue was partiallyoffset by a$218 million including

an increase in the number of employees professional fees

As Adjusted

and average long-dated AUM growth which affects certain

expenses includingdirectfund expenses

In addition operating income and operating margin forthe

year ended December31 2011 included $63 million of U.K

lease exit costs related to the Companys exit from two London

locations and $32 million of restructuring charges Operating

income and operating margin for the year ended December31

2010 included $90 million of BGI integration costs Each of

these items are excluded from the as adjusted results below

Dolloromounts in millions

Revenue

Expenses _______

Operating iflcomei

Oerotin mor5in

Variance

Change

5%

4%

7%

1%

The increase in operating income and operating margin as ad

justed for the year ended December31 2011 was attributable

to the $469 million increase in revenue as discussed above

The increase was partially offset by $244 million net in

crease in operating expenses as discussed above as well as

higher marketing and promotional costs

Year ended December31

2011 2010

$9081 $8612

5689 5445

$3392 $3167

39.7% 39.3%

Operating leonine an adliisted and operating margin as adlonted ave described in more detail dii the Overview to Managements Discussion aiid Anaignin nt Finenciai Condition and Renults of

Operatinnn

Amount

$469

244

$225

0.4%
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Operating results for the year ended December31 2011

compared with the year ended December 31 2010

Revenue

Yearended December 31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount %Change

Investment advisory administration fees

and securities lending revenue

Equity

Active $1967 $1848 $119 6%
Institutional index 488 424 64 15%

iShores 1847 1660 187 11%

Fixed income

Active 1104 1047 57 5%
Institutional index 203 166 37 22%

iShares 317 263 54 21%

Multi-assetclass 894 740 154 21%

Alternatives

Core 557 522 35 7%

Currency and commodities 136 110 26 24%

Long-term 7513 6780 733 11%

Cash management 383 510 27 25%
Total 7896 7290 606 8%

Investment advisory performance fees

Equity 145 123 22 18%

Fixed income 35 55 20 36%
Multi-asset class 20 33 13 39%
Alternatives 171 329 158 48%

Total 371 540 169 31%
BlockRock Solutions and advisory 510 460 50 11%

Distribution fees 100 116 161 14%
Otherrevenue 204 206 1%
Total revenue $9081 $8612 $469 5%

The $469 million increase in revenues reflected $606 million

increase in total investment advisory administration fees and

securities lending revenue primarily due to growth in Long-

dated average AUM and $50 million increase in BlockRock

Solutions and advisory revenue largely driven by ongoing and

additionalAloddin mandates and advisory assignments The

increase was partially
offset by $169 million decrease in

performance fees primarily reflecting lowerfeesfrom hedge

funds and $16 million decrease in distribution fees

Investment Advisory Administration Fees and Securities

Lending Revenue

Investment advisory administration fees and securities lend

ing revenues increased $606 million to $7896 million for the

year ended December 312011 from $7290 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 This growth primarily reflected

growth in average long-term AUM which included the benefit

of net new business partially offset by decline in fees from

cash management products due to lower average AUM and

higher fee waivers Securities lending fees were $397 million

fortheyearended December31 2011 compared with

$325 million for year ended December 31 2010 reflecting an

increase in average balances of securities on Loan and higher

lending retes

The below table lists the asset type mix of investment advisory

administration fees and securities lending revenue collectively

base fees and mix of average AU by asset class
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Mix of Base Fees

Year ended

December 31

ix of Average AUM

by Asset Class1

December 31

2010

Average AUM represeito five-point average of guarter-end spot AUM

For the year ended December 31 2011 institutional index equity and fixed income was only 9% of total base fees however AUM

associated with these base fees represented 39% of total average AU

Performance Fees

Dollar amounts in millions

Equity

Fixed income

Multi-asset class

Alternatives

Total

Yearended December31

2011 2010

$145 $123

35 55

20 33

329

$540

Variance

Change

18%

36%
39%
48%

1%

Investment advisory performance fees decreased

$169 million or 31% to $371 million for the year ended

December 31 2011 from $540 million for the yearended

December 31 2010 primarily reflecting
lower performance

fees from alternative strategies including multi-strategy and

single-strategy equity and fixed income hedge funds and op

portunistic funds The decrease was partially offset by higher

performance fees due to strong relative performance from

regional/country and global equity strategies

BtackRock SoLutions and Advisory

BlockRock Solutions and advisory revenue for the year ended

December31 2011 increased $50 million or 11% from the

year ended December31 2010 primarily due to ongoing and

additional4laddin mandates and advisory assignments

Distribution Fees

Distribution fees of $100 million forthe year ended December31

2011 decreased $16 million from $116 million for the year

ended December 312010 primarily due to lowerAUM in certain

share classes of BocktRock Funds

2011 2010 2011

Equity

Active 25% 25% 9% 10%

Institutional index 6% 6% 26% 26%

iShores 23% 23% 13% 12%

Fixed income

Active 14% 14% 18% 19%

Institutional index 3% 2% 13% 12%

iShores 4% 4% 4% 4%

Multiassetclass 11% 10% 6% 5%

Alternatives

Core 7% 7% 2% 2%

Currency and commodities 2% 2% 1% 1%

Long-term 95% 93% 92% 91%

Cash management 5% 7% 8% 9%

TotalexcludingAdvisoryAUM 100% 100% 100% 100%

171

$371

Amount

$22

20
13

158

$169
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Expenses

Yearended December31 Variance

Dolloromounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount Change

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits $3199 $3097 $102 3%

Distribution and servicing costs 386 408 22 5%
Amortization of deferred sales commissions 81 102 21 21%
Directfund expenses 563 493 70 14%

General and administration 1415 1354 61 5%

Restructuring charges 32 32

Amortization of intangible assets 156 160 3%
Total expenses GAAP $5832 $5614 $218 4%

Totsl expenses GAAP $5832 $5614 $218 4%

Less non-GAAP expense adjustments

BGI
integration costs

Employee compensation and benefits 25 25 100%
General and administration 65 65 100%

Total BGI integration costs 90 90 100%
U.K lease exit coats 63 63

RestructLi ring charges 32 32

PNC LTlPfunding obligation 44 58 14 24%
Merrill Lynch compensation contribution 10 30%
Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 14
Total non-GAAP expense adjustments 143 169 26 15%
Total expenses as adjusted $5689 $5445 $244 4%

Not aphcabie

Total GAAP expenses increased $218 million or 4% to $5832 increase in total expenses as adjusted is primarily attributable

million for the year ended December 31 2011 from $5614 mil- to increases in employee compensation and benefits direct

lion for the year ended December 31 2010 Excluding certain fund expenses and general and administration expenses

items deemed non-recurring by management ortransactions partially offset by reduction in distribution and servicing

that ultimately will not affect the Companys book value total costs and amortization of deferred sales commissions

expenses as adjusted increased $244 million or 4% The

Employee Compensation and Benefits

Year ended December 31 Variance

Dollor omounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount Change

Employee compensation and benefits GMP $3199 $3097 $102 3%

Less non-GAAP expense adjustments

BGI integration coats 25 25 100%
PNC LTlPfunding obligation 44 58 14 24%
Merrill Lynch compensation contribution 10 130%

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 14
Total non-GAAP expense adjustments 48 104 56 54%
Employee compensation and benefits as adjusted $3151 $2993 $158 5%

Not apphrabie

Employee compensation and benefits expense increased

$102 million or 3% to $3199 million for the yearended

December31 2011 from $3097 million for the year ended

December31 2010 Employees at December 31 2011 totaled

approximateLy 10100 as compared to approximately 9100 at

December31 2010

Employee compensation and benefits as adjusted increased

by $158 million reflecting $164 million increase in base sala

ries due to an increase in the number of employees and salary

levels and a$41 million increase in other compensation

including payroll taxes benefits and commissions These

increases were partially offset by $47 million decrease in

incentive compensation

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distribution and servicing costs decreased $22 million to

$386 millionfortheyearended December31 2011 from

$408 million for the year ended December 31 2010 These

costs include payments to Bank of America/Merrill Lynch

under global distribution agreement PNC and Barclays as

we as other third parties primarily associated with the

distribution and servicingof client investments in certain

BlackRock products The $22 million decrease related to lower

cash management-related costs of $45 million reflecting

lower average AU and higher-yield support waivers resulting

in lower levels of distribution costs partially offset by higher

costs due to increases in average AUM for open-end and

closed-end funds separate accounts and variable annuities
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Amortization of Deferred Sales CommissionsDistribution and servicing costs for the year ended December31

2011 included $207 million of costs attributable to Bank of

America/Merrill Lynch and affiliates and $3 million of costs

attributable to PNC and affiliates as compared to $246 million

and $10 million respectively in the year ended December31

2010 Distribution and servicing costs related to otherthird

parties including Barclays increased $24 million to $176 mil

lion for the year ended December 31 2011 from $152 million

forthe year ended December 31 2010 due to an expansion of

distribution platforms and higher long-term AUM

General and Administration Expenses

Amortization of deferred sales commissions decreased

$21 million to $81 million for the year ended December31

2011 from $102 million for the year ended December31 2010

Lower sales in certain share classes of U.S open-end mutual

funds contributed to the decline

Dire ct Fund Expenses

Direct fund expenses increased $70 million reflecting growth

in average AUM forthefunds predominately iShores where

BlackRock pays certain non-advisory expenses of the funds

Yearended December 31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount Change

General and administration expenses GAAP

Marketingand promotional $315 $328 $13 4%
Occupancy and office related 373 317 56 18%

Portfolio services 189 177 12 7%

Technology 146 152 4%
Professional services 139 115 24 21%

Communications 40 49 19 18%

Regulatoryfiling and license fees 16 34 18 53%

Charitable contributions 26 19 73%

Closed-end fund launch costs 26 15 11 73%

Other general and administration 164 141 23 16%

Total general and administration expenses GAAP $1415 $1354 $61 5%

Less non-GAAP adjustments

Marketing and promotional $33 $33 100%

Occupancy and office related 63 12 51 425%

Technology 000%
Professional services 12 12 100%
Other general and administration 000%

Total non-GAAP adjustments $63 $65 $2 3%
General and administration expenses as adjusted

Marketing and promotional $315 $295 $20 7%

Occupancy and office related 310 305 2%

Portfolio services 189 177 12 7%

Technology 146 150 3%
Professional services 139 103 36 35%

Communications 40 49 18%

Regulatoryfiling and License fees 16 34 18 53%
Charitable contributions 26 19 73%
Closed-end fund launch costs 26 15 11 73%

Other general and administration 164 135 29 21%

Total general and administration expenses as adjusted $1352 $1289 $63 5%

11 Data refiectn certain reciassifications of prior period data to conform to the current period presentation

General andAdministration Expenses GAAP

General and administration expenses increased $61 million

or 5% to$1415 million fortheyearended December31 2011

from $1354 million foryear ended December 312010 Higher

occupancy and office-related expenses including$63 million

of U.K lease exit costs higher professional services costs

and other general and administration expenses contributed to

the overall net increase in general and administration

expenses The $23 million increase in other general end

administration expenses reflected higher VAT expense and

recruiting costs in 2011 offset by the non-recurrence of other

general and administration provisions recorded in 2010

related to an outstanding loan to Anthracite Capital Inc The

increase in general and administration expenses GAAP was

partially offset by decreases in charitable contributions end

regulatory filing and licenses fees primarilydue to $20

million 2010 U.K industry regulatory assessment

Non-GAAPAdjustments

Theyearended December31 2011 generaland administration

expenses included $63 million of U.K lease exit costs related

to the Companys exit from two London locations The year

ended December31 2010 general and administration

expenses included $65 million of BG integration costs

primarily consisting of marketing and promotional costs

professional services and occupancy costs
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General and Administration Expenses as Adjusted In addition general and administration expenses as adjusted

Non-operating results for the year ended December 31 2011

compared with the year ended December 31 2010

reflected higher marketing and promotional costs in 2011

Forthe year ended December31 2011 BlackRock recorded

pretax restructuring charges of $32 million primarily related

to severance accelerated amortization of certain previously

granted stock awards and legal and outplacement costs asso

Non-Operating Income Expense Less Net Income Loss Attributable to Non-ControLling Interests

Non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests forthe years ended December31

2011 and 2010 was as follows

Year ended December 31

Do/br omounts in millions 2011 2010 Change

Non-operating income expense GAAP basis $114 $23 $137

Less Net income loss attributable to NC 13 15

Non-operating income expense12 116 36 152

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 14

Non-operating income expense as adjustediOi $113 $25 $1 38

Amount inciudes an $ih million mon and $35 miiihorn moo attnibutabie to conoohdated vaniabie inherent entitien for the year ended December 31 2011 and 2010 renpectiveiy

Net of mrei income moo attribmmtabie to non-corntmoting irmteresto

The components of non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests for the years

ended December31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

Yearended December31

Dollar omounts in millions 2011 2010 Change

Net gain loss on investments

Private equity $36 $31 $5

Realestate 10 17

Distressed credit/mortgage funds 13 66 79

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds 18 23
Other investmentstm2 14 13

Sub-total 29 146 17
Investments related to deferred compensation plans 11 14

Total net gain loss on investments 26 157 131

Interest and dividend income 34 29

Interest expense 176 50 26

Net interest expense 142 21 21
Total non-operating income expenseyhi 116 36 152

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 14

Non-operating income expense as adjustedm $113 $25 $1 38

11 Net of net income iota attributable to rmon-cootrohing intereato

21 Amount inciudea net gaina i0000n related to equity and fixed income ionentrnento and Biackflockn need capituai hedgimrg prngram

Non-operating expense less net income loss attributable

to non-controlling interests decreased $152 milLion to

$116 million forthe year ended December31 2011 compared

with $36 million of net non-operating income forthe year

ended December 31200 The year ended December

2011 included $142 million of net interest expense partially

offset by $26 million of net positive marks primarily on private

equity and real estate fund co-investments partially offset

by net negative marks in distressed credit/mortgage fund

co-investments

Net gains on co-investments and seed investments decreased

$117 million duringthe yearended December 312011 primarily

due to reduction in values on distressed credit/mortgage

funds and hedge funds/funds of hedge funds compared with

an increase in values in the prior year

Net interest expense was $142 million an increase of $21 million

from the prior year The increase reflected the May 2011 issuance

of $1.5 billion of long-term debt in connection with the repurchase

of Bank of Americas remaining ownership interest in BlackRock

partially offset by higher interest and dividend income

Excluding the U.K lease exit costs and BGI integration expenses

general and administration expenses as adjusted of

Restructuring Charges
$1352 million increased $63 million or 5% forthe year ended

December31 2011 from $1289 million for the year ended

December31 2010 See general and administration expenses

GAAP above for discussion on the increase in general and

administration expenses and for items offsettingthe overall

increase in general and administration expenses as adjusted ciated with reduction in work force and reengineering efforts

40



As adjusted

Year ended December 31

The GAAP effective tax rate of 25.4% for the year ended

December 31 2011 included $24 million benefit related to

the resolution of certain outstanding tax positions and

$198 million of net non-cash tax benefits due to state tax

electron and enacted U.K Japan and U.S state and local tax

legislation

The as adjusted effective tax rate of 31.7% for the year ended

December31 2011 included the $24 million benefit mentioned

above and excluded the $198 million of net non-cash tax ben

efits due to state tax election and enacted U.K Japan and

U.S state and local tax legislation

The GAAP effective tax rate forthe year ended December 31

2010 included $30 million non-cash tax benefit related to

the revaluation of certain net deferred income tax liabilities

primarily related to acquired intangible assets due to enacted

U.K tax legislation In addition the year ended December31

Net Income AttributabLe to BlackRock Inc

2010 included the effect of favorable tax rulings and the

resolution of certain outstanding tax positions

The as adjusted effective tax rate of 33.0% for the year ended

December 31 2010 excluded the $30 million non-cash tax

benefit mentioned above

The Companys tax rate is affected by tax rates in foreign

jurisdictions and the relative amount of income earned in

those jurisdictions which the Company expects to be fairly

consistent in the near term The significantforeignjurisdic

tions that have lower statutory tax rates than the U.S

federal statutory rate of 35% include the United Kingdom

Luxembourg Canada and the Netherlands U.S income

taxes were not provided for certain undistributed foreign

earnings intended to be
indefinitely

reinvested outside the

United States

Dollor omounto in millions

except pershore doto 2011 2010 %Change 2011 2010 %Change

Operating income $3249 $2998 8% $3392 $3167 7%

Non-operating income expenseyni 116 36 113 25

Incometaxexpense 796 971 18% 1040 1053 1%
Net income attributable

to Blackpock Inc $2337 $2063 13% $2239 $2139 5%

attributable to common shares 99.1% 98.6% 99.1% 98.6%

Net income attributable

to common shares $2315 $2033 14% $2218 $2109 5%

Diluted weighted-average

common shares outstanding 187116410 192692047 3% 187116410 192.692047 3%
Diluted EPS

Operatingincome $11.60 $10.28 13% $12.12 $10.85 12%

Non-operating income expsnseYui 0.41 0.12 0.40 0.09

Income tax benefit 1.18 0.15 687% 0.13

Diluted earnings per common share $12.37 $1 0.55 17% $11.85 $1 0.94 8%

Not apphcabie

It Net of oet iocome isso attributable to 000-csotrouiog ioterestu redeemabie aod 000redeematrie

21 Unuested RSLiv that csntaio noo-fonfeitabie tights to dividends are riot included as thea are deemed panticipatiot securities iv accstdaoce with GAAP Upso vesting of the participatiog N5U5 tho shares are

added to the weighted-average shares sutstandiog which resoits is
air increase to

tire percentage of net iscome attributabie to common shares in additioo oonr-vstiog preferred shares are considered to

be comnoonn stock oqurusionts for purposes of deterrniniog basic sod dusted eanniogo per sinane caicuiati000

GAAP

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $2337 million

or $12.37 per diluted common share forthe year ended

December31 2011 rose $274 million or $1.82 per diluted

common share from the year ended December 312010

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $2337 million for

the year ended December 312011 included the after-tax effect

of U.K lease exit costs of $43 million restructuring charges of

$22 million the portion of certain LTIP awards to be funded

through capital contribution of BlackRock stock held by PNC

of $30 million and an expected contribution by Merrill Lynch

of$5 million tofund certain compensation of former MLIM

employees Net income for the year ended December31 2011

included the previously mentioned non-cash income tax benefits

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $2063 million for

the year ended December31 2010 included the after-tax effect

of the BGI integration costs of $59 million the portion of certain

Income Tax Expense GAAP

Year ended December 31

Dollor omounto in millions 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change

Income before income taxes $3133 $3034 3% $3279 $3192 3%

Iscometaxexpense $796 $971 18% $1040 $1053 1%
Effective tax rate 25.4% 32.0% 31.7% 33.0%

Net of net iocsme isso attribstabie
to nrso-csotnoting interests

The components of net income attributable to BlackRock Inc and net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted for the

yearsended December31 2011 and 2olOareasfollows

GAAP As adjusted

Year eoded December 31 Yearended December 31
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LTIP awards which will be funded through capital contribution

of BlackRock stock held by PNC of $40 million and certain

compensation of former MLIM employees of$7 million to be

funded through cash contribution by Merrill Lynch

As Adjusted

Exclusive of the items discussed above net income attribut

able to BlackRock Inc as adjusted totaled $2239 million

or $11.85 per diluted common share fortheyearended

December31 2011 which was an increase of $100 million

or $0.91 per diluted common share from the year ended

December 31 2010

Net income and diluted earnings per common share as

adjusted are described in more detail in the Overview to

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

Operating results for the year ended December 31 2010

compared with the year ended December 31 2009

The followingtable presents the component changes in BlackRocks AUM for the year ended December 31 2010

AUM increased approximately$214.7 billion or6% to

$3561 trillion at December31 2010 from $3.346 trillion at

December 312009 The growth in AUM was primarily attribut

able to $267.0 billion in net market appreciation $131.2 billion

of net subscriptions in long-term mandates and $17.1 billion

increase due to foreign exchange movements partially offset

by$1 27 billion of BGI merger-related outflows due to manager

concentration considerations and active equity quantitative

performance and acquisition adjustments $61.4 billion of net

outflows in cash management products and $12.0 billion of

net client distributions in advisory assignments

Net market appreciation of $267.0 billion included

$190.7 billion of net appreciation in equity products due to an

increase in global equity markets $55.4 billion in fixed income

products dueto current income and changes in interest rate

spreads $13.9 billion in muLti-asset class products and

$7.2 billion in alternatives primarilydueto appreciation in

precious metals including silver and gold

The $17.1 billion net increase in AUM from converting non-

U.S dollar-denominated AUM into U.S dollars was primarily

due to the weakening of the U.S dollar against the Japanese

yen Canadian dollar and Australian dollar partially offset

by the strengthening of the U.S dollar against the euro and

pound sterling

BG

Net merger-

Dollarcnmounts December31 subscriptions related Acquisition appreciation Foreign December31

in millions 2009 redemtions121 outflowsiOi reclassificationsia depreciation exchangeini 2010

Equity

Market

Active $348.574 $2632 $54490 $3920 $40670 $1066 $334532

Institutional index 806082 44570 44907 4390 104152 6268 911775

iShores 381399 21865 45830 9341 448160

Fixed income

Active 595580 122143 9474 3922 31945 317 592303

Institutional index 357557 39148 10408 7374 21220 11039 425930

iShores 102490 19008 2195 602 23091

Multi-asset class 42029 26262 27 3550 13917 44 85587

Alternativest

Core 66058 3022 490 821 236 63603

Currency and

commodities 36043 2886 6349 857 46135

Long-term 2835812 131206 119896 1308 267.099 8203 3131116

Cash management 349.277 61424 1063 4852 38 2.725 279175

Sub-total 3185089 69782 120959 6160 267061 15478 3410291

AdvisoryiSi 161167 2021 19 80 1621 50677

Total $3346256 $57761 $120969 $6160 $266981 $17099 $3560968

Data retincto the reciansification ot prior period AUM into the current period presentatioo

Amounts inciude planned distributions reprenenting return ot capitai and return on insestnnent to iouestors

13 Amounts irrciude Outflows dire to manager concentration coosidorati000 and actioe equity qimantitotioe performance

Am000to inciude acqomnition adiootmnento and reciansen of AUM acquired from Barciaps in
December 2009 and other reciaosifications to conform to current period combined AUM policy

Foreign exc500ge rehects tire impact ot converting nor-U.S datum-denominated AUM into U.S dofars tot reporting purponen

Adoisory AUM represents iuog-temmn portfolio iquidation assignments

42



Operating Income and Operating Margin Overview

GAAP

Dollar amounts in millions

Revenue

Expenses

Operating income

Operating margin

Year ended December31

2010 2009

$8612 $4700

5614 3422

$2998 $1278

34.8% 272%

Variance

Amount Change

$3912 83%

2192 64%

$1720 135%

76% 28%

Operating income and operating margin forthe year ended

December 31 2010 included the full-year effect of revenue

and expenses related to the December 12009 acquisition

of B0l and $90 million of BGI integration costs compared

with $183 million of BGI transaction/integration costs forthe

year ended December 31 2009 The transaction/integration

expenses were not part of BlackRocks ongoing business and

are principallycomprised of compensation expense legal

fees advisory payments occupancy costs marketing and

promotional and consulting expenses

The increase in the operating income for theyear ended

December 31 2010 is attributable to the $3.9 billion increase

in revenue primarily related to an increase in base and per

formance fees associated with the AUM acquired in the BG

Transaction and growth in long-term AUM which included

market appreciation and net new business partially offset

As Adjusted

by $2.2 billion net increase in operating expenses related to

increases in employee compensation and benefits general

and administrative expenses and direct fund expenses due to

the 801 Transaction

The increase in the operating margin faryearended December 31

2010 included the positive
effects of synergies related to the

BGI Transaction growth in long-term AUM driven by market

appreciation a$93 million decrease in BGI transaction/inte

gration costs decline of $22 million in restructuringcharges

and $17 million change in foreign currency remeasurement

costs/benefits Higher employee compensation and benefits

expense general and administrative expenses and directfund

expenses as well as increased investments to grow the busi

ness partiallyoffset the increase in operating margin

Forfurtherdiscussion regarding revenue and expense vari

ances see Revenue and Expenses herein

Dollar amounts in millions

Revenue

Expenses

Operating incomer

Ooerotinc marein

Year ended December 31

2010 2009

$8612 $4700

5445 3130

$3167 $1570

39.3% 38.2%

Variance

Amount %Change

$3912 83%

2315 74%

$1597 102%

1.1% 3%

The increase in operating income as adjusted for the year

ended December31 2010 was attributable to the $3.9 billion

increase in revenue discussed above The increase was

partially
offset by $2.3 billion net increase in operating

expenses primarily related to increases in employee compen

sation and benefits general and administration expenses and

direct fund expenses due to the BGI Transaction

The increase in the operating margin as adjusted for

the year ended December 31 2010 included the benefit

of synergies related to the BGI Transaction and growth in

long-term AUM driven by market appreciation The increase

in operating margin was partially offset by higher employee

compensation and benefits expense net increases in

operating expenses related to the BOl Transaction as well as

increased investments to grow the business.

For further discussion regarding revenue and expense vari

ances see Revenue and Expenses herein

Operatirrg income as adjusted arid operatiog margie as adlusted are described or more detail is tire Overview to Managements Diocrrssiorr and Anaigois of Firrancisi Condition and flesuits of

Operations
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Revenue

Yearended December31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2010 2009 Amount %Change

Investment advisory administration fees

and securities lending revenue

Equity

Active $1848 $1230 $618 50%

Institutional index 424 56 368 657%

iShares 1660 136 1524

Fixed income

Active 1047 865 182 21%

Institutional index 166 16 150 938%

iShares 263 19 244

Multi-asset class 740 479 261 54%

Alternativesihi

Core 522 389 133 34%

Currency and commodities 110 11 99 900%

Long-term 6780 3201 3579 112%

Cash management 510 625 115 18%
Total 7290 3826 3464 91%

Investment advisory performance fees

Equity 123 46 77 167%

Fixed income 55 21 34 162%

Multi-asset class 33 20 13 65%

Alternatives 329 15 214 186%

Total 540 202 338 167%

BlockRock Solutions and advisory 460 477 17 4%
Distribution fees 116 100 16 16%

Otherrevenue 206 95 111 117%

Total revenue $8612 $4700 $3912 83%

111
Data retects the reciassificatiori of prior period AtM to the current Dears presentatiorr

Not applicable

Investment Advisory Administration Fees

and Securities Lending Revenue

Investment advisory administration fees and securities lending

revenues increased $3464 million to $7290 million for the year

ended December31 2010 from $3826 million forthe year ended

December31 2009 The increase primarily related to fees earned

on products acquired in the BGI acquisition as well as organic

growth in long-term AUM due to market appreciation and net

new business which included securities lending revenue of

$325 million forthe year ended December31 2010 compared

with $36 million forthe year ended December 312009

Performance Fees

Investment advisory performance fees increased $338 mil

lion or 167% to $540 million for the year ended December 31

2010 from $202 million for the year ended December 31 2009

primarily due to an increase in performance fees earned upon

exceeding absolute investment or relative investment return

thresholds on alternative multi-strategy fixed income and

equity hedge funds and separate accounts across regional

country equity strategies fixed income and multi-asset class

products

BlackRock Solutions andAdvisory

BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenue for the year ended

December31 2010 decreased $17 million or 4% from the

year ended December 31 2009 The decrease was primarily

due to decline in non-recurring advisory assignments

as well as the effect of decline in advisoryAUM due to

distributions in portfolio liquidation assignments which have

AUM-based fees partially offset by additionalAladdin risk

management solutions and investment accounting mandates

Revenue earned on advisory assignments was comprised

of advisory and portfolio structuring assignment fees and

ongoing fees based on AUM of the respective portfolio

assignments

Distribution Fees

Distribution fees of $116 million forthe year ended December 31

2010 increased $16 million from $100 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 The increase primarily reflected

higherAUM incertainshareclassesofBackRockFunds

Other Revenue

Other revenue of $206 million for the year ended December

31 2010 increased $111 million from $95 million forthe year

ended December31 2009 The increase in other revenue

primarily resulted from $52 million increase in fees which

excludes related portfolio service costs earned for transition

management services due to an increase in transactions to

execute transitions of equity and fixed income mandates

$25 million increase in marketing fees earned from Barclays

for services to distribute Barclays iPath products and

$12 million increase for custodyfees earned on LifePath

products portion of which is paid to third-party

sub-custodian and reflected within direct fund expenses
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Expenses

Year ended December31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2010 2009 Amount Change

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits $3097 $1802 $1295 72%

Distribution and servicing costs 408 477 69 14%

Amortization of deferred sales commissions 102 100 2%

Directfund expenses 493 95 398 419%

General and administration 1354 779 575 74%

Restructuringcharges
22 22 100%

Amortization of intangible assets 160 147 13 9%

TotalexpensesGAAP $5614 $3422 $2192 64%

Total expenses GAAP $5614 $3422 $2192 64%

Less non-GAAP expense adjustments

BGI transaction/integration costs

Employee compensation and benefits 25 60 35 58%

General and administration 65 123 58 47%

Total BGI transaction/integration costs 90 183 93 51%

PNC LTlPfunding obligation
58 59 2%

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution 10 10

Restructuring charges
22 22 100%

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 18 39%

Total non-GAAP expense adjustments 169 292 123 42%

Total expenses as adjusted $5445 $3130 $2315 74%

Total GAAP expenses increased $2192 million or 64% increased $2315 million or 74% The increase in total

to $5614 million for the year ended December31 2010 expenses as adjusted was primarily attributable to the BGI

from $3422 million for the year ended December31 Transaction including increases in employee compensation

2009 Excluding certain items deemed non-recurring by and benefits general and administration expenses and direct

management or transactions that ultimately will not effect fund expenses partially offset by reduction of distribution

the Companys book value total expenses as adjusted and servicing costs

Employee Compensation and Benefits

Year ended December31 Variance

Dollor amounts in millions 2010 2009 Amount Change

Employee compensation and benefits GAAP $3097 $1802 $1295 72%

Less non-GAAP expense adjustments

BGI transaction/integration costs 25 60 35 58%

PNC LTlPfunding obligation
58 59 2%

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution 10 10

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 18 39%

Total non-GAAP expense adjustments 104 147 43 29%

Employee compensation and benefits as adjusted $2993 $1655 $1338 81%

Employees at December31 2010 totaled approximately 9100

as compared to approximately 8600 at December 312009

Employee compensation and benefits as adjusted increased

by $1338 million excluding the $43 million decrease in non

GAAP adjustments primarily related to lower BGI integration

costs The $1338 million increase in employee compensation

and benefits expense forthe year ended December 312010

was attributable to $721 million increase in incentive com

pensation ends $617 million increase in salaries benefits

payroll taxes temporary help and commissions The increase

in incentive compensation is primarily associated with the

increase in operating income afterexcludingthe BGI integration

costs $132 million increase in stock-based compensation

expense related to the effect of additional grants to larger

number of employees at the end of January 2010 The $617

million increase in salaries benefits and payroll taxes

reflected an increase in the number of employees primarily

resulting
from the BGI Transaction as well as growth in number

of employees subsequent to the BGI Transaction

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distribution and servicing costs decreased $69 million to

$408 million fortheyearended December 312010 from

$477 million fortheyear ended December31 2009.These costs

include peymentsto Bankof America/Merrill Lynch under global

distribution agreement PNC and Barclays as well asotherthird

parties primarily associated with the distribution and servicing

of client investments in certain BlackRock products The

$69 million decrease primarily reLated to lower levels of distribution

payments due to lower levels of average cash managementAUM

and decrease of costs due to an increase in advisoryfee waivers

for certain cash management funds serviced by Merrill Lynch
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Distribution and servicing costs for the year ended December Amortization of Deferred Sales Commissions

31 2010 incLuded $246 milLion of costs attributabLe to Bank of
Amortization of deferred sales commissions increased $2 mu

America/Merrill Lynch and affiliates and $10 million of costs
Lion to $102 million for the year ended December 312010 from

attributable to PNC and affiliates compared with

$100 million for the year ended December31 2009
$349 million and $19 million of costs respectively in the year

ended December 312009 Distribution and servicing costs
Direct Fund Expenses

related to otherthird parties including Barclays increased

$43 million to $152 million forthe year ended December312010 Direct fund expenses increased $398 million primarily related

from $109 million fortheyearended December 312009 dueto an to the addition of legacy BG funds subject to arrangements

expansion of distribution platforms and higher long-term AUM under which BlackRock pays certain fund expenses

General and Administration Expenses

Yearended December 31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2010 2009 Amount Change

General and administration expensesii GAAP

Marketing and promotional $328 $85 $243 286%

Occupancy and office related 317 182 135 74%

Portfolioservices 177 100 77 77%

Technology 152 114 38 33%

Professional services 115 162 47 29%
Communications 49 26 23 88%

Regulatoryfiling and license fees 34 29 580%

Charitable contributions 26 24

Closed-end fund launch costs 15 13 650%

Other general and administration 141 101 40 40%

Total general and administration expenses GAAP $1354 $779 $575 74%

Less BGI transaction and integration costs

Marketing and promotional $33 $11 $22 200%

Occupancy and office related 12 11

Technology 71%
Professional services 12 91 79 87%
Other general and administration 13 54%

Total BGI transaction and integration costs $65 $123 $58 47%
General and administration expenses as adjusted

Marketing and promotional $295 $74 $221 299%

Occupancy and office related 305 181 124 69%

Portfoliosarvices 177 100 77 77%

Technology 150 107 43 40%

Professional services 103 71 32 45%

Communications 49 26 23 88%

Regulatory filing and license fees 34 29 580%

Charitable contributions 26 24

Closed-end fund launch costa 15 13 650%

Other general and administration 135 88 47 53%

Total general and administration expenses as adjusted $1289 $656 $633 96%
Not applicable

lii
Data reflects certain reciassitications of prior period data to conform to the current period presentation

General andAdministration Expenses GAAP fund marketing expenses which included travel promotional

General and administration expenses increased $575 million or
and rebranding and advertising expenses

74% forthe year ended December 312010 from the yearended Occupancy and office-related expenses increased

December 312009 primarilydueto the 801 Transaction
$124 million primarily related to the expansion of the

Company due to the BGI Transaction including expenses
BG1 TransactIon and Integration Costs

related to Drapers Gardens and an increase in lease impair

BGI integration costs of $65 million for the year ended ments as result of vacating certain locations in the year

December31 2010 decreased $58 million from the year ended ended December31 2010

December 31 2009 primarily due to advisory and legal costs

Portfolio service costs increased $77 million due to an
incurredforthoyearended December31 2009 partially

increase in market data and research expenses as well as
offset by higher rebranding costs in 2010

transition management execution and clearing expenses

General and Administration Expenses as Adjusted
Technology expenses increased $43 million primarily due

Marketing and promotional expenses increased $221 million to an increase in software licensing and maintenance and

primarily due to an increase in global and exchange traded hardware depreciation expenses
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Professional services increased $32 million primarily related

to consulting accounting/tax and legal costs

Communications increased $23 million primarily related to

the expansion of the Company due to the BGI Transaction

Regulatory filing and license fees increased $29 million

primarily due to $20 million U.K regulatory assessment

Charitable contributions increased $24 million which is

primarily related to contribution to donor-advised

charitable fund

Closed-end fund launch costs excluding compensation

costs increased $13 million due to the Build America Bond

Truatfund which launched during the year ended December

31 2010 end generated approximately $1 .2 billion in AUM

Other general and administration expenses increased

$47 million due to an increase of $86 million related to

growth of the Company including recruiting training
and

insurance costs as well accosts for potential operating er

rors/fines partially offset by $17 million change in foreign

currency remeasurement costs/benefits from $11 million

of costs in the year ended December31 2009 to $6 million

benefit in the year ended December 31 2010a $9 million

decline in an expense for potentially
uncollectible receiv

able recorded in 2009 and $9 million of lower provisions

related to an outstanding loan to Anthracite Capital Inc

Restructuring Charges

Forthe year ended December31 2009 BlackRock recorded

pretax restructuring charges of $22 million primarily related

to severance outplacement costs occupancy costs and

accelerated amortization of certain previously granted stock

awards associated with reduction in work force and reengi

neering efforts

Amortization of IntangibleAssets

Amortization of intangible assets increased $13 million to

$160 million for the year ended December 31 2010 from

$147 million for the year ended December 31 2009 The increase

in amortization of intangible assets reflects amortization of

finite-lived managementcontracts acquired in the BG Transaction

Non-operating resuLts for the year ended December 312010

compared with the year ended December 31 2009

Non-Operating Income Expense Less Net Income Loss Attributabteto Non-ControLLing Interests

Non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests for the years ended December31

2010 and 2009 was as follows

Yearended December31

Dollor omounts in millions
2010 2009 Change

Non-operating income expense GAAP basis $23 $6 $29

Less Net income loss attributable to NCI 13 22 35

Non-operating income expensefo 36 28 64

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 18

Non-operating income expense as adjustediri
$25 $46 $71

Amount inciudes $35 mShon ions aittibotabie to consobdated vatiahie interest entities for the yeat ended December31 2010

Ntt ot net income ioos attriirotabie to noncootroHirrg interests

The components of non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests for the years

ended December31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Yearended December31

2009 Change
Dolloromountsin millions

2010

Net gain loss on investmentsm

Private equity $31 $9 $22

Realestate 17 114 131

Distressed credit/mortgage funds 66 100 34

Hedgefunds/fundsofhedgefunds
18 18

Other investments 14 11 25

Sub-total 146 144

Investments related to deferred compensation plans 11 18

Total net gain loss on investments 157 20 137

Interest and dividend income 29 20

Interest expense 150 68 82

Net interest expense 121 48 73

Total non-operating income expensef 36 28 64

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 11 18

Non-operating income expense as adjustedm $25 $46 $71

Set of net incnme
liossl

attobutabie to son-continuing intenvan

21 Amnunt includes net quito liosues reiated to equit5 and fined income investments and Biackflocko need capitai hedging ptOgtam
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Non-operating income less net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests increased $64 million to $36 million

for the year ended December31 2010 from $28 million net

non-operating expense for the year ended December31 2DD9 estate equity and debt co-investments

The $36 million non-operating income net of non-controlling

interests for the year ended December 31 2010 was com

prised of $146 million of net gains on co-investments and seed

investments and $11 million of appreciation related to hedges

of deferred compensation partially offset by $121 million of

net interest expense

Income Tax Expense

Yearended December31

2010 20D9

Yearended December31

2010 2009

GAAP effective tax rate for the year ended December 312010

included $30 million of non-cash tax benefits due to enacted

U.K tax legislation and the effect of favorable tax rulings and

the resolution of certain outstanding tax positions

As adjusted effective tax rate of 33.0% for the year ended

December 312010 excluded $30 million of non-cash benefits

due to U.K tax legislation

GAAP effective tax rate forthe year ended December31 2009

included $45 million of non-cash tax benefits due to legisla

tion enacted primarily with respect to New York City corporate

income taxes and $25 million of tax benefits primarily related

to favorable tax ruling and the final resolution of outstanding

tax matters

As adjusted effective tax rate of 33.0% for the year ended

December 31 2009 excluded $45 million of non-cash benefits

due to legislation enacted primarily with respect to New York

City corporate income taxes

The Company succeeded to $580 million California net

operating loss carryforward forfiscal year 2007 2008 and

2009 in connection with the BGI Transaction for which it has

not recorded deferred income tax asset because of certain

technical matters related to the predecessors unitary tax

returns The Company will continue to assess these mat

ters which may result in future tax benefits which based on

current factors could approximate $40 million if they are

resolved favorably

Net Income Attributable to BlackRock Inc

The components of net income attributable to BlackRock Inc and net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted for the

years ended December31 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Yearended December31

2010 2009

Year ended December31

2010 2009

Dollar amounts in millions

except per shore doto GAAP GMP Change As adjusted As adj usted Change

Operating income $2998 $1278 135% $3167 $1570 102%

Non-operating income expensel 36 28 25 46
Incometaxexpense 971 375 159% 1053 503 109%

Net income attributable

to BlackRock Inc $2063 $875 136% $2139 $1021 110%

attributable to common shares 98.6% 97.3% 98.6% 97.3%

Net income attributable

to common shares $2033 $853 138% $2109 $995 112%

Diluted weighted-average

common shares outstandingoi 192692047 139481449 38% 192692047 139481449 38%

Diluted EPS components

Operatingincome $10.28 $5.75 79% $10.85 $7.17 51%

Non-operating income expense1 0.12 0.13 0.09 0.21

Income tax benefit 0.15 0.49 69% 0.17 100%
Diluted earnings per common share $10.55 $6.11 73% $10.94 $7.13 53%

Not applicable

It Net of ret irrcome ioss attnibrrtabie to noecontroiiing interests redeemabie and rrorrredeemabie

12 U5005ted RSU5 that contain rron-fonfeitabie rights to dividends are not irrciuded as they are deemed participating securities in accordance with GAAP Upon uentrng of tire parhcipatirrg ASU5 tire

sirares are added to the weighted-aserage shares nrrtstanding which resuito irr an increase to the percerrtage of net income attributabie to common shares in addrtrsn non-ontirrg preferred shares

are considered to be common stock egsisaients for purposes of determining basic arrd dusted earnings per share caicsiatinns

Net gain on co-investments and seed investments increased

$144 million from the year ended December 31 2009 primarily

due to the non-recurrence of 2009 valuation declines in real

Net interest expense was $121 milton an increase of $73

million primarily due to an increase in interest expense related

to the December 2009 issuances of $2.5 billion of long-term

notes partially offset by higher dividend income related to an

investment required for regulatory purposes

Dollar amounts in millions GAAP GAAP Change As adjusted As adjusted Change
Income before incometaxes1 $3034 $1250 143% $3192 $1524 109%

Incometaxexpense $971 $375 159% $1053 $503 109%

Effective tax rate 32.0% 30.0% 33.0% 33.0%

It Net of net income lions attribstabie to non-cnrrtroling irrtereots
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GAAP

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $2063 milUon or

$10.55 per diluted common share forthe year ended December

312010 increased $1188 million or $4.44 per diluted common

sharefromtheyeerended December 31 2009

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $2063 million

for the year ended December31 2010 included the after-tax

effect of the BGI
integration costs of $59 million the portion

of certain LTIP awards which will be funded through capital

contribution of BlackRock stock held by PNC of $40 million

and certain compensation of former MLIM employees of

$7 million to be funded through cash contribution by Merrill

Lynch portion of which was received by BlackRock in 2010

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $875 million

forthe year ended December 31 2009 included the after-tax

effect of the portion of certain LTIP awards which will be

funded through capital contribution of BlackRock stock held

by PNC of $41 million BGI transaction/integration costs of

$129 million restructuring charges of $14 million and certain

compensation of former MLIM employees of $7 million to be

funded through cash contribution by Merrill Lynch portion

of which was received by BlackRock in 2009

As Adjusted

Exclusive of the items discussed above net income attribut

able to BlackRock Inc as adjusted totaled $2.1 39 million or

$10.94 per diluted common share as adjusted forthe year

ended December 312010 which was an increase of

$1.1 18 million or$3.81 per diluted earnings per common share

from the year ended December 31 2009

Net income and diluted earnings per common share as

adjusted are described in more detail in the Overview to

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

Balance Sheet Overview

As Adjusted BaLance Sheet

The table on the following page presents reconciliation of

the Companys consolidated statement offinancial condition

presented on GAAP basis to the Companys consolidated

statement offinancial condition excludingthe impact of

separate account assets and collateral held under securities

lending agreements directly related to lending securities held

by separate account assets and separate account Liabilities

and collateral liabilities under securities lending agreements

consolidated variable interest entities VIEs and consoli

dated sponsored investment funds

The Company presents the as adjusted balance sheet as

additional information to enable investors to eliminate gross

presentation of certain assets that have equal and offsetting

liabilities or non-controlling interests and ultimately do not

have an impact on stockholders equity excluding appropriated

retained earnings related to consolidated collateralized loan

obligations CLOs or cash flows Management reviews its

as-adjusted balance sheet non-GAAP financial measure

as an economic presentation of its total assets and liabilities

however it does not advocate that investors consider such non

G4AP financial measure in isolation from or as substitute for

financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP

SeparateAccountAssets and Liabilities and Collateral

Held Cinder Securities LendingAgreements

The separate account assets are maintained bye wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company which is registered life

insurance company in the United Kingdom and represent

segregated assets held for purposes offunding individual

and group pension contracts In accordance with GAAP the

Company records equal and offsetting separate account lia

bilities The separate account assets are not available to cred

itors of the Company and the holders of the pension contracts

have no recourse to the Company The net investment income

attributable to separate account assets accrues directly to

the contract owners and is not reported on the Companys

consolidated statements of income While BlackRock has no

economic interest in these assets or Liabitties BlackRock

earns an investment advisory fee for the service of managing

these assets on behalf of the clients

In addition the Company records on its consolidated state

ments of financial condition the collateral received under

securities lending agreements directly related to lending

securities held by separate account assets as its own asset

in addition to an equal and offsetting collateral liability forthe

obligation to return the collateral

Consolidated VIEs

As of December 312011 BlackRock consolidated five VIEs The

assets of these VIEs are not available to creditors of the Company

and the Company has no obligation to settle the liabilities of the

VIEs While BlackRock has no economic interest in these assets

or liabilities BlackRock earns an investment advisory fee for the

service of managing these assets on behalf of the clients
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December 31 2011

Segregated client assets

generating advisoryfees in

which BlackRock has no

economic Interest or liability

Separate

Account

GAAP Assets

Basis Collateral

Consolidated

VIEs

Consolidated

Sponsored

Investment

Funds

As

AdiustedDollor omounts in millions

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $3506 $196 $3310

Accounts receivable 1960 1960

Investments 1631 112 1519

Assets of consolidated variable interest entities 1693 1693

Separate account assets and collateral

held under securities lending agreements 39789 39789

Other assets 1169 1164

Sub-total 149748 139789 1693 313 7953

Goodwill and intangible assets net 30148 30148

Total assets $179896 $139789 $1693 $313 $38101

Liabilities

Accrued compensation and benefits $1383 $1383

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 923 923

Borrowings21 4790 4790

Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities 1583 1583

Separate account liabilities and collateral

liabilities under securities lending agreements 39789 39789

Deferred income tax liabilities 5323 5323

Other llabilitiesOi 743 37 706

Total liabilities 54534 39789 1583 37 13125

Equity

Total stockholders equity 25048 72 24976

Non-controlling interests 314 38 276

Total equity 25362 110 276 24976

Total liabilities and equity $179896 $1 39789 $1693 $313 $38101

Amount inciudes due from related parties deferred saies commissiono property and equipment and other assets

121
Amount includes oliort-terirr aiid Iong.term borrowuiys

131 Amouni iriclude.s due to reiated parties and other liabiiitieo

The following table presents selected significant components of BlackRocks GAAP consolidated statements of financial

condition at December31 2011 and 2010

Variance

December 31 December 31

2011 2010 Amount %Change

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $3506 $3367 $139 4%

Accounts receivable 1960 2095 35 6%l

Investments 1631 1540 91 6%

Goodwill and intangible assets net 30148 30317 169 1%
Otherassets1 1169 960 209 22%

Liabilities

Accrued compensation and benefits 1383 1520 137 9%
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 923 1068 145 14%
Borrowtng2 4790 3359 1431 43%

Deferred income tax liabilities 5323 5477 54 3%
Other liabilities0t 743 641 102 16%

Stockholdersequity 25048 26094 1046 4%
Ill

Includes due from related parties deferred value cummitniuno property and equipment and other aoeetn

121
Includes ohort-terrn borrowings convertible debentures at Decemher 3t 20t Sand loot-term borrowinqo

131
Includes duets related parties arid other liabrlntieo
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The following discussion summarizes the significant changes

in assets and liabilities These changes do not include assets

and liabilities that are equal and offsetting and have no impact

on BlackRocks stockholders equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2011 and 2010

included $196 million and $65 million of cash held by consoli

dated sponsored investment funds respectively See Liquidity

and Capital Resources for details on the change in cash and

cash equivalents during 2011

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December31 2011 decreased

$135 million from December31 2010 primarily reflecting

lower performance fee receivables at December31 2011

partially offset by higher receivables related to securities

lending revenue

Investments

BlackRock reports its investments on GAAP basis which

includes investments that are owned by sponsored invest

ment funds deemed to be controlled by Blackkock in accord

ance with GAAP and therefore consolidated even though

BlackRock may not own the majority of any such funds As

result management reviews its investments on an economic

basis which eliminates the portion of investments that do not

impact BlackRocks book value BlackRocks management

does not advocate that investors consider such non-GAAP

financial measures in isolation from or as substitute for

financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP

The Company presents total investments as adjusted to

enable investors to understand the portion of its investments

that are owned bythe Company net of non-controlling

interests as gauge to measure the impact of changes in net

non-operating gain loss on investments to net income loss

attributable to BlackRock Inc

The Company further presents total net economic investment

exposure net of deferred compensation investments and

hedged investments to reflect another gauge for investors

as the economic impact of investments held pursuant to de

ferred compensation arrangements is substantially offset by

change in compensation expense and the impact of hedged

investments is substantially mitigated by total return swap

hedges Carried interest capital allocations are excluded as

generally there is no impact to BlackRocks stockholders

equity as the balance fluctuates Finally the Companys

regulatory investment in Federal Reserve Bank stock which is

not subject to market or interest rate risk is excluded from the

Companys net economic investment exposure

Variance

December 31 December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount Change

Total investments GAAP $1631 $1540 $91 6%

Investments held by consolidated sponsored

investment funds 587 1397 1901 48%

Net exposure to consolidated investment funds 475 260 215 83%

Total investments as adjusted 1519 1403 116 8%

Federal Reserve Bank stock 328 325 1%
Carried interest 21 13 62%

Deferred compensation investments 65 76 11 14%

Hedged investments 43 25 18 72%

Totaleconomic investment exposure $1062 $964 $98 10%

Ill
At December 31 2011 and 2810 appruxirniateiy $587 miiihnn and $397 miiihnn respectiveiy ni BiackRocks tntai OAAP investments were maintained in spnnnsned investment funds that are

deemed tn he cnntrnlled hy BlacRnck in accordance with GAAP and thetefore ate consolidated even tlinugh BlacbRnck may rint econnmicafy own maturity at such hands

Total investments as adjusted at December31 2011 capital allocations partially offset by $280 million of sales/

increased $116 million from December 31 2010 resulting from maturities and $78 million of distributions representing return

$457 million of purchases/capital contributions $9 million of
of capital and return on investments

positive
market valuations and earnings from equity method The following table represents the carryingvalue of investments

investments and $8 million of net additional carried interest byasset type at December31 2011 and 2010

Variance

December 31 December 31

Dollar amounts in millions
2011 2010 Amount Change

Private equity $306 $277 $29 10%

Real estate 108 54 54 100%

Distressed credit/mortgage funds 217 267 50 19%

Hedgefunds/fundsofhedgefunds 167 97 70 72%

Other investment1 264 269 2%
Total economicinvestment exposure $1062 $964 $98 10%

Other inaentmentn primariiy inciude seed investments in hived income and equity funds/strategies as wet as U.K gnaernment securities heid far regnhatnry purposes
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The following table represents investments as adjusted measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 31 2011

Quoted Prices Significant Other

in Active Markets Other Significant Investments Investments at

for Identical Observable Unobservable Not Held December31

Oolloromounts irs millions Assets Level Inputs Level Inputs Level at FairValuec 2011

Total investments as adjusted $284 $130 $587 $518 $1519

01 Amount isrcisdes insestmonto ireid at cost amortized cost carried interest and equity method inueotments winch imrrciode investment companies which irr accordance with GAAP ale not accounted

for undera fair saise rneusmmre in accordarrce with GAAP certain equity method ioueoteeo do not accsorrt for botir their fioaociai aooeto arrd finaociai habiimitieo ardor fair oaiue measures therefore

the Companys ioueotrnermi in ouch eqrmity method inveotees may not represent fair uaiue

121 Amourmto iociude SackRocko portion of caoh arrd caoh eqmrioaiento other assets and hahihtieo tirat are conoohdated from non-VIE oporroored inoeotmerrt funds See Note Fair Vaioe Diocinoureo

for totai GAAP ioveotmeoto

GoodwiLl and IntangibLe Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets at December 31 201

decreased $169 millionfrom December31 2010 primarilydue

to $156 million of amortization expense related to finite-lived

intangibles

OtherAssets

Other assets at December31 2011 increased $209 million

from December 31 2010 primarily resultingfrom

$109 million increase in property and equipment due to

additional leasehold improvements and equipment including

capital expenditures related to the lease of U.K office space

located at Drapers Gardens and $51 million increase in tax

receivables

Accrued Compensation and Benefits

Accrued compensation and benefits at December31 2011

decreased $137 million from December31 2010 primarily

related to lower 2011 incentive compensation accruals

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at December 31 2011

decreased $145 million from December31 2010 resulting

from decreases in current income taxes payable and unittrust

payables

Borrowings

Borrowings at December31 2011 increased $1431 million

from December31 2010 primarily resulting from net proceeds

from new ssuances of long-term borrowings of $1496 mil

lion partially offset by conversions of the final $67 million of

convertible debt

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities at December31 2011

decreased $154 million primarily as result of revaluation

of certain deferred income tax liabilities primarilydueto

state tax election enacted U.K Japan and U.S state and

local legislation In addition the decrease included the

effects of temporary differences associated with deferred

stock compensation and investment income

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities at December 31 2011 increased $102 million

from December 31 2010 primarily resulting from an accrual

for U.K lease exit costs increases in deferred carried interest

and liabilities of consolidated funds partially offset by repay

ments to Barclays to settle certain non-interest bearing notes

assumed in the BGI Transaction and payment related to

U.K regulatory assessment

StockhoLders Equity

Total stockholders equity at December 31 2011 decreased

$1.0 billion from December 31 2010 principally resultingfrom

$2.8 billion of stock repurchases including $2.5 billion to

repurchase Bank of Americas remaining Ownership interest

in BlackRock and $239 million of employee tax withhold

ings related to employee stock transactions $1.0 billion of

cash dividend payments partially offset by $2.3 billion of net

income attributable to BlackRock and $497 million of stock-

based compensation expense

Liquidity and CapitaL Resources

BLackRock Cash Flows Excluding the Impact of

ConsoLidated Sponsored Investment Funds and VIEs

In accordance with GAAP BlackRock consolidates certain

BlackRock-sponsored investment funds and CLO5 notwith

standing the fact BlackRock may only have minority interest

if any in these funds or CLD5 As result BlackPocks consoli

dated statements of cash flows include the cash flows of con

solidated sponsored investment funds and CLO5 The Company

uses an adjusted cash flow statement which excludes the

impact of consolidated sponsored investment funds and CLOs

as supplemental non-GAAP measure to assess liquidity and

capital requirements The Company believes its cash flows

excluding the impact of the consolidated sponsored investment

funds and CLO5 provide investors with useful information on

the cash flows of BlackRock
relating to its ability to fund addi

tional operating investing and financing activities BlackRocks

management does not advocate that investors consider such

non-GAAP measures in isolation from or as substitute for its

cash flow presented in accordance with GAAP
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OperatingActivities

Sources of BlackRocks operating cash primarily include

investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue performance fees revenues from Blackock

Solutions and advisory products and services other revenue

and distribution fees BlackRock uses its cash to pay compen

sation and benefits distribution and servicing costs direct

fund expenses general and administration expenses interest

and principal on the Companys borrowings income taxes

dividends on BlackRocks capital stock capital expenditures

and to purchase co-investments and seed investments

Cash inflows from operating activities excluding the impact of

consolidated sponsored investment funds and VIEs primarily

include the receipt of investment advisory and administration

fees securities lending revenue and other revenue offset by

the payment of operating expenses incurred in the normal

course of business

InvestingActivities

Cash outflows from investing activities excluding the impact

ot consoSdated sponsored investmentfunds and VIEs forthe

yearended December31 2011 were$228 million and primarily

included $247 million of purchases of property and equipment

and $262 million of purchases of investments partially offset

by$247 million of net proceeds from sales and maturities of

investments and $34 million of return of capital from equity

method investees

FinancingActivities

Cash outflows from financing activities excludingthe impact

of consolidated sponsored investment funds and VIEs for the

year ended December31 2011 were $2414 million which

included $2.8 billion of stock repurchases including$2.5 billion

related to the repurchase of Bank of Americas remaining own

ership interest in BlackRock and $239 million for employee tax

withholdings related to employee stock transactions

$1.0 billion of cash dividend payments and $67 million for

convertible debt repayments Cash outflows from financing

activities were partially offset by cash inflows related to

$1496 million of net proceeds from long-term borrowings and

$56 million of other inflows including excess tax benefits from

stock-based compensation and proceeds from stock option

exercises

The following tables present reconciliation of the Companys consolidated statements of cash flows presented ona GAAP basis

to the Companys consolidated statements of cash flows excluding the impact of the cash flows of consolidated sponsored

investment funds and consolidated VIEs

Year ended December 31 2011

Dollar amounts in millions

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents end of veer

Impact on

Cash Flaws

of Consolidated

Sponsored

Investment

Funds

$65

42

24

65

GA4P

Basis

$3367

2826

204
2485

Impact on

Cash Flows of

Consolidated

VI Es

136

136

Cash Flows

Excluding

Impact of

Consolidated

Sponsored

Investment

Funds and VIEs

$3302

2648

228
2414

139 131

$3506 $196 $3310

Yearended December3l.2010

Cash Flows

Impact on Excluding

Cash Flows Impact of

of Consolidated Impact on Consolidated

Sponsored Cash Flows of Sponsored

GMP Investment Consolidated Investment

Dollaramounts in millions Basis Funds VIEs Funds and VIEs

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year $4708 $75 $9 $4624

Cashflowsfrom operating activities 2488 76 2565

Cash flows from investing activities 627 52 5751

Cash flows from financing activities 3170 118 3280

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents 32 32
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1341 10 1322

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $3367 $65 $3302
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Capital Resources

The Company manages its financial condition and funding to maintain appropriate liquidity for the business Capital resources at

December 31 2011 and 2010 were as follows

Subtotal

2011 credit facility undrawn

2007 credit facility undrawnOi

Total liquidity

Required regulatory capitalOr

Not applicable

The Company may nor be able to access such cash to use in its operating activities

Amount excludes St 34 million of undrawn amsunts at December31 2010 related to Lehman Commercial Paper irc Tire 2007 credit facility was terminated is March 20t

portion of tire required rngviatsry capital is partiaty slat witir cash and cash equivaieiits

Total liquidity improved by $1142 million during the year ended

December 312011 primarily reflectingthe additional borrowing

capacity under the 2011 credit facility compared with the 2007

credit facility

Duringthe year ended December 31 2011 the Companys net

capital requirements increased $299 million due to increases

related to certain European and Asia-Pacific regulated legal

entities

significant portion of the Companys $1519 million of total

investments as adjusted is illiquid in nature and as such

may not be readily convertible to cash

Short-term borrowings

The following describes the Companys short-term borrowing

arrangements which the Company has access to utilize

2011 Revolving Credit Facility

In March 2011 the Companyentered into five-year$3.5 billion

unsecured revolvingcreditfacilitythe 2011 creditfacility

which replaced the 2007 facility The 2011 creditfacility permits

the Company to request an additional $1.0 billion of borrowing

capacity subject to lender credit approval increasing the

overall size of the 2011 credit facility to an aggregate principal

amount not to exceed $4.5 billion Interest on borrowings

outstanding accrues at rate based on the applicable London

nterbank Offered Rate LBOR plus spread The 2011 credit

facility requires the Company not to exceed maximum leverage

ratio ratio of net debt to earnings before interest taxes depre

ciation and amortization where net debt equals total debt less

unrestricted cash of to which was satisfied with ratio of

approximately tot at December 31 2011

The 2011 credit facility provides back-up liquidity funds ongo

ing working capitalfor general corporate purposes and funds

various investment opportunities At December 312011 the

Company had $100 million outstanding underthis facility with

an interest rate of 1.27% and maturity duringJanuary 2012

DuringJanuary 2012 the Company rolled over the $100 million

in borrowings at an interest rate of 1.30% ends maturity dur

ing February 2012 During February 2012 the Company rolled

overthe $100 million in borrowings at an interest rate of 1.26%

and maturity during March 2012

Barclays has $255 million participation under the 2011 credit

facility

Commercial Paper Program

On October14 2009 BlackPock established commercial

paper program the CP Program under which the Company

could issue unsecured commercial paper notes the CP
Notes on private placement basis up to maximum

aggregate amount outstanding at anytime of$3 billion The

proceeds of the commercial paper issuances during 2011 were

used to fund portion of the repurchase of BlackRocks Series

Preferred Stock from affiliates of Merrill Lynch On May13

2011 BlackRock increased the maximum aggregate amount

that may be borrowed under the CP Program from $3.0 billion

to $3.5 billion The CP Program is currently supported by the

2011 creditfacility

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 BlackRock had no CP

Notes outstanding

Share Repurchase Approvals

In July 2010 BlackRock announced that its Board of Directors

the Board approved the repurchase of up to 5100000

shares to neutralize the dilutive effects of restricted stock

units and options that have been granted to employees that

will become dilutive over the next several years The shares

are to be repurchased with management discretion on the

timing of the repurchases The Company repurchased

618000 shares in open market transactions for approximately

$100 million in 2011.Asof December31 2011 theCompany

had repurchased approximately 1514000 shares and there

were 3586000 shares still authorized to be repurchased

In February 2012 the Board approved an increase in the

availability under the Companys existing share repurchase

program to allow for the repurchase of up to 5.0 million shares

of BlackRock common stock

Barclays Support of Certain Cash Funds

Barclays has provided capital support agreements to support

certain cash management products acquired by BlackRock in

the Bdl Transaction Pursuant to theterms of the capital sup

port agreements Barclays agreed to cover losses on covered

securities within the products in the aggregate of up to $2.2 bil

lion from December 12009 through December 12013 or until

certain criteria are met BlackRock and Barclays have proce

dures in place to determine loss events on covered securities

within the products and to ensure support payments from

December 31 December31 Variance

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 Amount Change

Cash and cash equivalents $3506 $3367 $139 4%

Cash and cash equivalents held by

consolidated sponsored investment fund 196 65 131 202%
3310 3302

3400 3400

2266 2266 100%
$6710 $5568 $1142 21%

$1196 $897 $299 33%
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Barclays At December 31 2011 Barclays remaining maximum

potential obligation in the aggregate under the capital support

agreements was $1.6 billion At December 31 2011 BlackRock

concluded that although these funds were variable interest

entities it was not the primary beneficiary of thesefunds

Net CapitaL Requirements

The Company is required to maintain net capital in certain

regulated subsidiaries within number ofjurisdictions which

is partially maintained by retaining cash and cash equivalents

in those jurisdictions As result such subsidiaries of the

Company may be restricted in their ability to transfer cash

between different jurisdictions and to their parents Additionally

transfers of cash between international jurisdictions including

repatriation to the United States may have adverse tax conse

quences that could discourage such transfers

BTC is chartered ass national bank that does not accept client

deposits and whose powers are limited to trust activities

Contractuat ObLigations Commitments and Contingencies

BTC provides investment management services including

investment advisory and securities lending agency services

to institutional investors and other clients BTC is subject

to various regulatory capital and liquid asset requirements

administered by Federal banking agencies

At December 31 2011 the Company was required to maintain

approximately $1196 million in net capital in certain regulated

subsidiaries including BTC and entities regulated by the FSA

in the United Kingdom and was in compliance with all appli

cable regulatory minimum net capital requirements

Undistributed Earnings of Foreign Subsidiaries

As of December 31 2011 the Company has not provided for

U.S federal and state income taxes on approximately$1 516

million of undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries

Such earnings are considered indefinitely reinvested outside

the United States The Companys current plans do not dem

onstrate need to repatriate these funds

The following table sets forth contractual obligations commitments and contingencies byyear of payment at December 312011

Dollar amounts in millions 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total

Contractual obligations and commitments

Short-term borrowings

Principal $100 $_ $100

Long-term borrowings

Principal 500 750 1000 2.450 4700

Interest 180 169 161 126 126 353 1115

Operating leases 120 131 121 110 99 814 1395

Purchaseobligations 101 80 65 22 11 279

Investment commitments 112 112

Total contractual obligations

and commitments 1113 1130 1347 258 236 3617 7701

Contingent obligations

Contingent distribution obligations 194 194 388

Total contractual obligations commitments

and contingent obligationsOi $1307 $1324 $1347 $258 $236 $3617 $8089

11 As nf December 31 2011 the Company had $281 muilion of net unrecognized tan bennfitn Dun to the unceltainty of timnmng and amounts that wiii oitimateiy he paid this anmusnt has been excinded

from the tabie above

Short-term Borrowings

At December 31 2011the Company had $100 million out

standing underthe 2011 creditfacilitywith an interest rate

of 1.27% ends maturityduringJanuary 2012 DuringJanuary

2012 the Company rolled overthe $100 million in borrowings

at an interest rate of 1.30% and maturity during February

2012 During February 2012 the Company rolled over the

$100 million in borrowings at an interest rate of 1.26% and

maturity during March 2012

Long-term Borrowings

At December 31 2O11the principal amount of long-term

borrowings was $4.7 billion Debt service and repayment

requirements are $680 million in 2012 $919 million in 2013

$1161 million in 2014 and $126 million in 2015 and 2016

2017 Notes

In September 2007 the Company issued $700 million in

aggregate principal amount of 6.25% senior unsecured notes

maturing on September15 2017 the 2017 Notes portion of

the net proceeds of the 2017 Notes was used to fund the initial

cash paymentforthe acquisition of the fund of funds business

of Quellos and the remainder was used for general corporate

purposes Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on

March 15 and September15 of each year or approximately

$44 million peryear The 2017 Notes may be redeemed prior

to maturity at anytime in whole or in part atthe option of the

Company eta make-whole redemption price

20122014 and 2019 Notes

In December 2009 the Company issued $2.5 billion in

aggregate principal amount of unsecured and unsubordinated

obligations These notes were issued as three separate series

of senior debt securities including $0.5 billion of 2.25% notes

$1.0 billion of 3.50% notes and $1.0 billion of 5.0% notes

maturing in December 2012 2014 and 2019 respectively Net

proceeds of this offering were used to repay borrowings under

our CP program which was used to finance portion of the

BGI Transaction and for general corporate purposes Interest

on these notes of approximately $96 million peryear is
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payable semi-annually in arrears on June10 and December10

of each year These notes may be redeemed prior to maturity

at any time in whole or in part at the option of the Company at

make-whole redemption price

2013 and 2021 Notes

In May 2011 the Company issued $1.5 billion in aggregate

principal amount of unsecured unsubordinated obligations

These notes were issued as two separate series of senior debt

securities including $750 million of 4.25% notes and $750

million offloating rate notes maturing in May 2021 and 2013

respectively Net proceeds of this offering were used to fund

the repurchase of BlackRocks Series Preferred Stock from

affiliates of Merrill Lynch Interest on the 4.25% notes due in

2021 2021 Notes is payable semi-annuallyon May24

and November24 of each year commencing November 24

2011 and is approximately $32 million per year Interest on the

floating rate notes due in 2013 2013 Floating Rate Notes

is payable quarterly on February 24 May 24 August24 and

November24 of each year The 2021 Notes may be redeemed

prior to maturity at any time in whole or in part at the option of

the Company at make-whole redemption price The 2013

Floating Rate Notes may not be redeemed at the Companys

option before maturity

In May 2011 in conjunction with the issuance of the 2013

Floating Rate Notes the Company entered into $750 million

notional interest rate swap maturing in 2013 to hedge the

future cash flows of the obligation at fixed rate of 1.03%

payable semi-annually on May24 and November24 of each

year commencing November 24 2011 The interest rate swap

effectively
converts the 2013 Floating Rate Notes to fixed

rate obligation

Operating Leases

The Company leases its primary office locations under agree

ments that currently expire through 2035 In connection with

certain lease agreements the Company is responsible for

escalation payments The contractual obligations table above

includes only guaranteed minimum lease payments for such

leases and does not project potential escalation or other

lease-related payments These leases are classified as oper

ating leases and as such are not recorded as Liabilities on the

consolidated statements offinancial condition

Purchase Obligations

In the ordinary course of business BlackRock enters into

contracts or purchase obligations with third parties whereby

the third parties provide services to or on behalf of BlackRock

Purchase obligations included in the contractual obligations

table above represent executory contracts which are either

non-cancelable or cancelable with penalty At December 31

2011 the Companys obligations primarily reflected standard

service contracts for portfolio market data office-related

services and third-party marketing and promotional services

Purchase obligations are recorded on the Companys finan

cial statements when services are provided and as such

obligations for services not received are not included in the

Companys consolidated statement of financial condition at

December 31 2011

Investment Commitments

At December 312011 the Company had 12 million of various

capital commitments to fund sponsored investment funds

includingfundsofprivateequityfunds real estatefunds and

distressed credit funds This amount excludes additional

commitments made byconsolidatedfundsoffundsto

underlying third-party funds as third-party non-controlling

interest holders have the legal obligation to fund the respec

tive commitments of such funds of funds Generally the timing

of the funding of these commitments is unknown and the

commitments are callable on demand at anytime priorto the

expiration of the commitment and are therefore presented

in 2012 These unfunded commitments are not recorded on

the Companys consolidated statements offinancial condi

tion.The above schedule does not include potentialfuture

commitments approved bythe Companys Capital Committee

but which are not yet legally binding The Company intends

to make additional capital commitments from time to time to

fund additional investment products for and with its clients

Carried Interest Claw-back

As general partner in certain investment funds including

private equity partnerships and certain hedge funds the

Company may receive certain carried interest cash distribu

tions from the partnerships in accordance with distribution

provisions of the partnership agreements The Company may

from time to time be required to return all or portion of such

distributions to the limited partners in the event the limited

partners do not achieve certain return as specified in the

various partnership agreements

Contingent Distribution Obligations

In November 2010 BlackRock entered into second amended

and restated global distribution agreement with Merrill Lynch

which requires the Companyto make payments to Merrill

Lynch contingent upon sales of products and level ofAUM

maintained in certain BlackRock products The economic

terms of the agreementwill remain in effect untilJanuary

2014 After such term the agreement will renew for one auto

matic three-year extension if certain conditions are satisf ied

The above schedule reflects the Companys estimated pay

ments for 2012 which due to uncertainty of asset levels and

future additional sales have been held constant for 2013

The following items have not been included in the contractual

obligations commitments and contingencies table

Compensation and Benefit Obligations

The Company has various compensation and benefit obliga

tions including bonuses commissions and incentive payments

payable defined contribution plan matching contribution

obligations and deferred compensation arrangements that

are excluded from the table above primarily due to uncertainties

in their payout periods These arrangements are discussed in

more detail in Notes 13 Stock-Based Compensation and

14 Employee Benefit Plans to the consolidated financial

statements beginning on page 106 of this Annual Report

Accrued compensation and benefits at December 31 2011

totaled $1383 million and included incentive compensation of

$1079 million deferred compensation of $91 miLlion and other
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compensation and benefits related obligations of $213 million

Substantially all of the incentive compensation bability was

paid in the first quarter of 2012 while the deferred compensa

tion obligations are payable over periods up to five years

Separate Account Liabilities

The separate account assets are maintained by wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company which isa registered life

insurance company in the United Kingdom and represent

segregated assets held for purposes offunding individual

and group pension contracts In accordance with GAAP the

Company records equal and offsetting separate account

liabilities The separate account assets are not available

to creditors of the Company and the holders of the pension

contracts have no recourse to the Company The net invest

ment income attributable to separate account assets accrues

directly to the contract owners and is not reported on the

Companys consolidated statements of income While

BlackRock has no economic interest in these assets or liabili

ties BlackRock earns an investment advisory fee for the

service of managing these assets on behalf of the clients At

December31 2011 the Company had $118.9 billion of assets

and offsetting liabilities on the consolidated statement of

financial condition The payment of these contractual obliga

tions is inherently uncertain and varies by customer As such

these liabilities have been excluded from the contractual

obligations table above

Indemnifications

In manyof the Companys contracts includingthe BGI MUM

and Quellos Transaction agreements BlackRock agrees to

indemnifythird parties under certain circumstances The

terms of the indemnities vary from contract to contract and the

amount of indemnification liability if any cannot be determined

and has not been included in the table above or recorded in

the Companys consolidated statement of financial condi

tion at December 312011 See further discussion in Note 12

Commitments and Contingencies to the consolidated financial

statements beginning on page 105 of this Annual Report

Acquisitions

In January 2012 BlackRock announced that it has agreed

to acquire Toronto-based Claymore Investments Inc

Claymore subject to customary closing conditions

Claymore is wholly owned independent Canadian subsid

iary
of Guggenheim Funds Services Group subsidiary of

Guggenheim Partners LLC The total consideration estimated

to be paid at closing will be approximately $210 million

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in

conformity with GAAP requires management to make esti

mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements

and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reporting periods Actual results could differ significantly

from those estimates Management considers the following

critical accounting policies important to understanding the

consolidated financial statements For summary of these

and additional accounting policies see Note Significant

Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements

beginning on page 81 of this Annual Report

Consolidation of Sponsored Investment Funds and

Securitization Products

Consolidation of sponsored investment funds and securitiza

tion products collectively investment products is deter

mined pursuant to ASC 810 Consolidotion The accounting

method used by the Company depends upon the influence the

Company has over its investee the investment product To the

extent that BlackRock can exert control overthe financial and

operating policies of the investment product which generally

exists if there is 50% or greatervoting interest or if partners

or members of certain products do not have substantive

rights BlackRock consolidates the investment product

For investment products in which BlackRocks voting

interest is less than 50% an analysis is performed to

determine if the investment product isa VIE or voting

rights entity Upon the determination that the investment

product is VIE further analysis as discussed below

is performed to determine if BlackRock is the primary

beneficiary PB of the investment product which would

require consolidation

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

Pursuentto ASC 810-10 certain investment products for

which the risks and rewards of ownership are not directly

linked to voting interests maybe deemed VIEs BlackRock

reviews factors including the rights of the equity holders and

obligations of equity holders to absorb losses or receive

expected residual returns to determine if the investment prod

uct is VIE BlackRock is required to consolidate VIE when

it is deemed to be the PB which is evaluated continuously as

facts and circumstances change

ASU 2010-10 Amendments to Stotement 167 for Certoin

Investment Funds ASU 2010-10 defers the application of

Statement of FinancialAccounting Standards SFAS
No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretotion No 46R for

certain investment funds including money market funds

The PB of VIE that meets the conditions of ASU 2010-10 is

the enterprise that has variable interest or combination

of variable interests including those of related parties that

absorbs the majority of the entitys expected losses receives

majority of the entitys expected residual returns or both

Effective January 2010 the PB of VIE that does not meet

the conditions for deferral in ASU 2010-10 is the enterprise

that has the power to direct activities of the entity that most

significantly impact the entitys economic performance and

has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive ben

efits that potentially could be significant to the VIE

Significant judgment is required in the determination of

whether the Company is the PB of VIE If the Company

together with its related parties is determined to be the PB

of VIE BlackRock will consolidate the entity In order to

determine whether the Company is the PB ofaVIE for entities

that meet the conditions of ASU 201 0-10 management must

make significant estimates and assumptions of probable

future cash flows and assign probabilities to different cash
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flow scenarios Assumptions made in such analyses include

but are not limited to market pricea of securities market

interest rates potential credit defaults on individual securities

or default rates on portfolio
of securities gain realization

liquidity or marketability of certain securities discount rates

and the probability of certain other outcomes

In the normal course of business the Company is the manager

of various types of sponsored investment vehicles including

As of December 31 2011 BlackRock was the manager of over

20 CLO5/CDO5 and other securitization entities including the

four aforementioned CLOs in which BlackRock in accordance

with ASU 2009-17 was determined to be the PB which

required BlackiRock to consolidate these VIEs BlackRock was

deemed to be the PB because it has the power to direct the

activities of the CLO that most significantly impactthe entitys

economic performance and has the right to receive benefits

that potentially could be significant to the VIE At December

31 2011 the Company had $1655 million and $1583 million

in assets and liabilities respectively on its consolidated

statement of financial condition related to these consolidated

CLO5 In addition the Company recorded appropriated

retained earnings for the difference between the assets and

liabilities as the OLD noteholders not BlackRock ultimately

will receive the benefits or absorb the losses associated with

the CLOs assets and liabilities The changes in the assets and

liabilities of these CLOs have no impact on net income attrib

utable to BlackRock or its cash flows Excluding outstanding

management fee receivables the Company has no risk of loss

with its involvement with these VIEs

At December31 2011 BlackRock was determined to be the PB

of one sponsored private equity investmentfund of funds in

which it had non-substantive investment and was deemed

to absorb the majority of the variability due to its de facto

third-party relationships with other partners in the fund

which limits the
ability of the partners to transfer or sell their

interests without BlackRocks consent as the general partner

of the fund At December 31 2011 the Company had recorded

$7 million $31 million and $38 million in cash and cash equiv

alents private equity investments and nonredeemable non-

controlling interests of consolidated VI Es respectively on its

consolidated statement of financial condition related to this

VIE The changes in the assets and liabilities of this VIE have

no impact on net income attributable to BlackRock Excluding

outstanding management fee receivables the Company has

no risk of loss with its involvement with this VIE

collateralized debt obligations CDDs or CLO5 that do not

meet the conditions 0fASU 2010-10 and sponsored invest

ment funds which may be considered VIEs At December31

2011 the Company consolidated five VIEs includingfour CLO5

and one sponsored private equityfund

At December 31 2D11the following balances related to the

five VIEs consolidated on the Companys consolidated state

ment of financial condition

Consolidation of Voting Rights Entities

Total

Consolidated

VIEs

To the extent that BlackRock can exert control over the

financial and operating policies of the investee which

generally exists if there is 50% or greatervoting interest

or if partners or members of certain products do not have

substantive rights BlackRock consolidates the investee

The Company as general partner or managing member of certain

sponsored investmentfunds generally is presumed to control

funds that are limited partnerships or limited liability companies

Pursuant to ASC 810-20 Control of Portnerships ond Similar

Entities ASC 810-20 the Company reviews such investment

vehicles to determLne if such presumption can be overcome

by determining if other non-affiliated partners or members of

the limited partnership or limited liabilitycompany have the

substantive ability to dissolve liquidate the investmentvehicle

or otherwise to remove BlackRock as the general partner or

managing member without cause based on simple unaffiliated

majorityvote or have other substantive participating rights If the

investment vehicle is not VIE and the presumption of control is

not overcome BlackRock will consolidate the investmentvehicle

At December 31 2011 and 2010 as result of consolidation of

various investment products deemed to be voting rights
enti

ties including products where BlackRock owns 50% or greater

ofthevotingrightsof the product undertheconsolidation

policies described above the Company had the following bal

ances on its consolidated statements offinancial condition

December31 December31

_______________________________
2011 2010

$196 $65

Dollar amounts in millions

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Trading investments 214 60

Other investments 373 337

Other assets

Other liabilities 37 10
Non-controlling interests 276 95

BlackRocks net interests

in consolidated

investment funds $475 $260

Sponsored

Private

Eauitv FundDollar amounts in millions CLO5

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Cash and cash equivalents $47 $7 $54

Bank loans bonds and other investments 1608 31 1639

Liabilities of consolidated VIEs

Borrowings 1574 1574
Other liabilities

Appropriated retained earnings 72 72
Non-controlling interests of consolidated VIEs 38 38
Total BlackRock net interests in consolidated VIEs
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The Company retained the specialized accounting of these

investment funds pursuant to ASC 810-10 VIEs ncluding

consolidated sponsored investment fund and CLOs were

excluded from the balances above as these balances are

reported separately on the consolidated statements of

financial condition

Investments

Equity Method Investments

For equity investments where BlackRock does not control the

investee and where the Company is notthe PB of VIE but

can exert significant
influence over the financial and operating

policies
of the investee the Company uses the equity method

of accounting The evaluation of whether the Company exerts

control or significant influence overthe financial and opera

tional policies of its investees requires significant judgment

based on the facts and circumstances surrounding each

individual investment Factors considered in these evaluations

may include the type of investment the Legal structure of the

investee the terms and structure of the investment agree

ment including investor voting or other rights the terms of

BlackRocks advisory agreement or other agreements with the

investee any influence BlackRock may have on the governing

board of the investee the legal rights of other investors in the

entity pursuant to the funds operating documents and the rela

tionship between BlackRock and other investors in the entity

Substantially all of BlackRocks equity method investees are

investment companies that record their underlying invest

ments at fairvalue Therefore under the equity method of

accounting BlackPocks share of the investees underlying

net income predominantly represents fairvalue adjustments

in the investments held bythe equity method investees

BlackRocks share of the investees underlying net income or

loss is based upon the most currently available informa

tion and is recorded as non-operating income expense for

investments in investment companies or as other revenue for

operating advisory corn pany investments which are recorded

in other assets since such investees are considered to bean

extension of BlackRocks core business

At December 2011 the Company had $476 million and

$80 million of equity method investments including equity

method investments held for deferred compensation

reflected within investments and other assets respectively

and at December 31 2010 the Company had $583 million and

$58 million of equity method investees reflected in invest

ments and other assets respectively

Impairment of Investments

The Companys management periodically assesses its

equity method available-for-sale held-to-maturity and

cost investments for impairment If circumstances indicate

that impairment mayexist investments are evaluated using

market values where available or the expected future cash

flows of the investment If the undiscounted expected future

cash flows are lower than the Companys carrying value of the

investment an impairment charge is recorded in the consoli

dated statement of income

When the fairvalue of an available-for-sale security is

lower than cost the Company evaluates the security to

determine whether the impairment is considered to be

other-than-temporary

In making this determination for equity securities the

Company considers among other factors the length of time

the security has been in loss position the extent to which

the securitys market value is less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the securitys issuer

and the Companys ability and intentto hold the security

for length of time sufficient to allow for recovery of such

unrealized losses If the impairment is considered other-than-

temporary charge is recorded in the consolidated statement

of income

In making this determination for debt securities the Company

considers whether the Company has the intent to sell

the security it is more likelythan not that the Company

will be required to sellthe security before recovery or the

Company does not expect to recover the entire amortized

cost basis of the security If the Company does not intend to

sell security and it is not more likely than notthat it will be

required to sell the security but the security has suffered

credit loss the credit loss will be bifurcated from the total

impairment and recorded in earnings with the remaining portion

recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income

Evaluation of securities impairments involves significant

assumptions and management judgments which could dif

fer from actual results and these differences could haves

material impact on the Companys consolidated statements

of income

Fair VaLue Measurements

Hierarchy of Fair Value In puts

The provisions of ASC 820-10 establish hierarchythat

prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value and requires companies to disclose the fair value of their

financial instruments according to the fair value hierarchy i.e

Levell and inputs as defined Thefairvalue hierarchy

gives the highest priority to quoted prices unadjusted in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest

prioritytc unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities measured and reported atfair value are

classified and disclosed in one of the following categories

Level Inputs

Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the reporting date

Level assets may include listed mutual funds includingthose

accounted for under the equity method of accounting as these

mutualfunds are investment companies that have publicly

available net asset values NAys which in accordance

with GAAP are calculated underfairvalue measures and the

changesareequaltotheearningsofsuchfunds ETFs and

public equities and certain exchange traded derivatives

Level Inputs

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that

are not active quotes from pricing services or brokers for

which the Company can determine that orderlytransactions
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took place at the quoted price or that the inputs used to arrive

at the price were observable and inputs otherthan quoted

prices that are observable such as models or other valuation

methodologies As practical expedient the Company relies

on the NAV or its equivalent of certain investments as their

fair value

Level assets in this category may include debt securities

bank loans short-term floating rate notes and asset-

backed securities securities held within consolidated hedge

funds certain equity method limited partnership interests

in hedgefundsvalued based on NAVswheretheCompeny

has the ability to redeem at the measurement date or within

the near term without redemption restrictions restricted

public securities valued at discount as well as overthe-

counter derivatives including interest and inflation rate

swaps and foreign exchange currency contracts that have

inputs to the valuations that generally can be corroborated

by observable market data

Level Inputs

Unobservable inputs for the valuation of the asset or liability

which may include non-binding broker quotes Level assets

include investments for which there is little if any market

activity These inputs require significant management judgment

or estimation Certain investments that are valued using NAV5

and are subject to current redemption restrictions that will not

be Lifted in the nearterm are included in Level

Level assets in this category generally include general and

limited partnership interests in private equity funds funds

of
private equityfunds real estate funds hedge funds

funds of hedge funds direct private equity investments held

within consolidated funds bonds and bank loans

Level inputs include the most currently available informa

tion including capital accounts for its partnership interests

in various alternative investments which may be adjusted by

using the returns of certain market indices BlackRocks

$702 million of Level investments or43% of total GAAP invest

ments at December31 2011 primarily included the above

mentioned co-investments Many of these investees are

investment companies which record their underlying invest

ments atfairvalue based onfairvalue policies established

by management of the underlying fund which could include

BlackRock employees Fairvalue policies atthe underlying

fund generally utilize pricing/valuation information including

independent appraisals from third-party sources however

in some instances currentvaluation information for illiquid

securities or securities in markets that are not active may

not be availablefrom anythird-party source or fund manage

ment may conclude that the valuations that are available

from third-party sources are not reliable In these instances

fund management may perform model-based analytical

valuations that may be used to value these investments

Level liabilities in this category include borrowings of CLOs

valued based upon non-binding single broker quotes

Significance of Inputs

The Companys assessment of the significance of particular

inputto the fairvalue measurement in its entirety requires judg

ment and considers factors specific to the financial instrument

Pricing Services and Broker Quotes

significant
amount of inputs used to value equity and debt

securities are sourced from well-recognized third-party pricing

vendors Generally prices obtained from pricing vendors are

categorized as Level inputs for identical securities traded

in active markets and as Level for other similar securities if

the vendor uses observable inputs in determining the price

Annually BlackRock reviews both the valuation methodology

includingthe general assumptions and methods used to value

various asset classes and operational process with these

vendors In addition one quarterly basis meetings are held

with the vendors to identify any significant changes to the

vendors processes

In addition quotes obtained from brokers generally are non

binding and categorized as Level inputs However if the

Company is able to determine that market participants have

transacted for the asset in an orderly manner near the quoted

price or if the Companycan determine that the inputs used bythe

broker are observable the quote is classified as Level input

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Levels 12 and

During the year ended December 312010 the Company

reclassified approximately $47 million of net investments out

of Level predominantly to Level The majority of the net

reclassifications were related to investments that the

Company values using NAV or capital account and it

currently has the ability to redeem in the near term

Changes in Valuation

Changes in value on $1116 million of investments will impact

the Companys non-operating income expense $52 million

will impact accumulated other comprehensive income

$442 million are held at cost or amortized cost and the remaining

$21 million related to carried interest has no impact on non

operating income expense As of December31 2011 changes

in fairvalue of approximately$587 million of such investments

within consolidated sponsored investment funds will impact

BlackRocks net income loss attributable to non-controlling

interests expense on the consolidated statements of income

BlackRocks net exposure to changes in fair value of such con

solidated sponsored investmentfunds was $475 million

GoodwiLL and Intangible Assets

At December31 2011 and 2010 the carrying amounts of the

Companys goodwill and intangible assets were as follows

Dollor omounts in millions

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Indefinitelived

Management contracts 15188 15188

Trade names/

trademarks 1403 1403

License

Finitelived net of

accumulated amortization

Management contracts 755 911

Other

Total goodwill and

intangibleassets $30148 $30317

December 31

2011

$12792

December31

________
2010

$1 2805
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The value of advisory contracts acquired in business acquisi

tions to manage AUM in proprietary open- and closed-end

investment funds as well as collective trust funds and certain

other commingled products without specified termination

date is generally classified as indefinite-lived intangible

assets The assignment of indefinite lives to such investment

fund contracts is based upon the assumption that there

is no foreseeable limit on the contract period to manage

these funds due to the likelihood of continued renewal at

little or no cost In addition trade names/trademarks are

considered indefinite-lived intangibles as they are expected

to generate cash flows indefinitely Goodwill represents the

cost of business acquisition in excess of the fair value of

the net assets acquired In accordance with the applicable

provisions of ASC 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other ASC

350 indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill are

not amortized Finite-lived management contracts which

relate to acquired separate accounts and funds with speci

fied termination date are amortized over their remaining

expected useful lives which at December 31 2011 ranged

from years to 13 years with weighted-average remaining

estimated useful life of 5.4 years

Goodwill

The Company assesses its goodwill for impairment at least

annually considering such factors as the book value and the

market capitalization of the Company The impairment test

performed as of
July 31 2011 indicated no impairment charge

was required The Company continues to monitor its book

value per share as compared to closing prices of its common

stock for potential indicators of impairment At December31

2011 the Companys common stock closed at $178.24 which

exceeded its book value per share of approximately$14C.07

after excluding appropriated retained earnings

Indefinite-lived and finite-lived intangibles

The Company considers if triggering events have occurred

that may indicate fair values have declined below their

respective carrying amounts one quarterly basis Triggering

events may include significant adverse changes in the

Companys business financial results legal or regulatory

environment the loss of key personnel or other events If

triggering event has occurred the Company performs

assessments which include review of all significant assump

tions that would be used to value the asset to determine if

any intangible assets are potentially impaired The Company

performs such assessments of its intangible assets at least

annually In its assessment of management contracts and

trade names/trademarks the Company considers various

factors includingAUM revenue basis points projected AUM

growth rates operating margins tax rates and discount

rates to determine whether the carryingvalues of each

intangible asset unit of account are potentially impaired and

whether the indefinite-life classification is still appropriate

If potential impairment circumstances are considered to

exist the Company will perform an impairment test using an

undiscounted cash flow analysis If the asset is determined to

be impaired the difference between the book value of the

asset and its current fairvalue is recognized as an expense

could differ from these cash flow estimates which could

materially impact the impairment conclusion

In addition management judgment is required to estimate

the period over which finite-lived intangible assets will con

tribute to the Companys cash flows and the pattern in which

these assets will be consumed change in the remaining

useful life of any of these assets or the reclassification of an

indefinite-lived intangible asset to finite-lived intangible

asset could have significant impact on the Companys

amortization expense which was $156 million $160 million

and $147 million for the years ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively

In 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company performed impairment

tests that indicated no impairment charges were required the

classification of indefinite-lived versus finite-lived intangibles

was still appropriate and no changes to the expected lives

of the finite-lived intangibles were required The Company

continuously monitors various factors includingAUM for

potential indicators of impairment

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes underthe asset

and liability method prescribed by ASC 740 Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

future tax consequences attributable to temporary differ

ences between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases

using currently enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which

the differences are expected to reverse The effect of change

in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized

in income in the period that includes the enactment date

The application of ASC 740 requires management to make

estimates of the ranges cf possible outcomes the probability

of favorable or unfavorable tax outcomes and potential inter

est and penalties related to such unfavorable outcomes that

require significant management judgment Actual future tax

consequences relating to uncertain tax positions may be

materially different than the Companys current estimates

At December31 2011 BlackRock had $349 million of gross

unrecognized tax benefits of which $226 million if recog

nized would affect the effective tax rate

In accordance with ASC 740 management is required to esti

mate the timing of the recognition of deferred tax assets and

liabilities make assumptions about the future deductibility

of deferred income tax assets and assess deferred income

tax liabilities based on enacted tax rates forthe appropriate

taxjurisdictions to determine the amount of such deferred

income tax assets and liabitties At December 31 2011 the

Company had deferred tax assets of $6 million and deferred

tax liabilities of approximately$5323 million on the consoli

dated statement of financiaL condition Changes in the calcu

lated deferred tax assets and liabilities may occur in certain

circumstances including statutory income tax rate changes

statutory tax law changes changes in the anticipated timing

of recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities or changes

in the structure or tax status of the Company ASC 740

requires the Company to assess whether valuation allow

ance should be established against its deferred income tax

assets based on consideration of all available evidence both
in the period in which the impairment occurs Actual results



positive and negative using more likely than not standard

This assessment considers among other matters the nature

frequency arid severity of recent losses forecast of future

profitability the duration of statutory carry back and carry

forward periods the Companys experience with tax attributes

expiring unused and tax planning alternatives

At December 312011 the Company had recorded deferred

tax asset of$1 10 million for unrealized investment losses

however no valuation allowance has been established because

the Company expects to be able to carry back portion of its

unrealized capital losses when realized hold certain equity

method investments which invest in fixed income securities

over period sufficientfor them to recover their unrealized

losses and generate future capital gains sufficient to offset

the unrealized capital losses Based on the weight of available

evidence it is more likelythan not thatthe deferred tax asset

will be realized However changes in circumstance could

cause the Company to revalue its deferred tax balances with

the resulting change impacting the consolidated statements

of income in the period of the change Such changes may be

material to the Companys consolidated financial statements

See Note 19 Income Taxes to the consolidated financial

statements beginning on page 116 of thisAnnual Reportfor

further details

The Company records income taxes based upon its estimated

income tax liability or benefit The Companys actual tax liabil

ity or benefit may differfrom the estimated income tax liability

or benefit The Company had current income taxes receivable

of approximately $108 million and current income taxes pay

ableof$102 million at December31 2011

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory and administration fees are recognized

as the services are performed Such fees are primarily based

on pre-determined percentages of the market value ofAUM or

in the case of certain real estate clients net operating income

generated bythe underlying properties Investment advisory

and administration fees are affected by changes in AUM

including market appreciation or depreciation foreign

exchange translation and net subscriptions or redemptions

Investment advisory and administration fees for investment

funds are shown net of fees waived pursuant to contractual

expense limitationsofthefundsorvoluntarywaivers

The Company contracts with third parties and related par

ties for various fund distribution and shareholder servicing

to be performed on behalf of certain funds managed by the

Company Such arrangements generally are priced ass por

tion of the management fee paid bythefund In certain cases

the fund takes on the primary responsibility for payment for

services such that BlackRock bears no credit risk to the third

party The Company accounts for such retrocession arrange

ments in accordance with ASC 605-45 Revenue Recognition

Principle Agent Considerations ASC 605-45 and records

its management fees net of retrocessions Retrocessions

for the years ended December 3120112010 and 2009 were

$928 million $831 million and $611 million respectively The

Company has additional contracts for similar services with

third parties which due to the terms of the contracts are

recorded as distribution and servicing costs and thus not

netted on the consolidated statements of income

The Company earns revenue by lending securities on behalf of

clients primarily to brokerage institutions Such revenues are

accounted for on an accrual basis The securities loaned are

secured by collateral in the form of cash and securities gener

ally rangingfrom 102% to 112% of the value of the loaned

securities The revenue earned is shared between the

Company and the funds or otherthird-party accounts man

aged bythe Company from which the securities are borrowed

Forthe years ended December31 20112010 and 2009

securities lending revenue totaled $397 million $325 million

and $36 million respectively and is recorded in investment

advisory administration fees and securities lending revenue

on the consolidated statements of income

Investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue are reported together as the fees for these

services often are agreed upon with clients as bundled fee

The Company receives performance fees or incentive

allocations from alternative investment products and certain

separately managed accounts These performance fees are

earned upon exceeding specified relative and/or absolute

investment return thresholds Such fees are recorded upon

completion of the measurement period which varies by

product or account and could be monthly quarterly annually

or longer Forthe years ended December31 2011 2010 and

2009 performance fee revenue totaled $371 million $540 mil

lion and $202 million respectively In addition the Company

receives carried interest from certain alternative products

upon exceeding performance thresholds BlackRock may be

required to return all or part of such carried interest depend

ing upon performance of thesefunds Therefore BlackRock

records carried interest subject to such claw-back provisions

in investments or cash to the extentthat it is distributed on

its consolidated statements offinancial condition Carried

interest is realized and recorded as performance fees upon

the earlier of the termination of the investment fund or when

the likelihood of claw-back is mathematically improbable The

Company records realized carried interest as performance

fees on its consolidated statements of income The Company

records deferred carried interest liability to the extent it

receives cash or capital allocations related to carried interest

priorto meeting the revenue recognition criteria At December31

2011 and 2010 the Company had $33 million and $23 million

respectively of deferred carried interest recorded in other

liabilities on the consolidated statements offinancial condi

tion The ultimate recognition of revenue if any for these

products is unknown

Fees earned for BlockRock Solutions which include advisory

services are recorded as services are performed and are

determined using some or all of the following methods fixed

fees ii percentages of various attributes of advisory AUM

orvalue of positions on theAloddin platform and perfor

mance fees if contractual thresholds are met Revenue earned

on advisory assignments was comprised of one-time advisory

and portfolio structuring fees and ongoing fees based on AUM

of the respective portfolio assignment For the years ended

December31 2011 2010 and 2009 BlockRock Solutions and

advisory revenue totaled $510 million $460 million and

$477 million respectively

Adjustments to revenue arising
from initial estimates history

cally have been immaterial since the majority of BlackRocks
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investment advisory and administration revenue is calculated

based on thefairvalue of AUM and since the Company does

not record performance revenues until performance thresh

olds have been exceeded and the likelihood of claw-back is

mathematically improbable

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Not Yet Adopted

Amendments to Fair Value Measurements and DiscLosures

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

CFASB issued ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs ASU 2011-

04 which amends the existing fairvalue guidance within

ASC 820 The amendments include

application of the concepts of highest and best use

and valuation premise only to measuring the fair value of

nonfinancial assets that is it does not apply to financial

assets or any liabilities an exception to fair value

measurement principles for financial assets and financial

liabilities and derivatives with offsetting positions in mar

ket risks or counterparty credit risk which allows an entity

to measure the fairvalue of the net risk position when

several criteria are met extension of the prohibition of

blockage factor application to all fair value measurements

model forthe fairvalue measurement of instruments

classified within an entitys shareholders equity which is

consistent with the guidance of measuring the fair value

for liabilities additional disclosures for fairvalue mea
surements categorized in Level of the fair value hierarchy

including quantitative information about unobservable

inputs used ii description of the valuation processes

used by the entity and iii qualitative discussion about

the sensitivity of the measurements disclosure of the

level in the fairvalue hierarchy of assets and liabilities not

recorded at fair value but where fairvalue is disclosed and

disclosure of any transfers between Levels and of

the fairvalue hierarchy not just significant transfers

The provisions of ASU 2011-04 are effective forthe Company

for the interim period beginning after December 15 2011 The

adoption 0fASU 2011-04 is not expected to materially impact

BlackRocks consolidated financial statements

Amendments to Goodwill Impairment Testing

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Testing

Goodwill for Impairment ASU 2011-08 which amends the

guidance in ASC 350 on testing goodwill for impairment Under

the revised guidance entities testing goodwill for impairment

have the option of performing qualitative assessment before

calculating the fair value of the reporting unit i.e step of

the goodwill impairment test If entities determine on the

basis of qualitative factors that the fair value of the report

ing unit is more likely
than notto be less than the carrying

amount the two-step impairment test would be required The

amendments are effective for the Company for annual and

interim goodwill impairment tests performed beginning after

December15 2011 .The provisions of SU 2011-08 if elected to

be adopted are not expected to materially impact BlackRocks

consolidated financial statements

Quantitative and QuaLitative Disclosures

About Market Risk

AUM Market Price Risk

BlackRocks investment advisory and administration fees

are primarily comprised of fees based on percentage of

the value of AUM and in some cases performance fees

expressed ass percentage of the returns realized on AUM At

December31 2011 the majorityof the Companys investment

advisory and administration fees was based on average or

period-end AUM of the applicable investmentfunds or sepa

rate accounts Movements inequity market prices interest

rates/credit spreads foreign exchange rates or all three could

cause the value of AUM to decline which would result in lower

investment advisory and administration fees

Corporate Investments Portfolio Risks

As leading investment management firm BlackRock devotes

significant resources across all of its operations to identifying

measuring monitoring managing and analyzing market and

operating risks including the management and oversight

of its own investment portfolio The Board of Directors

of the Company has adopted guidelines for the review of

investments to be made by the Company requiring among

other things investments be reviewed by the Companys

Capital Committee which consists of senior officers of the

Company and that certain investments may be referred to

the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors depending on

the circumstances for approval

In the normal course of its business BlackRock is exposed

to equity market price risk interest rate/credit spread risk

and foreign exchange rate risk associated with its corporate

investments

BlackRock has investments primarily in sponsored invest

ment products that invest ins variety of asset classes including

real estate private equity and hedge funds Investments

generally are made for co-investment purposes to establish

performance track record to hedge exposure to certain

deferred compensation plans or for regulatory purposes

Currently the Company has seed capital hedging program

in which it enters into total return swaps to hedge exposure to

certain investments At December 312011 the outstanding

total return swaps had an aggregate notional value of approxi

mately $43 million

At December31 2011 approximately $587 million of

BlackRocks total investments were maintained in sponsored

investment funds deemed to be controlled by BlackRock in

accordance with GAAP and therefore are consolidated even

though BlackRock may not own majority of such funds

Excludingthe impact of the Federal Reserve Bank stock car

ried interest investments made to hedge exposure to certain

deferred compensation plans and certain equity investments

that are hedged via the seed capital hedging program the

Companys economic exposure to its investment portfolio is

as follows
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December 31 December 31 Vana nce

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 201 Amount Change

Total investments GMP $1631 $1540 $91 6%

Investments held by consolidated sponsored

investment funds 587 397 190 48%
Net exposure to consolidated investment funds 475 260 215 83%

Total investments as adjusted 1519 1403 116 8%

Federal Reserve Bank stock 328 325 1%
Carried interest 21 13 62%
Deferred compensation investments 65 76 11 14%

Hedged investments 43 25 18 72%
Totaleconomic investmentexposure $1062 $964 $98 10%

The economic investment exposure of the portfolio is pre

sented in either the equity market price or the interest rate/

credit spread risk disclosures below

Equity Market Price Risk

At December 312011 the Companys net exposure to market

price risk in its investment portfolio was approximately

$596 million of the Companys totaleconomic investment

exposure Investments subject to market price risk include

private equity and rest estate investments hedge funds

and fund of funds as well as mutual funds The Company

estimates that 10% adverse change in market prices would

result ins decrease of approximately $59.6 million in the car

rying value of such investments

Interest Rate/Credit Spread Risk

At December 312011 the Company was exposed to interest-

rate risk and credit spread risk as result of approximately

$466 milion of investments in debt securities and sponsored

investment products that invest primarily in debt securities

Management considered hypothetical 100 basis point fluc

tuation in interest rates or credit spreads and estimates that

the impact of such fluctuation on these investments in the

aggregate would result in decrease or increase of approxi

mately$3 million in the carrying value of such investments

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

As discussed above the Company invests in sponsored

investment products that invest in variety of asset classes

The carrying value of the total economic investment exposure

denominated in foreign currencies primarily the pound

sterling and euro was $152 million 10% adverse change in

the applicable foreign exchange rates would result in approxi

mately $1 5.2 million decline in the carrying value of such

investments

Risk Factors

As leading investment management firm risk is an inherent

part of BlackRocks business Global markets bytheir nature

are prone to uncertainty and subject participants to variety

of risks While BlackRock devotes significant resources across

all of its operations to identify measure monitor manage and

analyze market and operating risks BlackRocks business

financial condition operating results or non-operating results

could be materially adversely affected or the Companys stock

price could decline as result of any of the following risks

Risks ReLated to BtackRocks Business and Competition

Changes in the value levels of the capital commodities or

currency markets or other asset classes could lead to

decline in revenues and earnings

BlackRocks investment management revenues are primarily

comprised of fees based on percentage of the value ofAUM

and in some cases performance fees expressed as per

centage of the returns earned on AUM Movements in equity

debt commodity real estate or alternative investment market

prices interest rates or foreign exchange rates could cause

the value of AU to decrease

the returns realized on AUM to decrease

clients to withdraw funds in favor of products in markets

that they perceive offer greater opportunity that BlackRock

may not serve

clients to rebalance assets away from products that

BlackRock manages into products that it may not manage

clients to rebalance assets away from products that earn

higher fees into products with lower fees and

an impairment to the value of intangible assets and goodwill

The occurrence of any of these events could result in lower

investment advisory administration and performance fees or

earnings and cause the Companys stock
price to decline

Poor investment performance could lead to the loss of

clients and decline in revenues and earnings

The Companys management believes that investment

performance including the efficient delivery of beta for

passively managed products is one of the most important

factors for the growth and retention ofAUM Poor investment

performance relative to applicable portfolio benchmarks or

to competitors could reduce revenues and cause earnings to

decline as result of

exiatingchents withdrawing funds in favor of better per

forming products which could result in lower investment

advisory and administration fees

the diminishing ability to attractfunds from existing and

new clients

the Company earning minimal or no performance fees and

an impairment to the value of intangible assets and goodwill



The determination to provide support to particular

products from time to time or provide securities lending

indemnifications may reduce earnings or other investments

in the business

BlackRock may at its option from time to time support invest

ment products through capital or credit support Such support

and indemnifications utilize capital thatwould otherwise be

available for other corporate purposes Losses or prohibitions

on such support and indemnifications orfailure to have or de

vote sufficient capital to support products and securities tend

ing could have an adverse impact on revenues and earnings

Changes in the value levels of the capitol markets or

other asset classes could lead to decline in the value of

investments that BlackRock owns

At December31 2011 BlackRocks neteconomic investment

exposure of approximately$1 .1
billion in its investments see

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

primarily resulted from co-investments and seed investments

in its sponsored investment funds decline in the prices of

equityor debt securities orthevalue of real estate or other

alternative investments within or outside the United States

could lower the value of these investments and result in de

cline of non-operating income and an increase in the volatility

of Blackpocks earnings

Continued capital losses on investments could have adverse

income tax consequences

The Company may generate realized and unrealized capital

losses on seed investments and co-investments Realized

capital losses may be carried back three years and carried

forward five years and offset against realized capital gains for

federal income tax purposes The Company has unrealized

capital losses for which deferred tax asset has been estab

lished In the event such unrealized losses are realized the

Company may not be able to offset such losses within the

carryback or carryforward period or from future realized

capital gains in which case the deferred tax asset will not

be realized The failure to utilize the deferred tax asset could

materially increase BlackRocks income tax expense

The soundness of other financial institutions could

adversely affect Blacklriock

Financial services institutions are interrelated as result

of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships

BlackRock and the products and accounts that it manages

have exposure to many different industries and counterparties

and routinely execute transactions with counterparties in the

financial services industry including brokers and dealers

commercial banks investment banks clearing organizations

mutual and hedge funds and other institutional clients Many

of these transactions expose BlackRock orthefunds and

accounts that it manages to credit risk in the event of default

of its counterparty or client While BlackRock regularly con

ducts assessments of such risk posed by its counterparties

the risk of non-performance by such parties is subject to

sudden swings in the financial and credit markets including the

effects of the European sovereign debt crisis and/or collapse

of the Eurozonefinancial system There is no assurance that

any such losses would not materially and adversely impact

BlackRocks revenues and earnings

The failure or negative performance of products of other

financial institutions could lead to reducedAUM in similar

products of BlackRock without regard to the performance of

BackRocks products

The failure or negative performance of products of other

financial institutions could lead to loss of confidence in

similar products of BlackRock without regard to the perfor

mance of BlackRocks products Such negative contagion

could lead to withdrawals redemptions and liquidity issues

in such products and have material adverse impact on the

Companys AUM revenues and earnings

Loss of employees could lead to the loss of clients and

decline in revenues

The ability to attract and retain quality personnel has contrib

uted significantly to BlackRocks growth and success and is

important to attracting and retaining clients The marketfor

qualified fund managers investment analysts financial

advisers and other professionals is competitive There can be

no assurance that the Company will be successful in its

efforts to recruit and retain required personnel Loss of per

sonnel could have material adverse effect on the Company

BlockRocks investment advisory contracts may be

terminated or may not be renewed by clients and the

liquidation of certain funds maybe accelerated at the option

of inve stars

Separate account end commingled trust clients mayterminate

their investment management contracts with BlackRock or

withdraw funds on short notice The Company has from time

to time lost separate accounts and could in the future lose

accounts or significantAUM due to various circumstances

such as adverse market conditions or poor performance

Additionally BlackRock manages its U.S mutualfunds

closed-end funds and exchanged-traded funds under man

agement contracts with the funds that must be renewed and

approved by the funds boards of directors annually majority

of the directors of each such fund are independent from

BlackRock Consequently there can be no assurance that the

board of directors of each fund managed by the Company will

approve the funds management contract each year or will not

condition its approval on the terms of the management con

tract being revised in way that is adverse to the Company

Further the governing agreements of many of the Companys

private
investment funds generally provide that subject to

certain conditions investors in those funds and in some

cases independent directors of those funds may remove

BlackRock as the investment adviser general partner orthe

equivalent of the fund or liquidate the fund without cause by

simple majority vote resulting in reduction in the manage

ment or performance fees as well as the total carried interest

Black Rock could earn

Failure to comply with client contractual requirements

and/or guidelines could result in damage awards against

BlackRock and loss of revenues due to client terminations

When clients retain BlackRock to manage assets or provide

products or services on their behalf they typically specify

guidelines or contractual requirements that the Company is

required to observe in the provision of its services Afailure
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to comply with these guidelines or contractual requirements

could result in damage to BlackRocks reputation or in its

clients seeking to recover losses withdrawing theirAUM or

terminating their contracts any of which could cause the

Companys revenues and earnings to decline

Competitive fee pressures could reduce revenues and profit

margins

The investment management industry includingthe offering
of

exchange traded funds is
highly competitive and has

relatively

low barriers to entry To the extent that BlackRock is forced to

compete on the basis of price it may not be able to maintain its

currentfee structure Fee reductions on existing orfuture new

business could cause revenues and profit margins to decline

Performance fees may increase revenue and earnings

volatility

portion of the Companys revenues is derived from perfor

mance fees on investment and risk management advisory

assignments Performance fees represented $371 million or

4% of total revenue forthe year ended December 312011

In most cases performance fees are based on relative or

absolute investment returns although in some cases they are

based on achieving specific service standards Generally the

Company is entitled to performance fees only if the returns

on the related portfolios exceed agreed-upon periodic or

cumulative return targets If these targets are not exceeded

performance fees for that period will not be earned and if

targets are based on cumulative returns the Company may

not earn performance fees in future periods Performance

fees will varyfrom period to period in relation to volatility
in

investment returns and the timing of revenue recognition

causing earnings to be more volatile

Additional acquisitions may decrease earnings and harm

the Companys competitive position

BlackRock employs variety of strategies intended to

enhance earnings and expand product offerings in orderto

improve profit margins These strategies have included hiring

smaller-sized investment teams and acquisitions of investment

management businesses such as the MLIM Quellos and BGI

Transactions These strategies may not be effective and fail

ure to successfully develop and implement these strategies

may decrease earnings and harm the Companys competitive

position in the investment management industry In the event

BlackRock pursues additional acquisitions it may not be able

to find suitable businesses to acquire at acceptable prices

and it may not be able to successfully integrate or realize the

intended benefits from such acquisitions

Risks Related to BLackRocks Operations

Failure to maintain adequate infrastructure could impede

BlackRocks productivity and growth

The Companys infrastructure including its technologi

cal capacity data centers and office space is vital to the

competitiveness of its business The failure to maintain an

adequate infrastructure commensurate with the size and

scope of its business including any expansion could impede

the Companys productivity and growth which could cause

the Companys earnings or stock price to decline AdditionalLy

the overall stability of the euro and the possible withdrawal

of one or more individual Eurozone countries from the euro

could pose operational risks to the Company or the funds and

accounts that it manages as result of the adverse impacts

that such issues may have on the Companys trading clearing

or counterparty relationships

Failure to maintain adequate business continuity plans

could have material adverse impact an BlackRock and its

products

significant portion of BlackRocks critical business opera

tions is concentrated in few geographic areas including

San Francisco California NewYork NewYork and London

England major earthquake fire terrorist or other cata

strophic event could result in disruption to the business

The failure of the Companyto maintain updated adequate

business continuity plans including secure backup facilities

systems and personnel could impede the Companys ability
to

operate upon disruption which could cause the Companys

earnings or stock price to decline

Operating in international markets increases BlackRocks

operational regulatory and other risks

As result of BlackRocks extensive international business

activities the Company faces increased operational regulatory

reputational and foreign exchange rate risks The failure of the

Companys systems of internal control to properly mitigate

such additional risks or of its operating infrastructure to sup

port such international activities could result in operational

failures and regulatory fines or sanctions which could cause

the Companys earnings or stock price to decline

Failure to maintain technological advantage could lead to

loss of clients and decline in revenues

key element to BlackRocks continued success is the abil

ity to maintain technological advantage in providingthe

sophisticated risk analytics incorporated into BlackRooks

Aladdin technology platform that support investment advisory

and BPS clients Moreover the Companys technological

and software advantage is dependent on number of third

partieswho providevarioustypesof datsand software.The

failure of these third parties to provide such data or software

could result in operational difficulties and adversely impact

BlackRocks ability to provide services to its investment

advisory and BRS clients There can be no assurance that the

Company will be able to maintain this technological advantage

or be able to effectively protect and enforce its intellectual

property rights in these systems and processes

Failure to implement effective information and cyber

security policies procedures and capabilities could disrupt

operations and cause financial losses that could result in

decrease in BlackRocks earnings or stock price

BlackRock is dependent on the effectiveness of its information

and cyber security policies procedures and capabilities to

protect its computer and telecommunications systems and

the data that reside on or are transmitted through them An

externally caused information security incident such as

hacker attack virus or worm or an internally caused issue

such as failure to control access to sensitive systems could

materially interrupt business operations or cause disclosure or
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modification of senaitive or confidential client or competitive

information and could result in materialfinancial loss loss of

competitive position regulatory actions breach of client con

tracts reputational harm or legal liability which in turn could

cause decline in the Companys earnings or stock price

The failure of key vendor to BlackRock to fulfill its

obligations could have material adverse effect on

BlackRock and its products

BlackRock depends on number of key vendors forvarious

fund administration accounting custody and transfer agent

roles and other operational needs The failure or inability of

BlackRock to diversify its sources for key services or the failure

of any keyvendors to fulfill their obligations could lead to opera

tional issues for the Company and in certain products which

could result in financial losses for the Company and its clients

Failure to manage risks in operating BlackRocks securities

lending program for clients could lead to loss of clients and

decline in revenues and liquidity

The size of BlackRocks securities lending programs increased

significantly with the completion of the BGI Transaction As

part of these programs BlackRock must manage risks

associated with ensuring thatthe value of the collateral

held against the securities on loan does not decline in value

or become ilhquid and that its nature and value complies with

regulatory requirements and investment requirements ii the

potential that borrower defaults or does not return loaned

security on timely basis and iii errors in the settlement of

securities daily mark-to-market valuations and collateral col

lection The failure of the Companys controls to mitigate these

risks could result in financial losses for the Companys clients

that participate in its securities lending programs as well as

for the Company

Risks Related to Relationships with Bank of America/Merritt

Lynch PNC Barclays and Other Institutional Investors

Merrill Lynch is an important distributorofBlackRocks

products and the Company is therefore subject to risks

associated with the business of Merrill Lynch

Under global distribution agreement entered into with

Merrill Lynch Merrill Lynch provides distribution portfolio

administration and servicing for certain BlackRock investment

management products and services through its various distri

bution channels The Company may not be successful in dis

tributing products through Merrill Lynch or in distributing
its

products and services through other third-party distributors

If BlackRock is unable to distribute its products and services

successfully or if it experiences an increase in distribution-

related costs BlackRocks business results of operations or

financial condition may be materially and adversely affected

Loss of market share within Merrill Lynchs Global Wealth

Investment Management business could harm operating

results

significant portion of BlackRocks revenue has historically

come from AUM generated by Merrill Lynchs Global Wealth

Investment Management GWIM business BlackRocks

abilityto maintain strong relationship within GWIM is

material to the Companys future performance If one of the

Companys competitors gains significant additional market

share within the GWIM retail channel at the expense of

BlackRock then BlackRocks business results of operations

or financial condition may be negatively impacted

The failure of Barclays to fulfill its commitments or

the inadequacy of the support provided under certain

capital support agreements in favor of number of cash

management funds acquired in the BGI Transaction could

negatively impact such funds and BlackRock

Barclays has provided capital support agreements through

December 2013 or until certain criteria are met to support

certain cash management products which were acquired

by BlackRock in the BGI Transaction The failure of Barclays

to fulfill its obligations under these agreements or the

inadequacy of the support provided could cause our clients

to suffer losses and BlackRock to suffer reputational and

other adverse impacts For discussion on the capital support

agreements see Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and Capital Resources Barclays Support of Certain

Cash Funds

PNC and Barclays have each agreed to vote as stockholders

in accordance with the recommendation of BlackRocks

Board of Directors and certain actions will require special

board approval or the prior approval of PNC and Barclays

PNC and Barclays have agreed to vote all of their voting shares

in accordance with the recommendation of BlackPocks

Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of their

respective stockholder agreements with BlackRock As con

sequence if the shares held by PNC and Barclays constitute

substantial portion of the outstanding voting shares matters

submitted to stockholdervote that require majority or

plurality of votes for approval including elections of directors

will have substantial number of shares voted in accordance

with the determinations of the BlackRock Board of Directors

This arrangement has the effect of concentrating signifi

cant block of voting control over BlackRock in its Board of

Directors whether or not stockholders agree with any particu

lar determination of the Board At December31 2011 PNC and

Barclays owned approximately 24.0% and 2.2% respectively

of BlackRocksvotingcommon stock

large portion of BlackRocks capital stock is held bya

small group of significant shareholders Future sales of our

common stock in the public market by the Company or its

large stockholders could adversely affect the trading price

of our common stock

As of December31 2011 PNC and Barclays owned 21.0%

and 19.7% of the Companys capital stock respectively The

Company has entered into registration rights agreements with

PNC and Barclays as well as the institutional investors who

purchased shares of BlackRock capital stock in connection

with the BGI Transaction The registration rights agreements

which include customary piggyback registration provisions

may continue to allow the respective stockholders to caUse

us to file one or more registration statements for the resale

of their respective shares of capital stock and cooperate

in certain underwritten offerings Sales by us or our large

stockholders of substantial number of shares of our com

mon stock in the public market pursuant to registration rights
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or otherwise or the perception that these sales might occur

could cause the market price of our common stock to decline

LegaL and Regulatory Risks

BlackRock is subject to extensive regulation in the United

States and internationally

BlackRocks business is subject to extensive regulation in

the United States and around the world See the discussion

under the heading Business Regulation Violation of

applicable laws or regulations could result in fines tempo

rary or permanent prohibition of the engagement in certain

activities reputational harm and related client terminations

suspensions of personnel or revocation of their licenses

suspension or termination of investment adviser or broker-

dealer registrations or other sanctions which could have

material adverse effect on BlackRocks reputation business

results of operations or financial condition and cause the

Companys earnings or stock price to decline

BlackRock maybe adve rsely impacted by legal and

regulatory changes in the United States and internationally

As previously mentioned on July 21 2010 the DFA was

signed into law in the United States The DFA is expansive in

scope and requires the adoption of extensive regulations and

numerous regulatory decisions in order to be implemented

The adoption of these regulations and decisions will in large

measure determine the impact of the DFA on BlackRock

The DFA and its regulations and other new laws or regulations

or changes in enforcement of existing laws or regulations in the

United States or internationally could adversely impactthe

scope or profitabilityof BlackRocks business activities could

require BlackRock to change certain business practices and

could expose BlackRock to additional costs including

compliance and tax costs and liabilities as well as reputational

harm Regulatory changes could also lead to business

disruptions could adversely impact the value of assets in

which BlackRock has invested on behalf of clients and/or via

seed or coinvestments and to the extent the regulations

strictly control the activities of financial services firms could

make it more difficult for BlackRock to conduct certain

business activities or distinguish tselffrom competitors

Failure to comply with the Advisers Act and the Investment

CompanyAct and related regulations could result in

substantial harm to BlackRocks reputation and results of

operations

Certain BlackRock subsidiaries are registered with the SEC

under theAdvisers Act and BlackRocks U.S mutual funds and

exchange traded funds are registered with the SEC under the

Investment Company Act The Advisers Act imposes numer

ous obligations and fiduciary duties on registered investment

advisers including record-keeping operating and marketing

requirements disclosure obligations and prohibitions on

fraudulent activities The Investment CompanyAct imposes

similar obligations as well as additional detailed operational

and compliance requirements on investment advisers to

registered investment companies The failure of any of the

relevant subsidiaries to comply with the Advisers Act or the

Investment Company Act could cause the SEC to institute

proceedingsand imposesanctionsforviolationsofeitherof

these acts including censure termination of an investment

advisers registration or prohibition to serve as adviser to

SEC-registered funds and could lead to litigation by investors

in those funds or harm to the Companys reputation any of

which could cause its earnings or stock price to decline

Failure to comply with ERISA regulations could result in

penalties and cause the Companys earnings or stock price

to decline

Certain BlackRock subsidiaries are subject to ERISA nd to

regulations promulgated thereunder insofar as they act as

fiduciary under ERISA with respect to benefit plan clients

ERISA and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code

impose duties on persons who are fiduciaries under ERISA

prohibit specified transactions involving ERISA plan clients

and provide monetary penalties forviolations of these prohibi

tions The failure of any of the relevant subsidiaries to comply

with these requirements could result in significant penalties

that could reduce the Companys earnings or cause its stock

price to decline

BlackRock is subject to banking regulations that may limit

its business activities

Becausethetotalequityownership interestof PNC in

BlackRock exceeds certain thresholds BlackRock is deemed

to be non-bank subsidiary of PNC which is regulated as

financial holdingcompany underthe Bank HoldingCompany

Act of 1956 as amended As non-bank subsidiary of PNC

BlackRock is subject to banking regulation includingthe

supervision and regulation of the Federal Reserve Such bank

ing regulation limits the activities and the types of businesses

that BlackRock may conduct The Federal Reserve has broad

enforcement authority over Blackpock including the power

to prohibit BlackRock from conducting any activitythat in the

Federal Reserves opinion is unauthorized or constitutes an

unsafe or unsound practice in conducting BlackRocks busi

ness and to impose substantial fines and other penalties for

violations Any failure of PNC to maintain its status as finan

cial holding company could result in substantial limitations

on certain BlackRock activities and its growth In addition

BlackRocks trust bank subsidiary is subject to regulation by

the 0CC and is subject to capital requirements established

by the 0CC The 0CC has broad enforcement authority over

BlackRocks trust bank subsidiary Also provisions of the DFA

referred to as the Volcker Rule could to the extent the final

Volcker Rule is determined to applyto BlackRocks activities

affect the method by which BlackRocl invests in and operates

its investmentfunds including private equity funds hedge

funds and fund offunds platforms Being subject to banking

regulation including potentiallythe Volcker Rule may put

BlackRock at competitive disadvantage because most of its

competitors are not subject to these limitations

Failure to comply with laws and regulations in the United

Kingdom other member states of the European Union Hong

Kong Japan Australia and other non-U.S.jurisdictions in

which BlackRock operates could result in substantial harm

to BlackRocks reputation and results of operations

The FSA regulates BlackRocks subsidiaries in the United

Kingdom Authorization bythe FSA is required to conduct any

financial services-related business in the United Kingdom
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underthe Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 The FSAs

rules made under thatAct govern firms oapital resources

requirements senior management arrangements conduct

of business interaction with clients and systems and con

trols Breaches of these rules may result ins wide range of

disciplinary actions against the Companys U.K-regulated

subsidiaries

In addition these subsidiaries and other European subsidiar

es branches or representative offices must complywith

the pan-European regime established by the Markets in

Financial Instruments Directive MiFID which regulates the

provision of investment services and activities throughout

the EEA as well as the Capital Requirements Directive which

delineates regulatory capital requirements As discussed

under BusinessRegulation in the aftermath of the financial

crisis the European Commission set out detailed plan to

complete the EUs financial reform outlining number of

initiatives to be reflected in new or updated directives regula

tions and recommendations TheAlternative Investment Fund

Managers Directive AIFMD which became effective on

July 21 2011 must be implemented by EU member states by

July 22 2012 Compliance with the AIFMDs requirements may

restrict alternative investmentfunds marketing and place

additional compliance obligations in the form of remuneration

policies capital requirements leverage oversight valuation

stakes in EU companies the domicile of custodians and

liquidity management UCITS IV was required to be adopted

in the national law of each EU member state by July 2011

UCITS IV was adopted into national law by the United Kingdom

prior to the deadline but several other EU member states

are still in various stages of the adoption process There are

also European Commission consultations in process that

are intended to improve retail investor protection including

UCITS which addresses among other items custodial liability

Recent proposals on packaged retail investment products

PRIPs are to be implemented through the strengthening

of MiFID standards for non-insurance PRIPs revisions to

the Insurance Mediation Directives selling standard for all

insurance-based PRIPs and new investor disclosure require

ments for all PRIP5 through separate EU legislative process

In the United Kingdom the Bribery Act 2010 came into force in

July 2011 and has required the implementation of additional

procedures on the Companys U.K-regulated subsidiaries

In addition retaildistribution review initiated by the FSA is

expected to change how investment advice is paid for in the

United Kingdom for all investment products Final retail dis

tribution rules were published in 2011 with implementation to

occur at the end of 2012 Ins similar area further European

Commission proposal the European Market Infrastructure

Regulation EMIR when implemented will require the

central clearing of standardized DTC derivatives

In Japan certain BlackRock subsidiaries are subject to the

Financial Instruments and Exchange Law the FIEL and

the Law Concerning InvestmentTrusts and Investment

Corporations These laws are administered and enforced by

the Japanese Financial Services Agency the JFSA which

establishes standards for compliance including capital

adequacy and financial soundness requirements customer

protection requirements and conduct of business rules The

JFSA is empowered to conduct administrative proceedings

that can result in censure fines the issuance of cease and

desist orders or the suspension or revocation of registrations

and licenses granted under the FIEL

In Australia BlackRocks subsidiaries are subject to various

Australian federal and state laws and certain subsidiaries

are regulated by the Australian Securities and Investments

Commission the ASIC and the Australian Prudential

Regulation Authority The ASIC regulates companies and

financial services in Australia and is responsible for promoting

investor creditor and consumer protection Failure to comply

with applicable law and regulations could result in the cancel

lation suspension orvariation of the relevant subsidiaries

licenses in Australia

The activities of certain BlackRock subsidiaries in Hong Kong

are subject to the Securities and Futures Drdinance the

SF0 which governs the securities and futures markets and

regulates among others offers of investments to the public

and provides for the licensing of intermediaries The SF0 is

administered bythe Securities and Futures Commission the

SFC The SEC is also empowered underthe SF0 to establish

standards for compliance as well as codes and guidelines

The relevant BlackRock subsidiaries and the employees

conducting any of the regulated activities specified in the SF0

are required to be licensed with the SFC and are subject to

the rules codes and guidelines issued by the SEC from time to

time Failure to comply with the applicable laws regulations

codes and guidelines issued bythe SEC could result in the

suspension or revocations of the licenses granted by the SFC

There are similar legal and regulatory arrangements in force

in many other non-U.S jurisdictions where BlackRocks sub

sidiaries conduct business or where the funds and products it

manages are organized Failure to comply with laws and regu

lations in any of these jurisdictions could result in substantial

harm to BlackRocks reputation and rasults of operation

Legal proceedings could adversely affect operating results

financial condition and cash flows fora particular period

Many aspects of BlackRocks business involve substantial

risks of legal liabitty The Company and certain of its subsid

iaries have been named as defendants in various legal actions

including arbitrations class actions and other Litigation

arising in connection with BlackRocks activities From time

to time BlackRock receives subpoenas or other requests for

information from various U.S and non-U.S governmental and

regulatory authorities in connection with certain industry-

wide company-specific or other investigations or proceed

ings Additionally certain of the investment funds thatthe

Company manages are subject to lawsuits any of which could

potentially harm the investment returns of the applicable

fund or result in the Company being liable to the funds for any

resulting damages

Forward-looking Statements

This report and other statements that BlackRock may make

may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning

of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act with respect

to BlackRocks future financial or business performance

strategies or expectations Forward-looking statements

are typically
identified by words or phrases such as trend
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potential opportunity pipeline believe comfortable

expect anticipate current intention estimate posi

tion assume outlook continue remain maintain

sustain seek achieve and similar expressions orfuture

or conditionalverbs such as will would should could

may or similar expressions

BlackRock cautions that forward-Looking statements are

subject to numerous assumptions risks and uncertainties

which change overtime Forward-Looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made and BlackRock assumes

no dutyto and does not undertake to update forward-looking

statements Actual results could differ materially from those

anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results

could differ materially from historical performance

In addition to risk factors previously disclosed in BlackRocks

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC reports and

those identified elsewhere in this report the folLowing factors

among others could cause actual results to differ materially

from forward-Looking statements or historical performance

11 the introduction withdrawal success and timing of busi

ness initiatives and strategies changes and volatility in

political economic or industry conditions the interest rate

environment foreign exchange rates or financial and capital

markets which could result in changes in demand for prod

ucts or services or in the value of assets under management

the relative and absolute investment performance of

BlackRocks investment products the impact of increased

competition the impact of future acquisitions or dives

titures the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings

the extent and timing of any share repurchases the

impact extent and timing of technological changes and the

adequacy of intellectuaL property and information security

protection the impact of legislative and regulatory actions

and reforms including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform

and Consumer Protection Act and regulatory supervisory

orenforcement actions of government agencies relating

to BlackRock Barclays Bank PLC Barclays orlhe PNC

Financial Services Group Inc PNC 10 terrorist activities

international hostilities and natural disasters which may

adversely affect the general economy domestic and local

financial and capital markets specific industries or BlackRock

11 the ability to attract and retain highly talented profes

sionals 12 fluctuations in the carryingvaLue of BlackRocks

economic investments 13 the impact of changes to tax

legislation including taxation on products or transactions

which could affect the value proposition to clients and gener

ally the tax position of the Company 14 BlackRocks success

in maintainingthe distribution of its products 15 the impact

of BlackRock electing to provide support to its products from

time to time and 16 the impact of problems at otherfinancial

institutions orthe failure or negative performance of products

atotherfinancial institutions
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REPORTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Managements Report on InternaL ControL

Over Financia Reporting

Management of BlackRock Inc the Company is responsible

for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is

defined in Rules 13a-1 5f and 15d-1 5f under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as process designed by

or under the supervision of the Companys principal executive

and principal financial officers or persons performing similar

functions and affected by the Companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable as

surance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America and includes those policies and

procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation offinancial

statements in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and that

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made

only in accordance with the authorizations of management

and directors of the Company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over

financial reporting including the
possibility

of collusion or

improper management override of controls materialmis

statements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or

detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation

of effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting

to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions orthat

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys

internal control overfinancial reporting as of December31

2011 based on the criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this

assessment management concluded that as of December31

2011 the Companys internal control over financial reporting

is effective

The Companys independent registered public accountingfirm

has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

February 28 2012

the Companys assets that could have material effect on

the financial statements



Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of BlackRock Inc

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting

of BlackRock Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Fromework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

The Companys management is responsiblefor maintaining

effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over finan

cial reporting included in the accompanying Managements

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys inter

nal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the

Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control overfinancial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis forour opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting isa pro

cess designed by or underthe supervision of the companys

principal executive and principal
financial officers or persons

performing similarfunctions and effected by the companys

board of directors management and other personnel to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reLiability offinancial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted ac

counting principles.Acompanys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable

detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dis

positions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation offinancial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and provide reasonable assurance regard

ing prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition

use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over

financial reporting includingthe possibility of colLusion or

improper management override of controls material misstate

ments due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected

on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the

effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting

to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions orthat

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December31 201 based on the criteria established

in Internal Control lntegrotedFromework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations oftheTreadway

Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated statement offinancial condition asof

December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements

of income comprehensive income changes in equity and cash

flows for the year then ended of the Company and our report

dated February 28 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on

those consolidated financial statements

New York New York

February 28 2012
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Report of Independent Registered
Pubtic Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors snd Stockholders of BlackRock Inc

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidated statements

of financial condition of Blackpock Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the

related consolidated statements of income comprehensive

income changes in equity and cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 312011 These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our
responsibility

is to express an opinion on

the financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards

of the Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An

audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements

presentfairly in all material respects the financial position of

BlackRock Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2011 and

2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31

2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December31 2011 based on criteria established in Internol

ControllntegrotedFromework issued bythe Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our

report dated February 28 2012 expressed an unqualified opin

ion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

New York New York

February 28 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Dollar amounts in millions except per share data

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Due from related parties

Investments

Assets of consolidated variable interest entities

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank loans and other investments

Separate account assets

Collateral held under securities lending agreements

Deferred sales commissions net

Property and equipment net of accumulated depreciation of $483 and $426 at

December 312011 and 2010 respectively

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization of $751 and $615 at

December 31 2D1 and 2010 respectively

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets

LiabiLities

Accrued compensation and benefits

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to related parties

Short-term borrowings

Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Convertible debentures

Long-term borrowings

Separate account liabilities

Collateral liabilities under securities lending agreements

Deferred income tan liabilities

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies Note 12

Temporary equity

Redeemable non-controlling interests

Permanent Equity

BlackRock Inc stockholders equity

Common stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 500000000 at December31 2011 and 2010 Shares issued

39880380 and 131.923624 at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Shares outstanding 138463135 and 131216561 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Series non-voting participating preferred stock $0.01 par value

Sharesauthorized150000000at December31 2011 and 2010 issued

and outstanding 38328737 and 571 08553 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Series non-voting participating preferred stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 6000000 at December31 2011 and 2010 Shares issued

and outstanding 1517237 and 2866439 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Appropriated retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Escrow shares common at cost 3603 shares held at December 31 2011 and 2010

Treasury stock common at cost 1413642 and 703460 shares held at December 31

2011 and 2010 respectively

Total BlackRock Inc stockholders equity

Nonredeemable non-controlling interests

Nonredeemable non-controlling interests of consolidated variable interest entities

Total permanent equity

Total liabilities temporary equity and permanent equity __________

See accompanyind totes to consolidated financial statements

December 31

2011

December 31

2010

$3506 $3367

1960 2095

142 150

1631 1540

54 93

1639 1312

118871 121137

20918 17638

38 66

537 428

17356 17512

12792 12805

452 316

$179.896 $178459

$1383 $1520

923 1068

22 57

100 100

1574 1278

67

4690 3192

118871 121137

20918 17638

5323 5477

721 584

154534 152125

92

20275

5046

72

127

218
25048

184

38

25270

Si 79.896

22502

3723

75

196

111

26094

189

45

26328

$178459
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CONSOLiDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Yearended December31

Dollar amounts in millions except per share data 201 2010 2009

Revenue

Investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue

Related parties $5303 $4893 $2616

Other third parties 2593 2397 1210

Total investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue 7896 7290 3826

Investment advisory performance fees 371 540 202

BlackRock Solutions and advisory 510 460 477

Distribution fees 100 116 100

Other revenue 204 206 95

Total revenue 9081 8612 4700

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits 3199 3097 1802

Distribution and servicing costs

Related parties 226 368

Other third parties 381 182 109

Amortization of deferred sales commissions 81 102 100

Directfund expenses 563 493 95

General and administration 1415 1354 779

Restructuring charges 32 22

Amortization of intangible assets 156 160 147

Total expenses 5832 5614 3422

Operating income 3249 2998 1278

Non-operating income expense
Net gain loss on investments 46 179 42

Net gain loss on consolidated variable interest entities 18 35
Interest and dividend income 34 29 20

Interest expense 176 50 68
Total non-operating income expense 114 23

Income before income taxes 3135 3021 1272

Income tax expense 796 971 375

Net income 2339 2050 897

Less

Net income loss attributable to redeemable non-

controlling interests

Net income loss attributable to nonredeemable non-

controlling interests 16 20

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc $2337 $2063 $875

Earnings pershare attributabLe to BlackRock Inc

common stockholders

Basic $12.56 $10.67 $6.24

Diluted $12.37 $10.55 $6.11

Cash dividends declared and paid per share $5.50 $4.00 $3.12

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 184265367 190554510 136669164

Diluted 187116410 192692.047 139481449

See accompanyins notes to csiissidsted finsnciai statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Veerended December31

Dolloromountsinmilliono 2011 2D1D 2DD9

Net income $2339 $2D5D $897

Dthercomprehenoive income

Chenge in net unreelized geine loemee from eveileble-for-eele

inveetmente net of tex

Unreelized holding geine lloeeee net oftex 141

Lene recleenificetion edjuetment included in net income 119

Net chenge from eveileble-for-eele inveetmente net of tex 0i 15

Minimum peneion liebility edjuetment

Foreign currency trenetetion edjuetmente 27 74

Dther compreheneive income bee 31 9D

Compreheneive income 2308 2D5D 987

Leee Compreheneive income lone ettributable to non-controlling intereete 113 22

Comprehensive income attributable to BlackRock Inc $2306 $2063 $965

Ill
The tee benefit lexoeneel on enieahzed teidien gains linseed web $3 melee $121 muten end $101 mdten in 2ht 20th end 2n00 ieenectieeie

see accemnanyinn nntee te cennntdeted financial etaternents

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Dieidendn paid net of dieidend enpenee ton

Add itionel

Paid-in FeTained

Capitol Earningo

$18474 $1982

t75

onoestedPSLls 1421

tobeaoe of commen stock from oscrow ogent

in connection with Quellos Tronsaction

Stock-booed compensation
3lt

Issuance of ohoreo to Barcboys 8529

losusoce of ohoreoto institutional inoestoro 2800

Issuonce of common shares for

contingent conoideration

FNC preferred stock capital contribution

Merrill Lynch cash capital contnibutisn

losuance of common shareo reloted to

employee stock transootiono

Employee tan beneft withholdings rebsted to

employee otock tronoactiono

Net tao benefit shortf oil frnm stock-booed

oompensstion

Minimum pension liability odisotment

Sobocniptions/redemptions/distributionl

non-controlling interest holders

Nat consolidations deconsolidations of

sponsored inoeotment funds2

Other change in non-controlling interests

toreign currenoytranolation adiostments

Change in net snrealioed gain lots from

ooaiboble-for-sale_inoeotments
net oftao

Decembnr3l.2009 $22129 $2438

Redeemable

Non- Non-

Total redeemable

Shores Treaoury
Stock- Non- Total Interests

Held in Stock boldero controlling Permanent Temporary

Escrow Common Equity Interests Equity Equity

$t43 $58 $t20t9 $225 $12294 $28t

875 22 895

217

8.529

2880

14 14

19 28

14

74 74 74

Accumo bated

Other

Compte- Common

Dotbor omounte in mdlbono

Cecember 31.2008

Net income

he no lee

Income

Lossl

$t8t

controlling

421 42t

43 43

25 25

317

8529

2898

43

25

t4

78 100 22 22

14t i4tl 4t1

18 247

_________
t5 15 15

99$ $137 $3 $24329 $224 $24553 $49

ItI
inciaden $t milton et csinmnn steck at pat caine at both Pecembet 3t 200a and 2000 and $t million ef pteferred ntnce at oar caine at Oeceinbet Or oste

121
incindee $t2 mdttinn nt redeemabin nnn-centnneing intenente acqeited in the eel ntanoactinn nn Oecembet 2000

see accempanoing nstee ta csnontdated financini ntatementn
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Non-

Additional Appropriated

Paid-in Retained Retained

Dollar amounts in millions Capital Earnings Earrongs

Oeoamben3t2009 $22129 $2436

January 12010 initial reoognition

ofASU2009-17 114

Net isooma 2063

Allsoation of looses of

oosaolidafed oollateralioad

loan obligaf iota 39

Oioideods paid net sfdioidesd

expesoe
for sosested PSUs 1776

Release of oommos o000k from

eocraw agent in 005nectioo

with Osellos Transaction

Stock-based oompensatios 444

PNC preferred stock

Aooomslatad redeemable Redeemable

Other Non- Nan- Non

Compra- Common total redeemable osnorolling oonfrolling

Shores Treasoty Stock- Nos- Interesta of total Interests

Held in Stook holders oontrolling Consolidated Permanent temporary

t36 t36 t36

445 446

oapital oontrrbution

Merrill Lynch noah

oapital costnibstion to

Eaobange of common stook far

preferred shares nerlea 28

losuanoe of oommon shares

related to nmployee otooA

transaotions 1202

Employee too benefit wHbbsldings

related to employee stock

tronsaotioss

Sharaoreporohanod

Convertible dabt osnversisns

set oftao 54

Net tao benefit lshorttalli from

otocA-basod oompessstion 44

Minimsm penolos liability

odiostment

So Es oription 5/

iredemptions/d istribot ion

noo-oostroA log

interest fsldors

Net ooosohdations

de00500lidaf iota of

sponoored investment fonda

Other ohasges in sos-oontroAisg

interacts

Foreigs oorreooy translatiss

adisstmento

CHange inset onrealioed gaisa

ilssoeol from available-for-sale

inveatmento net of tao

December31 20t0

t24 l124

t40 140

66 12

44

11241

140

12

44

irciuder Nt motor ol common stork at par vaiae and St miiitoo ol emetarmod crock at par noire at Hoth necembar Or 2010 and otsa

son accompanying rioter to csnonhdated tinanciai rtatements

He no ion

Inca me

Lass

$96

Escrow Common Eqsity Interests

$t371 $31 $24329 $224

tt4 49

2063 tO

VIEs Cquit9 Equit9

$24553 $48

49 t14

1351 2047

139 39

1776 1776

to to

1128

217 tS tS

it it

t4 124

170

11 It UI

$22504 $3723 $75 $961 lOt $111 $26094 $189 $45 $26328 $6
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Non-

Accumulated redeemable Redeemable

Other Nar- Non- Nec

Campre- Cammoa Total redeemable contralling cantralling

Additional Appropriated heraiae Sharea TreaauN Stock- Non- Intereata of Total Irtereatol

Raid-in Pefained Retained lacume Aald in Stock haldera cantralliag Coaaolidated Permaneat Temporary

Dollar amounts in millions Capital1 Earninga Earninga Loaal Eacroer Common Equity latesata OlEa Equity Equity

Eecember3t23t0 $22504 $3723 $75 $96 $1 $ttt $26394 $t89 $45 $26328 $6

Nat income 2337 2337 20 18 2339

Conanlidation of collateralized

loan abligatian t9 to t9

Allacat ion at laaaeo at

conanfidafed collateralized

loan abligationa 122 122 22

Oioidenda paid net of diuidend

eopenoa for unuaoted P0IJo 11014 11014 11014

Stack-bated compaesat ion 494 497 497

PNC preferred atock

capital contribution 200 200 290

Retirement of preferred afock 1209 1200 12001

Merrill Lynch caoh

capital contribution

lauuance ad common ahareu

related to employee atack

tranoactiona 1208 229 20 23

Employee tax benefit withhaldiogu

related to employee atock

traaoactiono 12391 12391 1239

Sharea repumhaaed 12545 1100 12645 126451

Conuertible debt conueraiana

Net tax benefit lohurtfal3 from

atock-baaed compenaation 12

Subacniptionu/

redemptiouaydiunribution

nan-cantra0ing

intereat holderu 125 itt 136 90

Net conealidationa

deconoalidatiana at

aponoured inueotment funda 14

Foreign currency
tranalation

aduotmienta 127 120 1201

Change in net unrealized gainu

looaeaf from available-for-uale

inveatmenta net of tax 14 14 41

December3l2011 $20276 $5046 $72 $127 $1 $218 $25048 $184 $38 $25270 $92

Itt Inciuxea $1 miuier at cummun uteck at ear aaiae at bath Oxcambar or sear anu sore anu Sr usher at eretarrad ateck at ca raire at aecambar 3t 2ttt

Ore accrmpaaeiaa nntea te canaulidetad tiaaacial atetameara
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2011

$2339

299

81

497

137
40
41

50

54

18

82

23
30

124

53
116
122
140
152
35
117

2826

Year ended December31

2010

$2050

310

102

445

62
26

54

45
35

44

141
14

364
45

65
118

236

52

164

356

112

2488

2009

$897

239

100

317

89
20
41

285

30
18

223

159

68
53
50

218
165

10
18

1399

Dollaramounts in millions

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of deferred sales commissions

Stock-based compensation

Deferred income tax expense benefit

Net gains losses on non-trading investments

Purchases of investments within consolidated funds

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

within consolidated funds

Assets and liabilities of consolidated VIEs

Change in cash and cash equivalents

Net gains losses within consolidated VIEs

Net purchases proceeds within consolidated VIEs

Earnings losses from equity method investees

Distributions of earnings from equity method investees

Other adjustments

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Due from related parties

Deferred sales commissions

Investments trading

Other assets

Accrued compensation and benefits

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to related parties

Other liabilities

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

Distributions of capital from equity method investees

Net consolidations deconsolidations of sponsored investment funds

Acquisitions net of cash acquired and contingent payments

Purchases of property and equipment

Other

204 656 73
213 181 260

34 53 89

52 27

23 5755

247 131 65

Cash flows from investing activities 204 627 5519

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of short-term borrowings 600 2134

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 600 2.034

Repaymentsofconvertibledebt 67 176

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1496 2495

Cash dividends paid 1014 776 422

Proceedsfrom stock options exercised 16 10 18

Proceedsfrom issuance of common stock 2804

Repurchases of common stock 2885 264 46
Merrill Lynch cash capital contribution 10 25

Repayments of borrowings by consolidated VIEs 125
Net redemptions/distributions paid/subscriptions received

from non-controlling interests holders 54 110 255

Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 27 44 33

Net borrowings repayment of borrowings by consolidated

sponsored investment funds 70

Cash flows from financing activities 2485 3170 6749

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 32 47

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 139 1341 2676

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 3367 4708 2032

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $3506 $3367 $4708

See accoispanying notes to cnnsoiidated tinancial statements
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Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for

Interest $167 $146 $52

Interest on borrowrngs of consolidated VIEs $60 $53

Income taxes $962 $583 $503

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing transactions

Issuance of common stock $213 $266 $767

Issuance of preferred stock $7842

PNC preferred stock capital contribution $200

Increase decrease in non-controlling interests due to net consolidation

deconsolidation of sponsored investment funds $4 $170 $7

Contingent common stock payment related to Quellos transaction $43

Increase decrease in borrowings due to consolidation of VIEs $412 $1157

Common stock released from escrow agent in connection

with Quellos transaction $136 $6

See accompanying totes to consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction and Basis of Presentation

Business

BlackRock Inc together with its subsidiaries unless the

context otherwise indicates or the Company
provides diversified investment management to institutional

clients intermediary and individual investors through van

ous investmentvehicles Investment management services

primarily consist of the management of equityfixed income

multi-asset class alternative investment and cash manage

ment products BlackRock offers its investment products

in avarietyof vehicles including open-end and closed-end

mutual funds iShores exchange traded funds ETFs
collective investment trusts and separate accounts In addi

tion BlackRock provides market risk management financial

markets advisory and enterprise investment system services

to broad base of clients Financial markets advisory services

include valuation services relating to illiquid securities

dispositions and workout assignments including long-term

portfolio liquidation assignments risk management and

strategic planning and execution

On December 31 2011equity ownership of BlackRock was as

follows

Voting

Common Stock Capital Stock

The PNC Financial

Services Group Inc PNC 24.0% 21.0%

Barclays Bank PLC Barclays 2.2% 19.7%

Other 73.8% 59.3%

100.0% 100.0%

includes outstanding common and non-voting preferred stock

See Note 17 Capital Stock for more information on the equity

ownership of BlackRock

Basis of Present ation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States GAAP and include the accounts of

the Company and its controlled subsidiaries Non-controlling

interests on the consolidated statements offinancial condi

tion include the portion of consolidated sponsored investment

funds in which the Companydoes not have direct equity

ownership Significant accounts and transactions between

consolidated entities have been eliminated

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with

GAAP requires management to make estimates and assump

tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual

results could differ from those estimates

Certain items previously reported have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation

Significant Accounting Poticies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents primarily consists of cash money

market funds and short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities at date of purchase of three months or

less in which the Company is exposed to market and credit

risk Cash and cash equivalent balances that are legally

restricted from use by the Company are recorded in other assets

on the consolidated statements of financial condition Cash

balances maintained by consolidated sponsored investment

funds are not considered Legally restricted and are included

in cash and cash equivalents on the consolidated state

ments offinancial condition Cash balances maintained by

consolidated variable interest entities are included in assets

of consolidated variable interest entities on the consolidated

statements of financial condition

Investments

Investments in Debt and Marketable Equity Securities

BlackRock holds debt and marketable equity investments

which pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification ASC
320-10 Investments Debt and Equity Securities are classi

fied as trading available-for-sale or held-to-maturity based

on the Companys intent to sell the security or for debt secu

rity the Companys intent and ability to hold the debt security

to maturity

Trading securities are those investments that are purchased

principallyfor the purpose of sellingthem in the near term

Trading securities are carried at fairvalue on the consolidated

statements of financial condition with changes in fairvalue

recorded in non-operating income expense on the consoli

dated statements of income in the period of the change

Held-to-maturity debt securities are purchased with the posi

tive intent and ability to be held to maturity and are recorded

at amortized cost on the consolidated statements of financial

condition

Available-for-sale securities are those securities that are

not classified as trading or held-to-maturity Available-for-

sale securities are carried atfairvalue on the consolidated

statements offinancial condition with changes in fairvalue

recorded in the accumulated other comprehensive income

loss component of stockholders equity in the period of the

change Upon the disposition of an available-for-sale security

the Company reclassifies the gain or loss on the security from

accumulated other comprehensive income loss to non

operating income expense on the Companys consolidated

statements of income

Equity Methad

For equity investments where BlackRock does not control the

investee and where it is not the primary beneficiary PB of

variable interest entity VIE but can exert significant influ

ence overthe financial and operating policies of the investee

the Company follows the equity method of accounting in

accordance with ASC 323 InvestmentsEquity Method and Joint

Ventures Under the equity method of accounting BlackRocks

share of the nvestees underlying net income or loss on

investment funds is recorded as net gain loss on investments

within non-operating income expense and as other revenue

for operating advisory company investments since such com

panies are considered to bean extension of BlackRocks core

business BlackRocks share of net income of the investee is
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recorded based upon the most current information available

at the time which may precede the date of the consolidated

statement of financial condition Distributions received from

the investment reduce the Companys carrying value of the

investee

Cost Method

For non-marketable equity investments where BlackRock nei

ther controls nor has significant influence overthe investee

the investments are accounted for using the cost method of

accounting Under the cost method dividends received from

the investment are recorded as dividend income within non

operating income expense

Impairments

When the fairvalue of available-for-sale securities is

lower than cost the Company evaluates the securities to

determine whether the impairment is considered to be

other-than-temporary

In making this determination for equity securities the

Company considers among otherfactors the length of time

the security has been in loss position the extent to which

the securitys market value is less than cost the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the securitys issuer

and the Companys ability and intent to hold the security for

length of time sufficient to allow for recovery of such unreal

ized losses If the impairment is considered other-than-tem

porary an impairment charge is recorded in non-operating

income expense on the consolidated statements of income

In makingthis determination for debt securities the Company

considers whether it has the intent to sell the security it

is more hkelythan notthat it will be required to sell the security

before recovery or it expects to recover the entire amortized

cost basis of the security If the Company does not intend to sell

security and it is not more likelythan notthat it will be required

to sell the security but the security has suffered credit loss

the credit loss will be bifurcated from the total impairment and

recorded in earnings with the remaining portion recorded in

accumulated other comprehensive income

Consolidation

For investment products in which BlackRocks voting interest

is less than 50% an analysis is performed to determine if the

investment product is VIE or voting rights entity Upon the

determination that the investment product is VIE further

analysis as discussed below is performed to determine if

BlackRock is the PB of the investment product which would

require consolidation

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

Pursuant to ASC 810-10 Consolidotion ASC 810-10 certain

investment products for which the risks and rewards of

ownership are not directly linked to voting interests may be

deemed VIEs BlackRock reviews factors including the rights

of the equity holders and obligations of equity holders to ab

sorb losses or receive expected residual returns to determine

if the investment product is VIE BlackRock is required to

consolidate VIE when it is deemed to be the PB which is

evaluated continuously as facts and circumstances change

Accounting Standards Update ASU 2010-10 Amendments

to Stotement 167 for Certoin Investment Funds ASU 2010-10

defers the application of Statement of FinancialAccounting

Standards SFAS No 167 SFAS No 167 Amendments to

FASB
Interpret

otion No 46R for certain investmentfunds

including money market funds

The PB of VIE that does not meet the conditions of ASU 2010-10

is the enterprise that has the power to direct activities of the

entitythat most significantly impact the entitys economic

performance and has the obligation to absorb losses or the

right to receive benefits that potentially could be significant

to the VIE

The PB of VIE that meets the conditions ofASU 2010-10 is

the enterprise that has variable interest or combination

of variable interests includingthose of related parties that

absorbs the majority of the entitys expected losses receives

majority of the entitys expected residual returns or both

Consolidation of Voting Rights Entities

To the extent that BlackRock can exert control over the finan

cial and operating policies of the investee which generally

exists if there isa 50% or greatervoting interest or if partners

or members of certain products do not have substantive

rights BlackRock consolidates the investee

The Company as general partner or managing member of

certain sponsored investment funds generally is presumed to

control funds that are limited partnerships or limited liability

companies Pursuant to ASC 810-20 Control of Portnerships

ond Similor Entities ASC 810-20 the Company reviews such

investmentvehicles to determine if such presumption can

be overcome by determining whether other non-affiliated

partners or members of the limited partnership or limited

liability company have the substantive abilityto dissolve

liquidate the investment vehicle or otherwise to remove

BlackRock as the general partner or managing member

without cause based on simple unaffiliated majority vote or

have other substantive participating rights If the investment

vehicle is not VIE and the presumption of control is not over

come BlackRock will consolidate the investmentvehicle

Retention of Specialized Accounting Principles

Upon consolidation of various sponsored investmentfunds

on the Companys consolidated statements of financial

condition the Company retains the specialized accounting

principles of the underlying funds pursuant to ASC 810-10 All

of the underlying investments held by consolidated sponsored

investment funds are carried at fair value with corresponding

changes in the investments fair values reflected in non

operating income expense on the Companys consolidated

statements of income When the Company no longer controls

these funds due to reduced ownership percentage or other

reasons the funds are deconsolidated and accounted for

under another accounting method

SeparateAccountAssets and Liabilities

Separate account assets are maintained by wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company which is registered life insurance

company in the United Kingdom and represent segregated as

sets held for purposes of funding individual and group pension
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contracts The separate account assets are not subject to

general claims of the creditors of BlackRock These separate

account assets and the related equal and offsetting liabilities

are recorded as separate account assets and separate

account liabilities on the Companys consolidated statements

of financial condition in accordance with theASC 944-80

Finonciol Services Seporote Accounts

The net investment income attributable to separate account

assets supporting individual and group pension contracts

accrue directly to the contract owner and are not reported on

the consolidated statements of income While BlackRock has

no economic interest in these separate account assets and

liabilities BlackRock earns policy administration and manage

ment fees associated with these products which are included

in investment advisory administration fees and securities lend

ing revenue on the consolidated statements of income

CoateralAssets Hedand Liabilities UnderSecurities

Lending Agreements

The Company facilitates securities lending arrangements

whereby securities held by separate account assets main

tained bythe life insurance company are lent to third parties

In exchange the Company receives collateral principally

cash and securities with minimums generalLy rangingfrom

approximately 102% to 112% of the value of the securities lent

in orderto reduce counterparty risk Under the Companys

securities lending arrangements the Company can resell

or re-pledge the collateral and the borrower can re-sell or

re-pledge the Loaned securities The securities lending trans

actions entered into bythe Company are accompanied by an

agreement that entitles the Company to request the borrower

to return the securities at any time therefore these transac

tions are not reported as sales under ASC 860 Tronsfers and

Servicing

As result of the Companys abilityto resell or re-pledge the

collateral the Company records on its consolidated state

ments of financial condition the collateral received under

these arrangements both cash and non-cash as its own

asset in addition to an equal and offsetting collateral
liability

forthe obligation to return the collateral At December31

2011 and 2010 the fairvalue of loaned securities held by

separate account assets was approximately $19.5 billion

and $16.1 billion respectively and the collateral held under

these securities lending agreements was approximately

$20.9 billion and $17.6 billion respectively Duringthe years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had not

sold or re-pledged any of the collateral received under these

arrangements

Deferred Sales Commissions

The Company holds the rights to receive certain cash flows

from sponsored mutual funds sold without front-end sales

charge lback-end load shares The carrying value of these

deferred mutualfund commissions is being amortized over

periods between one and six years The Company receives

distribution fees from these funds and contingent deferred

sales commissions CDSCs upon shareholder redemption

of certain back-end load shares that are recorded within

distribution fees on the consolidated statements of income

Upon receipt of CDSC5 the Company records revenue and

the remaining unamortized deferred sales commission is

expensed

The Company periodically
reviews the carryingvalue of

deferred commission assets to determine whether signifi

cant decline in the equity or bond markets or other events

or circumstances indicate that an impairment may have

occurred If indicators of potential impairment exist the

Company compares the carrying value of the asset to the

estimated future net undiscounted cash flows related to the

asset if such assessments indicate that the estimated future

net undiscounted cash flows will not be sufficient to recover

the recorded carrying value the assets are adjusted to their

estimated fair value No such impairments were recorded for

the years ended December 3120112010 or 2009

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumu

lated depreciation Depreciation generally is recorded using

the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of

the various classes of property and equipment Leasehold

improvements are amortized using the straight-Line method

over the shorter of the estimated useful life orthe remaining

lease term

Software Costs

BlackRock develops variety of risk management investment

analytic and investment system services for internal use

utilizing proprietary software that is hosted and maintained

by BlackRock The Company follows ASC 350-40 Internal-Use

Softwore ASC 350-40 ASC 350-40 requires the capitaliza

tion of certain costs incurred in connection with developing or

obtaining software for internal use Capitalized software costs

are included within property and equipment on the consoli

dated statements of financial condition and are amortized

beginning when the software project is complete and put into

production over the estimated useful life of the software of

approximately three years

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess cost of business acquisition

over the fair value of the net assets acquired In its assess

ment of goodwill for impairment the Company considers

such factors as the book value and market capitalization of

the Company On quarterly basis the Company considers if

triggering events have occurred that may indicate potential

goodwill impairment Ifa triggering event has occurred the

Company performs assessments which include reviews of

all
significant valuation assumptions to determine if goodwill

may be impaired The Company performs such impairment

assessments of its goodwill at least annually as of July 31st

Intangible assets are comprised of indefinite-lived intangible

assets and finite-lived intangible assets acquired ins busi

ness combination The value of contracts to manage assets in

proprietary open-end funds closed-end funds and collective

trust funds and certain other commingled products without

specified termination date is generally classified as indefinite

lived intangible assets The assignment of indefinite lives to

such contracts primarily is based upon the following the

assumption that there is no foreseeable limit on the contract

period to manage these funds ii the Company expects to



and has the ability to continue to operate these products

indefinitely iii the products have multiple investors and are

not reliant on single investor or small group of investors for

their continued operation iv current competitive factors and

economic conditions do not indicate finite life and there

isa high likelihood of continued renewal based on historical

experience In addition trade names/trademarks are consid

ered indefinite-lived intangibles when they are expected to

generate cash flows indefinitely

In accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles Goodwill ond Other

ASC 350 indefinite-lived intangible assets and goodwill are

not amortized The value of contracts for separately managed

accounts and certain funds which have finite lives are amor

tized over the expected lives of the management contracts

On quarterly basis the Company considers if triggering

events have occurred that may indicate that the fair values

have declined below their respective carrying amounts

Triggering events may include significant adverse changes in

the Companys business the
legal or regulatory environment

loss of key personnel or otherevents Ifs
triggering event has

occurred the Company performs assessments which include

reviews of all significant valuation assumptions to determine

if any intangible assets are impaired The Company performs

such impairment assessments of its intangible assets at least

annually as of July 31st

In its assessment of indefinite-lived management contracts

and trade names/trademarks the Company considers various

factors
inclLiding assets under management AUM revenue

basis points operating margins tax rates discount rates and

projected growth rates to determine whether the values of

each asset are impaired and whether the indefinite-Life clas

sification is still appropriate The carrying value offinite-lived

management contracts and their remaining useful lives are

reviewed at least annually to determine if circumstances

exist which may indicate potential impairment In addition if

circumstances exist the Company will perform an impairment

test using an undiscounted cash flow analysis

If the asset is determined to be impaired the difference

between the book value of the asset and its current fair value

would be recognized as an expense in the period in which the

impairment occurs

Non-controlling Interests

According to the requirements within ASC 810-10 the

Company reports non-controlling interests as equity sepa

rate from the parents equity on the consolidated statements

of financial condition In addition the Companys consolidated

net income on the consolidated statements of income

includes the income loss attributable to non-controlling

interest holders of the Companys consolidated sponsored

investment funds and collateralized loan obligations CLDs
Income loss attributable to non-controlling interests is

not adjusted for income taxes for consolidated sponsored

investmentfunds and CLO5 that are treated as pass-through

entities for tax purposes

Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities

The Company includes redeemable non-controlling interests

reLated to certain consolidated sponsored investmentfunds in

temporaryequity on the Companys consolidated statements

of financial condition

Appropriated Retained Earnings

Upon adoption of ASU 2009-17 Improvements to Financial

Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entities

ASU 2009-17 on January 12010 BlackRock consolidated

three CLO5 and recorded cumulative effect adjustment to

appropriated retained earnings on the consolidated statement

offinancial condition equal to the difference between the fair

value of the CLO5 assets and the fair value of their liabilities

Such amounts are recorded as appropriated retained earnings

as the CLO noteholders not BlackRock ultimately will receive

the benefits or absorb the losses associated with the CLOs

assets and liabitties Subsequent to adoption ofASU 2009-17

the net change in the fairvalue of the CLO5 assets and

liabilities has been recorded as net income loss attributable

to nonredeemable non-controlling interests and as an

adjustment to appropriated retained earnings In addition on

September 30 2011 BlackRock consolidated one additional

CLO resulting in $19 million of additional appropriated retained

earnings upon the initial consolidation

Treasury Stock

The Company records common stock purchased fortreasury

at cost At the date of subsequent reissuance the treasury

stock account is reduced bythe cost of such stock using the

average cost method

Revenue Recognition

InvestmentAdvisory Administration Fees and Securities

Lending Revenue

Investment advisory and administration fees are recognized

as the services are performed Such fees are primarily based

on predetermined percentages of the market value of AUM or

in the case of certain real estate clients net operating income

generated by the underlying properties Investment advisory

and administration fees are affected bychanges in AUM includ

ing market appreciation or depreciation foreign exchange

translation and net subscriptions or redemptions Investment

advisory and administration fees for investment funds are

shown net of fees waived pursuant to contractual expense

limitations of the funds orvoluntary waivers

The Company contracts with third parties and related parties

forvarious mutualfund distribution and shareholder servicing

to be performed on behalf of certain funds managed by the

Company Such arrangements generally are priced as por

tion of the managementfee paid by the fund In certain cases

the fund primarily international funds takes on the primary

responsibility for payment for services such that BlackRock

bears no credit risk to the third party The Company accounts

for such retrocession arrangements in accordance with ASC

605-45 Revenue Recognition PrincipalAgent Considerations

and has recorded its management fees net of retrocessions

Retrocessions forthe years ended December31 2011 2010

and 2009 were $928 million $831 million and $611 million

respectively and were reflected net in investment advisory
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administration fees and securities Lending revenue on the

consolidated statements of income

The Company also earns revenue by lending securities on

behaLf of clients primarily to brokerage institutions Such

revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis The revenue

earned is shared between the Company and the funds or other

third-party accounts managed by the Company from which

the securities are borrowed

Performance Fees

The Company receives performance fees or an incentive

allocation from certain actively managed investment funds

and certain separately managed accounts These perfor

mance fees are earned upon exceeding specified relative

and/or absolute investment return thresholds Such fees are

recorded upon completion of the measurement period which

varies by product or account

The Company may receive carried interest from certain alter

native investments upon exceeding performance thresholds

BlackRock may be required to return all or part of such

carried interest dependinguponfuture performance of these

investments BlackRock records carried interest subject to

such claw-back provisions in investments or cash on its con

solidated statements of financial condition to the extent that

it is distributed Carried interest is realized and recorded as

performance fees revenue upon the earlier of the termination

of the investment fund or when the likelihood of claw-back is

mathematically improbable The Company records deferred

carried interest liabitty to the extent it receives cash or capital

allocations related to carried interest prior to meeting the

revenue recognition criteria At December31 2311 and 2310

the Company had $33 million and $23 million respectively of

deferred carried interest recorded in other liabilities on the

consolidated statements offinancial condition

BLackRock Solutions andAdvisory

BlackRock provides variety of risk management investment

analytic enterprise investment system and financial markets

advisory services to financial institutions pension funds

asset managers foundations consultants mutual fund spon

sors real estate investment trusts and government agencies

These services are provided under the brand name BlackRock

Solutions and include wide array of risk management ser

vices valuation of illiquid securities disposition and workout

assignments including Long-term portfolio liquidation

assignments strategic planning and execution and enter

prise investment system outsourcing to clients Fees earned

for BlockRock Solutions and advisory services are recorded

as services are performed and are determined using some

or all of the following methods fixed fees ii percentages

of various attributes of advisoryAUM orvalue of positions on

the Aladdin platform and iii performance fees if contractual

thresholds are met The fees earned for BlackRock Solutions

and advisory services are recorded in BlackRock Solutions and

advisory on the consolidated statements of income

Other Revenue

The Company earns fees fortransition management services

comprised of commissions from acting as an introducing

broker-dealer in buying and
selling

securities on behalf of the

Companys customers Commissions related to transition

management services are recorded on trade-date basis

as securities transactions occur and are reflected in other

revenue on the consolidated statements of income

The Company earns commissions revenue upon the sale of

unit trusts and Class mutual funds Revenue is recorded at

the time of the sale of the product

Other revenue also includes equity method investment earn

ings
related to operating advisory company investments and

marketing fees earned for services to distribute Barclays

iPath products which are related to exchange traded notes

issued by Barclays

Stock-based Compensation

The Company applies ASC 718-10 Compensation Stack

Compensation ASC 718-10 which establishes standards for

the accountingfor transactians in which an entity exchanges

its equity instruments for goods or services primarily focusing

on the accounting for transactions in which an entity
obtains

employee services in share-based payment transactions

Entities are required to measure the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments

based on the grant-date fair value of the award The cost

is recognized overthe period during which an employee is

required to provide service usually the vesting period in

exchange for the stock award

The Company measures the grant-date fair value of restricted

stock units RSUs using the Companys share price on the

date of grant For employee share options and similar instru

ments the Company uses aption-pricing models If an equity

award is modified afterthe grant date incremental compen

sation cost is recognized for an amount equal to the excess of

the fairvalue of the modified award over the fairvalue of the

original award immediately before the modification Awards

under the Companys stock-based compensation plans vest

over various periods Compensation cost is recorded by the

Company on straight-line basis over the
requisite

service

period for each separate vesting portion of the award as if the

award is in substance multiple awards Compensation cost

is reduced by the number of awards expected to be forfeited

prior to vesting Forfeiture estimates generally are derived

using historical forfeiture information where available and

are reviewed for reasonableness at least quarterly

The Company amortizes the grant-date fair value of stock-

based compensation awards made to retirement-eligible

employees overthe requisite service period Upon notification

of retirement the Company accelerates the unamortized por

tion of the award over the contractually required retirement

notification period if applicable

The Company pays cash dividend equivalents that are not

subject to vesting on outstanding RSU5 granted prior to 2009

Dividend equivalents on participating shares expected to vest

are recorded in retained earnings

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distribution and servicing costs include payments to

third parties and affiliates including Bank of America

Merrill Lynch PNC and Barclays primarily associated with
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distribution and servicing of client investments in certain

BlackRock products Distribution and servicing costs are

expensed when incurred

Direct Fund Expenses

Direct fund expenses which are expensed as incurred pri

man ly consist of third-party non-advisory expenses incurred

by BlackRock related to certain funds for the use of certain

index trademarks reference data for certain indices custo

dial services fund administration fund accounting transfer

agent services shareholder reporting services audit and tax

services as well as other fund-related expenses directly

attributable to the non-advisory operations of thefund

Leases

The Company accounts for its operating leases which may

include escalations in accordance with ASC 840-10 Leoses

The Company expenses the lease payments associated with

operating leases evenly during the lease term including rent-

free periods beginning on the commencement of the lease

term

Foreign Exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries hav

ing non-U.S dollar functional currencies are translated at

exchange rates at the date of the consolidated statements

offinancial condition Non-monetary assets and liabilities of

foreign subsidiaries having non-U.S dollarfunctional curren

cies are translated at historical exchange rates Revenue and

expenses are translated at average exchange rates during

the period Gains or losses resultingfrom translating foreign

currency financial statements into U.S dollars are included

in accumulated other comprehensive income separate

component of stockholders equity on the consolidated

statements offinancial condition Gains or losses resulting

from foreign currency transactions are included in general

and administration expense on the consolidated statements

of income For the years ended December 31 20112010 and

2009 the Company recorded gains losses from foreign cur

rencytransactions of $1 million $6 million and $11 million

respectively

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes underthe asset

and liability method prescribed byASC 740-10 /ncome Taxes

ASC 740-10 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable

to temporary differences between the financial statement

carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases using currently enacted tax rates in

effect for the year in which the differences are expected to

reverse The effect of change in tax rates on deferred income

tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period

that includes the enactment date

Management periodically assesses the recoverability of its

deferred income tax assets based upon expected future earn

ings taxable income in prior carryback years future deduct

ibility of the asset changes in applicabletax laws and other

factors If management determines that it is not more likely

than not that the deferred tax asset will be fully recoverable

in the future valuation allowance will be established for

the difference between the asset balance and the amount

expected to be recoverable in the future This allowance will

result in additional income tax expense on the Companys

consolidated statements of income Further the Company

records its income taxes receivable arid payable based upon

its estimated income tax position

Excess tax benefits related to stock-based compensation

are recognized as additional paid-in capital and are reflected

as financing cash flows on the consolidated statements of

cash flows If the Company does not have additional paid-in

capital credits cumulative tax benefits recorded to additional

paid-in capital the Company will record an expense for any

deficit or shortfall between the recorded tax benefit and tax

return benefit At December31 2011 and 2010 BlackRock had

excess additional paid-in capital credits to absorb potential

future deficits between recorded tax benefits and tax return

benefits

Earnings perShare EPS
FF5 is calculated pursuant to the two-class method as

defined in ASC 260-10 Earnings perShare ASC 260-10

which specifies that all outstanding unvested share-based

payment awards that contain
rights to nonforfeitabledivi

dends or dividend equivalents are considered participating

securities and should be included in the computation of EPS

pursuant to the two-class method The dilutive effect of

outstanding unvested share-based payment awards that are

considered non-participating securities are calculated under

the treasury stack method

The Company presents both basic and diluted EPS amounts

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net distributed and undis

tributed earnings allocated to shareholders excluding particr

patingsecurities bytheweighted-average numberof shares

outstanding The Companys participating securities consist

of its unvested share-based payment awards that contain

rights to non-forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents

Diluted EPS includes the determinants of basic EPS and

in addition reflects the impact of other potentially dilutive

shares outstanding duringthe period The dilutive effect of

participating securities is calculated underthe more dilutive

of either the treasury stock method orthe two-class method

Due to the similarities in terms among each series of

BlackRocks non-voting participating preferred stock and the

Companys common stock the Company considers each

series of non-voting participating preferred stock to be com
mon stock equivalents for purposes of earnings per common

share calculations

In accordance with ASC 260-10 shares of the Companys

common stock are not included in basic earnings per common

share until contingencies are resolved and the shares are

released Shares of the Companys common stock are not

included in diluted earnings per common share unless the

contingency has been met assuming thatthe contingency

period ended on the date of the consolidated statement of

financial condition

Business Segments

The Companys management directs BlackRocks operations
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as one business the asset management business As such

the Company operates in one business segment as defined in

ASC 280-10 Segment Reporting ASC 280-10

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business combinations in ac

cordance with the requirements of ASC 805 Business

Combinotions ASC 805 The fundamental requirement of

ASC 805 is that the acquisition method of accounting the

purchase method be used for all business combinations and

for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination

The provisions within ASC 805 further define the acquirer

establish the acquisition date and define transactions that

qualify as business combinations

Additionally the requirements within ASC 805 provide the

guidance for measuringfairvalue of assets acquired liabilities

assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree

provide guidance for the measurement of fairvalue in step

acquisition provide guidance for recognizing assets acquired

and liabilities assumed subject to contingencies provide

guidance on recognition and measurement of contingent

consideration and require that acquisition-related costs of the

acquirer generally be expensed as incurred Reversal ofvalu

ation allowances related to acquired deferred tax assets and

changes to liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits related to

tax positions assumed in business combinations subsequent

to the adoption of the requirements within ASC 805 will affect

the income tax provision in the period of reversal or change

Fair Value Measurements

Hierarchy of Fair Value Inputs

The provisions of ASC 820-10 Foir Volue Meosurements

ond Disclosures ASC 820-10 establish hierarchy that

prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value and require companies to disclose the fair value of their

financial instruments according to the fairvalue hierarchy i.e

Level 12 and inputs as defined The fairvalue hierarchy

gives the highest priority to quoted prices unadjusted in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest

priority to unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value are

classified and disclosed in one of the following categories

Level Inputs

Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the reporting date

Level assets may include listed mutualfunds includ

ingthose accounted for under the equity method of

accounting as these mutual funds are investment

companies that have publicly available net assetvalues

NAVs which in accordance with GAAP are calculated

underfeirvdlue measures and the changes are equalto

the earnings of such funds ETF5 equities and certain

exchange traded derivatives

Level Inputs

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets or

liabilities that are not active quotes from pricing services

or brokers for which the Company can determine that

orderly transactions took place at the quoted price or that

the inputs used to arrive at the price were observable and

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable such

as models or other valuation methodologies As practical

expedient the Company relies on the NAV or its equivalent

of certain investments astheirfairvalue

Level assets in this category may include debt

securities bank loans short-term floating rate notes

and asset-backed securities securities held within

consolidated hedge funds certain equity method limited

partnership interests in hedge funds valued based on

NAVwhere the Company has the ability to redeem at the

measurement date or within the near term without

redemption restrictions restricted public securities

valued eta discount as well as over-the-counter deriva

tives including interest and inflation rate swaps and

foreign currency exchange contracts that have inputs

to the valuations that generally can be corroborated by

observable market data

Level Inputs

Unobservable inputs forthe valuation of the asset or

liability which may include non-binding broker quotes

Level assets include investments for which there is little

if any market activity These inputs require significant

management judgment or estimation Certain investments

that are valued using NAV and are subject to current

redemption restrictions that will not be lifted in the near

term are included in Level

Level assets in this category may include general and

limited partnership interests in private equityfunds

funds of private equity funds real estate funds hedge

funds and funds of hedge funds direct private equity

investments held within consolidated funds bank loans

bonds and certain held-for-sale real estate disposal

assets

Level inputs include BlackRock capital accounts for its

partnership interests in various alternative investments

including distressed credit hedge funds real estate and

private equityfunds which may be adjusted by usingthe

returns of certain market indices The various partner

ships are investment companies which record their

underlying investments atfair value based on fairvalue

policies established by management of the underlying

fund Fairvalue
policies atthe underlyingfund generally

require the fund to utilize pricing/valuation information

including independent appraisals from third-party

sources However in some instances currentvaluation

information for ilhquid securities or securities in markets

that are not active may not be available from any third

party source or fund management may conclude that the

valuations that are available from third-party sources

are not reliable In these instances fund management

may perform model-based analytical valuations that

may be used as an input to value these investments
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Level liabilities in this category include borrowings

of consolidated CLO5 valued based upon non-binding

single broker quotes

Significance of Inputs

The Companys assessment of the significance of particular

input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires

judgment and considers factors specific to the financial

instrument

Fair Value Option

ASC 825-10 Financiol Instruments ASC 825-10 provides

fair value option election that allows companies to irrevocably

elect fair value as the initial and subsequent accounting mea
surement attribute for certain financial assets and Liabitties

ASC 825-10 permits entities to elect to measure eligible

financial assets and liabilities at fair value on an ongoing

basis Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the

fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings

The decision to elect the fair value option is determined on

an instrument-by-instrument basis must be applied to an

entire instrument and is irrevocable once elected Assets and

liabilities measured at fair value pursuant to ASC 825-10 are

required to be reported separately from those instruments

measured using another accounting method

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

ASC 815-10 Derivatives and Hedging ASC 815-10 estab

lishes accoLinting and reporting standards for derivative

instruments including certain derivatives embedded in other

contracts and for hedging activities ASC 815-10 generally

requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets

or liabilities on the consolidated statements offinancial con

dition and to measure those investments atfairvalue

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments

for trading or speculative purposes The Company uses

derivative financial instruments primarilyfor purposes of hedg

ing exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange

rates of certain assets and liabilities market exposures for

certain seed investments and Li future cash flows on float

ing rate notes The Company may also use derivatives within

separate account assets which are segregated funds held for

purposes offunding individual and group pension contracts

or in connection with capital support agreements with affili

ated investment companies In addition certain consolidated

sponsored investment funds may also invest in derivatives as

part of their investment strategy

Changes in the fair value of the Companys derivative financial

instruments are generally recognized in current earnings and

where applicable are offset by the corresponding gain or

loss on the related foreign-denominated assets or liabilities

or hedged investments on the consolidated statements of

income

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not YetAdopted

Amendments to Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments toflchieve Common Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS5 ASU 2011-04

which amends the existingfairvalue guidance within ASC 820

The amendments include

application of the concepts of highest and best use and

valuation premise only to measuring the fair value of nonfi

nancial assets that is it does not applyto financial assets

or any liabilities an exception to fairvalue measurement

principles forfinancial assets and financial liabilities and

derivatives with offsetting positions in market risks or

counterparty credit risk which allows an entity to measure

the fairvalue of the net risk position when several criteria

are met extension of the prohibition of blockage factor

application to all fairvalue measurements model for

the fairvalue measurement of instruments classified within

an entitys shareholders equitywhich is consistent with the

guidance of measuring the fairvalue for habilities addi

tionaldisclosuresforfairvalue measurementscategorized

in Level of the fairvalue hierarchy including Ii quantita

tive information about unobservable inputs used ii

description of the valuation processes used by the entity

and iii qualitative discussion about the sensitivity of the

measurements disclosure of the level in the fair value

hierarchy of assets and liabilities not recorded atfairvalue

but where fairvalue is disclosed and disclosure of any

transfers between Levels and of the fairvalue hierarchy

not just significant transfers

The provisions 0fASU 2011-04 are effective forthe Company

forthe interim period beginning after December15 2011 The

adoption ofASU 2011-04 is not expected to materially impact

BlackRocks consolidated financial statements

Amendments to Goodwill Impairment Testing

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011 -08 Testing

Goodwill forlmpairment ASU 2011-08 which amends the

guidance in ASC 350 on testing goodwill for impairment Under

the revised guidance entities testing goodwill for impairment

have the option of performing qualitative assessment before

calculating the fair value of the reporting unit i.e step of

the goodwill impairment test If entities determine on the

basis of qualitative factors that the fairvalue of the report

ing unit is more likely than notto be less than the carrying

amount the two-step impairment test would be required

The amendments are effective for the Companyfor annual

and interim goodwill impairment tests performed beginning

after December15 2011 The provisions of ASU 2011-08 if

elected to be adopted are not expected to materially impact

BlackRocks consolidated financial statements



Investments

December 31

2010Dollar amounts in millions 2011

Available-for-sale investments 52 45

Held-to-maturity investments 105 100

Trading investments

Consolidated sponsored investment funds 214 60

Other equity and debt securities 22

Deferred compensation plan mutualfunds 46 49

Total trading investments 267 131

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored investment funds 373 337

Equity method investments 457 556

Deferred compensation plan hedge fund equity method investments 19 27

Cost method investments 337 331

Carried interest
21 13

Totalotherinvestments 1207 1264

Total investments 1631 1.540

At December 31 2O11the Company consolidated $587 million of investments held by consolidated sponsored investment funds

non-VIEs of which $214 million and $373 million were classified as trading investments and other investments respectively

At December31 2010 the Company consolidated $397 million of investments held by consolidated sponsored investment funds

non-VIEs of which $60 million and $337 million were classified as trading investments and other investments respectively

Available-for-sole Investments

summary of the cost snd carrying value of investments classified as available-for-sale is as follows

Dollar amounts in millions

Available-for-sale investments primarily include seed investments in BlackRock-sponsored nvestrrent funds

Carrying

VaLue

summary of the carrying value of total investments is as follows

December 31

Gross Unrealized

Gains LossesDecember 31 201 Cost

Equity securities

Sponsored investment funds 52 50

Collateralized debt obligations CDOsl
Debt securities

Asset-backed debt

Total available-for-sale investments 54 52

Gross Unrealized Carrying

December 31 2010 Cost Gains Losses Value

Equity securities

Sponsored investment funds 33 36

CDOs

Debt securities

Mortgage debt

Assetbacked debt

Total available-for-sale investments 40 45
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summary of sale activity in the Companys available-for-sale securities duringthe years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 is shown below

Year ended

December 31

Dollor amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Sales proceeds $44 42 $100

Net realized
gain loss

Grossrealizedgains

Gross realized losses

Net realized gain loss

Held-to-Maturity Investments

summary of the carryingvalue of held-to-maturity investments is as follows

December 31 December31

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010

Foreign government debt $105 100

At December 312011 trading investments included $163 million of equity securities and $51 million of debt securities held by con

solidated sponsored investment funds $46 million of certain deferred compensation plan mutual fund investments and $7 million

of equity and debt securities held in separate investment accounts for the purpose cf establishing an investment history in various

investment strategies before being marketed to investors

Other Investments

summary of the cost and carryingvaue of other investments is as follows

December 31 2011

Carrying Value

December 31 2010

Cost Carrying Value

Held-to-maturity investments include debt instruments held for regulatory purposes and the amortized cost the carryingvalue

of these investments approximates fair value The amortized cost of debt securities classified as held-to-maturity at December 31

2011 by maturity date were as follows

After Year After Years

lYear through through After

or Less 5Years l0Years l0YearsDollar amounts in millions TotaL

December 312011

Foreign government debt $96 $9 $105

Trading Investments

summary of the cost and carryingvalue of trading investments is as follows

December 31 2011 December31 2010

Dollar amounts in millions Cost Carrying Value Cost Carrying Value

Trading investments

Deferred compensation plan mutualfunds 45 46 45 49

Equity securities 174 169 37 45

Debt securities

Municipaldebt 10 10

Foreign debt 12 12

Corporate debt 39 40 25 27

Totaltrading investments 270 267 117 $131

Dollar amounts in millions Cost

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored investment funds 345 373 319 337

Equity method 487 457 569 556

Deferred compensation plan hedge fund equity

method investments 17 19 20 27

Cost method investments

FederalReserveBankstock 328 328 325 325

Other

Total cost method investments 337 337 331 331

Carried interest 21 13

Total other investments $1186 $1207 1239 1264
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Consolidated sponsored investment funds include third-party are subjectto change upon cash distributions additional al

private equity funds direct investments in private companies

and thtrd-party hedge funds held by BlackRock-sponsored

investment funds

Equity method investments include BlackRocks direct invest

ment in BlackRock-sponsored investment products

Carried interest represents allocations to BlackRock general

partner capital accounts for certain funds These balances

Consolidated Sponsored Investment Funds

The Company consolidates certain sponsored investment

funds primarily because it is deemed to control such funds in

accordance with GAAP The investments that are owned by

these consolidated sponsored investmentfundsareclassified

Blackkocks total exposure to consolidated sponsored invest

ment funds of $475 million and $260 million at December 31

2011 and 2010 respectiveLy representsthevalue of the

Companys economic ownership interest in these sponsored

investment funds Valuation changes associated with these

consolidated investment funds are reflected in non-operating

income expense and partially offset in net income loss

attributable to non-controlling interests for the portion not

attributable to BlackRock

In addition at December 312011 and 2010 four and three

consolidated CLOs respectively and one other consolidated

sponsored investment fund which were deemed to be VIEs

locations or reallocations back to limited partners within the

respective funds

Cost method investments include non-marketable securities

including Federal Reserve Bank stock which is held for regula

tory purposes and is restricted from sale As of December31

2011 and 2010 there were no indicators of impairments on

these investments

as other or trading investments The following table presents

the balances related to these consolidated funds that were in

cluded on the consolidated statements of financial condition

as well as BlackRocks net interest in these funds

were excluded from the balances in the table above as the bal

ances for those investment products are reported separately

on the consolidated statements of financial condition See

Note Variable Interest Entities for further discussion on

these consolidated products

Tho Company may not be readily able to access cash and cash

equivalents held by consolidated sponsored investment funds

to use in its operating activities In addition the Company may

not be readily able to sell investments hold by consolidated

sponsored investment funds in order to obtain cash for use in

its operations

Oollar amounts in millions December 312011 December31 2010

Cash and cash equivalents 196 65

Investments

Trading investments 214 60

Other investments 373 337

Other assets

Other liabilities 37 10
Non-controlling interests 276 195
BlackRocks net interests in consolidated investment funds 475 260
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Fair VaLue DiscLosures

Fair Value Hierarchy

Total aaseta meaaured at fairvalue on recurring baaia of $141.6 billion at December 31 2011 were aa follows

Assets meaaured at fair value

It Amounts cuepnned of innentmerrtn held ut coot urnuntiund coot cnnnied intenent and eerits method inueutmentn which iuciudn irruentroent cuinpunien arid other uoneto which in accordance with

SAAb are riot accounted for under stair name weanune in accordance with GAAt certain nnity method ineenteen do not account fur both their tinuriciui unneto sod finunciai hubihritien under tuir

ualue weunuren therefune the Cornpanyn inneotment in ouch etuity method inunuteen way riot teprenent fair name

12 Amount irrcicdnn cowpurry-nwnnd and npht-dntnr me innunarrce pnhcinn

Ousted Prices in

Act ins Mankets

sr Identical Assets

Signitcand Of her

Obsaroabin Isputs

Lesel

Sigsificast

Unsbsernable

Ispsts

LanaI

Othen Assets

Nut Held at

Fair Value
iii

December 31

2011Oollor omounts in millions Level

Assets

Investments

Available-for-sale

Equity securities funds and COOs 50 51

Oebt securities

Total available-for-sale 50 52

Held-to-maturity

Oebtsscuritiss 105 105

Trading

Osferrsd compensation plan mutualfunds 46 46

Equitysscurities 163 169

Oebt securities 52 52

Total trading 209 58 267

Other investments

Consolidated spooaored investment funds

Hedgefunda/Eundaoffunds 20 22 42

Private/public equity 18 313 331

Total consolidated sponsored investment funds 18 20 335 373

Equity method

Hsdgefunds/Fundsofhedgefunds 33 193 14 240

Private equity investments 85 21 106

Real estate funds 88 20 108

Equity mutual funds

Total equity method 33 366 55 457

Deferred compensation plen hedge fund equity

method investments 19 19

Cost method investments 337 337

Carried interest 21 21

Total investments 280 131 702 518 1631

Seoarate account assets

Equity securities 74088 74091

Debt securities 38596 38603

Derivatives 1487 1495

Money market funds 2845 2845

Other 920 917 1837

Totalseparateaccountassets 76941 41003 10 917 118871

Collateral held under securities lending agreements

Equitysecuritiss 14092 14092

Debt securities 6826 6826

Total collateral held under securities

lending agreements 14092 6.826 20918

Other asssts5i 11 11

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Bank loans 1376 83 1459

Bonds 105 40 145

Private/public equity 27 35

Totalassetsof consolidated VIEs 1485 150 1639

Total $91317 $49456 862 $1435 $143070
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Liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at December31 2011 were as follows

Total assets measured at fair value on recurring basis of $140.5 billion at December31 2010 were as follows

Assets measured at fair value

Ousted Prices in

Active Markets

for Identical Assets

Level

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

Level

ig if ica nt

Unobservable

Inputs LevelDoIlor omounts in millions

Liabilities

Borrowingsofconsolidated VIEs 1574 1574

Collateral liabilities under securities lending agreements 4092 6826 20918

Other liabilities10 15 26

Total liabilities measured atfairvalue $14107 6837 1574 22518

December 31

2011

ItI Amvsnt isclsden credit detest swan Ipilarvl Ivee Note Derivatives aed Hedgieg vi ivvre ivfvrmativn avd securities sold short withiv covsvlidated spvnsored ivsentment funds recorded vsithiv

vther liabilities us the consslidated statement of financial coeditise

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

for Identical Assets

Level 11

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

Level 21

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level 31

Other Assets

Not Held at

Fair Value ii

December31

2010Dollor omocsnrs in millions

Assets

Investments

Available-for-sale

Equity securities funds and 000s 36 38

Debt securities

Total available-for-sale 36 45

Held-to-maturity

Debt securities 100 100

Trading

Deferred compensation plan mutual funds 49 49

Equitysecurities 36 45

Debt securities 37 37

Totaltrading 85 46 131

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored investment funds

Hedgefunds/Funds of funds 19 20

Private/public equity 18 299 317

Total consolidated sponsored investment funds 18 318 337

Equity method

Hedge funds/Funds of hedge funds 44 226 34 304

Private equity investments 68 20 88

Real estate funds 36 10 54

Fixed income mutualfunds 103 103

Equity/Multi-asset class mutual funds

Total equity method 110 52 330 64 556

Deferred compensation plan hedge fund equity

method investments 27 27

Carried interest 13 13

Cost method investments 331 331

Total investments 249 133 650 508 1540

Segsrate account assets

Equity securities 79727 79734

Debt securities 36415 170 36585

Derivatives 1598 1599

Money market funds 2549 2549

Other 670 670

Total separate account assets 82277 38016 174 670 121137

Collateral held under securities lending agreements

Equity securities 5237 5237

Debt securities 2401 2401

Total collateral held under securities lending

agreements 15237 2401 17638

Other assetsisi

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Bankloans 1130 32 1162

Bonds 113 113

Private/public equity 30 37

Total assets of consolidated VIEs 1246 62 1312

Total $97767 $41807 886 $1178 $141638

ItI
Amoset coreprised ef ivoeatmevts held at cost amortized cyst carried interest arid equity methsd iveestments which inclsde ivsestmevt companies and other assets which

in
accordance with

GAAP are cot accounted for under fair value meassre In accsrdaece with GAAP certain eqsity methnd inuestees do vat acc050t for both their financial assets avd financial liabilities under fair

value measures therefore the Companys inuestmevt iv ssch eqsity method inoesteev may not represent fair value

21 Amosnt includes company-swned and split-dollar life ivssrance policies
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Liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 312010 were as follows

Dollar amounts in millions

Liabilities

Borrowings of consolidated VIEs $1278 $1278

Collateral liabilities under securities

lendingagreements 15237 2401 17638

Other liabilitiehi

Total liabilities measured at fair value $1 5237 $2404 $1278 $1 8919

It Amount iriciodes credit defavit swap lPiiarsl recorded within other liabiiitieo on the consolidated statement of financial coreS ion See Note Derivatives and Heddind for more information

Separate Account Assets

The separate account assets are maintained by wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company which is registered life

insurance company in the United Kingdom and represent

segregated assets held for purposes of funding individual

and group pension contracts In accordance with GAAP the

Company records equal and offsetting separate account lia

bilities The separate account assets are not available to cred

itors of the Company and the holders of the pension contracts

have no recourse to the Company The net investment income

attributable to separate account assets accrues directly to

the contract owners and is not reported on the Companys

consolidated statements of income While BlackRock has no

economic interest in these assets or liabilities BlackRock

earns an investment advisory fee for the service of managing

these assets on behalf of the clients

Level3 Assets

Level assets recorded within investments which include

equity method investments and consolidated investments of

real estate funds private equity funds and funds of private

equityfunds are valued based upon valuations including

capital accounts received from internal as well as third-party

fund managers Fair values of the underlyingfunds are based

on combination of methods which may include third-party

independent appraisals and discounted cash flow techniques

Direct investments in private equity companies held by funds

of private equityfunds are valued based on an assessment of

each underlying investment incorporating evaluation of addi

tional significant third-partyfinancing changes in valuations

of comparable peer companies the business environment of

the companies and market indices among otherfactors

Level assets recorded within separate account assets

include single broker non-binding quotes for fixed income

securities and equity securities that have unobservable

inputs due to certain corporate actions

Level assets of consolidated VIEs include bank loans and

bonds valued based on single broker non-bindingquotes

and direct private equity investments and private equity

funds valued based upon valuations received from internal

as well as third-party fund managers which may bead

justed by using the returns of certain market indices

Level Liabilities

Level liabilities recorded as borrowings of consolidated VI Es

include CLO borrowings valued based upon single broker non

binding quotes

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets

for Identical

Assmts lLevel

Significant

Other

Observable

Inouts Level 21

Significant

Unobservable

Inrruts lLevel 31

December 31

2010
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Changes in Level Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis for the Year Ended December31 2011

ReaLized

and

unrealized Total net

gains gains

in Issuances Transfers Transfers tosses

December 31 earnings Sates and and other into out of December31 included in

Dollar amounts in millions 2010 and DCI Purchases maturities settlements Level Level 2011 earnings

Assets

nvestments

Avails ble-for-sale

Equity securities

funds and CDOs $2 $1
Consolidated sponsored

investment funds

Hedge funds

$1

Equity securties 16 42 38

Debt securities 170 96 68 87
Total Level separate

account assets 174 12 210 38 96 10 n/a1

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Bank loans 32 32 29 16 85 51 83

Bond 39 40

Private equity 30 27

Total Level assets

of consolidated VIEs 62 32 36 16 124 51 150 n/amo

Total Level assets $886 $53 $217 $296 $23 $172 $147 $862

Liabflities

Borrowings of

consolidated VIEs $1278 $9 $287 $1574 n/a

rr/o not applicable

111
AmOunt includes distributions trorn equity method i000stees repayments of borrowings of consobdatod ViEs and loans and borrowings reiated to the c000nhdatioo stone additiooai OLO

12 Earnings attributable to the change irr unrealized gains liossesl reiatirig to assets stiiii heid at the reporting date

13 The net inseotmeot income attributabie to separate account assets accrues dinectiy to tire contract owners ant in riot reported on the compannys consolidated statements of income

the net gain loss on consolidated VlEo in soieiy attributable to non-controlling interests on the Companys consolidated ntatemerrtn of income

Fundsoffunds 19

Private equity 299 42

Equity method

Hedge funds/Funds

of hedge funds 226 32
Private equity

investments

Real estate funds

Total Level investments

assets

22

17 47 313 35

68 13

36

650 58

38

73 50 39

193

85 13

88

10 702 52
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Changes in Level Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis far the Year Ended December31 2010

Dollar amounts in millions

Assets

Investments

Available-for-sale

Equity secunties

funds and CDOs
Consolidated sponsored

investment funds

Hedge funds/Funds of funds

Private equity

Equity method

Hedge funds/Funds of

hedge funds

Private equity investments

Real estate funds

Deferred compensation plan

hedge funds

Total Level investments

Realized

and

unrealized

December31 gains/

2009 losses net

26

312 44

247

47

36

Realized and Unrealized Gains Losses for Level Assets and

Liabilities

Realized and unrealized gains losses recorded for Level

assets and liabilities are reported in non-operating income

expense on the Companys consolidated statements of

income portion of net income loss for consolidated invest

ments and all of the net income loss for consolidated VIEs

is allocated to non-controlling interests to reflect net income

loss not attributable to the Company

Significant Transfers in and/or out of Levels

Transfers in and/or out of Levels are reflected when significant

inputs including market inputs or performance attributes

used for the fair value measurement become observable/

unobservable or when the Company determines it has the

ability or no longer has the ability to redeem in the near term

certain investments thatthe Companyvalues using NAV or

capital account or when the book value of certain equity

method investments no longer represents fair value as deter

mined under fairvalue methodologies

Separate Accaunt Assets

In the year ended December31 2011 there were $87 million

of transfers out of Level to Level related to debt securities

held within separate account assets In addition there were

$9 million of transfers out of Level to Level related to equity

securities The transfers in and out of Levels were primarily

due to availability/unavailability of market inputs including

inputs from pricingvendors and brokers

In the year ended December 312011 there were $38 million

of transfers of equity securities into Level from Level The

transfers into Level were primarily due to market inputs no

longer being considered observable

In the year ended December31 2010 there were $1.5 bil

lion of net transfers out of Level to Level related to debt

securities The net transfers in Levels were primarily due to

availability
of observable market inputs including additional

inputs from pricing vendors and brokers

In the year ended December 312010 there were $63 million of

net transfers of equity securities into Level from Level and

Level The net transfers into Level were primarily due to

market inputs no longer being considered observable

Purchases

sales other Net Total net

settlements transfers gains

and in and/or losses

issuances out of December31 included in

net Level 2010 earnings

$- $2$1 $1 $2

54

36 26 31
13

17 17

19

299 44

34

10

226

68

36

15 15
683 107 93 47 650 95

ocldJdml.r_uullL

Equity securities 29 93 63

Debtsecurities 1287 60 284 1461 170

Total Level separate account assets 1292 89 191 1398 174 n/aui

Other assetsisi 46 138

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Bank loans 32 32

Private equity 27 30

Total Level assets of consolidated VIEs 27 32 62

Total Level assets $2021 $191 $87 $1413 $886

LiabiLities

Borrowings of consolidated VIEs $121 $1157 $1278 n/ai5

n/a not app/caSe

Ill Earnings attributable to the change in asreahoed gains or li005esl reiating to assets stiiii heid at the reporting date

121
tOe net inoestment income attribatabie to separate accnsnt assets accrues directiy to the contract owner and is list reported on the Companys consohdated statements ot income

131 Amoants include diapssai gromrp ansets

141
The ret ineestment income lanroemisel attoibotabie to assets arid borrowings at consohdated OiEs are aiincatad to non-controiiisg mriteneots on the Companys cnrrsshdated statements ot income
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Assets of Consolidated VIEs

In the year ended December31 2011 there were $51 million of

transfers out of Level to Level related to loans In addition in

theyear ended December 312011 there were $85 million and

$39 million of transfers into Level from Level related to loans

and bonds respectively The transfers in and out of Levels were

primarily due to availability/unavailability of observable market

inputs including inputs from pricing vendors and brokers

Significont Other Settlements

Fortheyear ended December31 2011there were $38 million

of distributions from equity method nvestees categorized in

Level

During the year ended December31 2011 other settlements

included $412 million of borrowings of consolidated VIEs

related to the consolidation of one additional CLO

As of January 12010 upon the adoption of ASU 2009-17

there was $35 million reclassification of assets from Level

private equity investments to Level
private equity assets of

consolidated VIEs as well as the consolidation of $1157 million

of borrowings within the consolidated VIEs

Additional Disclosures of Fair Volue

The methods and assumptions for fairvalue disclosures are

set forth below

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at either cost or

amortized cost which approximates fair value due to their

short-term maturities Money marketfunds are valued

through the use of quoted market prices Level input or

$1.00 which generally is the NJAV of the fund At December31

2011 and 2010 approximately$123 million and $87 million

respectively of money marketfunds were recorded within

cash and cash equivalents on the Companys consolidated

statements of financial condition

The carrying amounts of receivables accounts payable and

accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to their short

maturiti as

The fair value of marketable investments is based on quoted

market prices or broker quotes If investments are not readily

marketable fairvalues primarily are determined based on

NAV5 or capital accounts of investments in limited partner

ships/limited liability companies or bythe Company based on

managements assumptions or estimates taking into consid

eration financial information of the investment market indices

or valuation services from third-party service providers At

December31 2011 and 2010 with the exception of certain

equity and cost method investments and carried interest invest

ments that are not accounted for under fairvalue measure the

carryingvalueof investments approximatedfairvalue

Long-term borrowings are recorded at amortized amounts

See Note 11 Borrowings forthe fair value of the Companys

long-term borrowings

Investments in Certain Entities that Calculate NetAsset Value Per Share

As practical expedient to value certain investments that do not have readily determinable fair value and have attributes of an

investment company the Company relies on NAV as the fair value for certain investments The followingtable lists information

regarding all investments that use fair value measurement to account for both theirfinancial assets and financial liabilities in

their calculation of NAV per share or its equivalent

December31 2011

Dollar amounts in millions

Trading

Equity

ConsoLidated sponsored investment funds

Private equity funds of funds

Otherfunds of hedge funds

Equity method

Hedge funds/Funds of hedge funds

Private equity funds

Real estate funds

Deferred compensation plan hedge

fund investments

Total

Unfunded

Ref FairValue Commitments

$2 Daily 1100%

44 fl/r

Monthly 25%
Quarterly 54%

n/r 21%

Monthly 2%
Quarterly 15%

n/r 83%
n/r

n/r

19 Monthly16%

Quarterly 84%

27

$729 $115

none

Redemption Redemption

Frequency Notice Period

dl

If

258

24

226

85

88

ConsoLidated VIE

Private equity funds

Total

48

17

fl/r

3090 days

15 90 days

n/r

n/r

6090 days

sir not redeemabie

Ill
Comprised of eQuity method investments which inciude investment companies which in accordance winh GAAP account for both their financial assets and finanrciai hablinitien under fuireaioa

measures therefore the Companys ineestment in ouch eqoity method inoestees approximates fain oaiue

n/r n/r
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Investments in Certain Entities that Calculate NetAsset Value Per Share

December 31 2DID

Do/icr amounts in mdiions

Trading

Equity

Consatidated spansored investment funds

Private equity funds of funds

Otherfunds of hedge funds

Equity methad1

Hedge funds/Funds of hedge funds dl

Private equity funds

Peal estate funds

Deferred compensation plan hedge

fund investments

Consolidated VIE

Private equity funds

Total_______

nit sot redeemable

li
tnmerrined si equity method investments which inciude insestrnett compunien which is

accordance wilt GAAP account for heft their hneucial oooeto cod financial huhihtius order

teir voice meanstot therefore the tnmpaoyo ioueutmeot in ouct equity method irrrvesteeo

appronimateu lair
naive

iai
this catequrt inciudey cs050tdated offuturo /oader tends that invent in reenter buds

with rsuitinle equity struteqies to diuersitp rinks the fair uuiues of tire insest mactn in this

category have aeon eutirnuted using the NA5 5/ master n/future iusds held by the teeder

birds irrueutmeutu in ttriu catetory qeseruty cause redeersed at ant time as iunt as tirete

are on restrictisss in piuce by the undedying mnauter lends

ihi
thin cateturt mncirrden the urrderlyinq tirird-party yrisate eqrrity tvuds mithis consolidated

tiackhsck-stmnnsnred trriuate equity fundu ut/undo the fair naives u/the inueutments iii the

tirird-party furrds haue been eutimated using capitui accovuts reprenentiny the tsmpungs

swrrersirip interest in each toed in the trsttfshu as mali another performance inrnvts These

irrventmentu urn nut subiect tu redemption homeser for certain funds the tnrnpane may neil

or trans/er ito istereut which may treed anprusei attire tenerai purtrrer of the underigrng

funds Due in the rrature of the irrsesfmerrtn in tins cateqort the tumpuny reduces ito

investment by distributions that are ruceiued through the reafuatinu at the urrderiting assets

utthefundo it in estimated that the underiying unnetu of theue fundu m0i he hqrridated user

wuiqhted-avetuqe period of apprunimutely eight yearn at both December 31 201 and 2510

the tntai rernaittitq unfsrrded cnmmnitmeuts to other third-natty funds were $d4 miiifsn and

$62 mahnn at itecember St 2011 and 2tth reupectively The tompany mao cnutractrraty

ubtyated to fund nniy $25 milton and $42 milivo yr December 31 2tt and 2ttO toupee

tiueiy to tire curruof dated irnudu miriie the rernainitq unfunded baiauces in the tabies about

are required tube funded by cupitai contributions from non-cuntruting intereut holders

ici thin cutequty inciodes conoubdatud funds of iredge trnndn tiryt inveut in mvitipie struteqien

to dieeruify rinks the fair saiueu ot the irrueutments is this cutetory irvue been estimated

usint the NAt of the furrds omneruhip interest in purtuert capitai of each fund in the

port/she the rnaiurrtp of the underlying funds in this category can be redeemed an iunt

au ttere are on reutrictinnu in piace At December 31 2011 the uuderiying ivudu that are

currerrtiy restricted from redemtutmunu mit/rio one year miili be redeemabie irr aptrneimateiy

t5-24 months

idi
thiu category inciudeu hedge funds arrd fvndu of hedge feuds that irrseut primarily in eqvi

ties fieed income uecrrritieu diutnesued credit and murtqaqe rnstnumeutu and st/ret third-

party fredqe furrds The fair uaiseu of tire inaestmentu in thiu category haue been estimated

usint the NAt n/the tsmparryu umnemuhip intereut in partners capital it mao eutimuted

that the insestmerrtu irr the funds that are nut subiect to redemptiurrt mliii be hqrridated nuer

meigtted-auerate period of appmueimeteiy sic and sesen yeurn at becember 3t 2011 and

2Sf respectiutiy

29

$696 $182

62 n/r

Quarterly 84%
Annual16% 309odsys

id this category incisdes seseral private equity fends tirat initiaty invent ut uorr-memketabie

securities n/private cumperries mticb oitimateiy may bucsrue nubhc mm the tntrmre the

fair salves of these irveotmentu have been entimated usiny capital accounts representing

the tnmpasyo ownership interest in tire tandy as wait uu other perturrnusce immpstu the

tsmpauyn iuuestment in each fund is nut subiect to redemuptiun and in nnmmnaliy metummred

ttnsnmqt dmutnibmrtiuun as resuit of the fquidatiss at thEm usdenitrug ausetu of tire private

equity fmmndu it man estimated that the iuueutmests mm tteue fnndu mdli he hquidated suer

meighted-auerege pemind of apprnrimateiy sic gears curt fise years at December 31 20t

amrd 20th renpectiueiy

i/i P/mis categury immciuden ueuemvl maui estate immuds that inseut directip in real estate amrd teal

estate-melated unnets tire tuim sainres n/tire invuotments in thms category bane been esti

mated
rrsimrg capitui uccummntu representing the tsmpamrys owners/rip interest in tte funds

time maismity n/tire tsmnpuuys mnseutmuntu is this cutegung are not svbiact to medemytivu

nm cunmentiy nut medeemubia and ate uummnaty retrmnmrad through diutmibutinus as munuit of

tire hqsidutisn of the mmnduulging assets of thu reui notate fsndu it mao eutimutyd timat the

immaestmnauts in tirene fundo unt nubiect to nedemptisnu will be hquidated seer weighted

auenage period of uptnueimately saver years at both December St 20t and 20t0

it this category inclnndeu immueutmnemrtu in certain hedge funds that iusest in enanqy and lmeeitim

ucience-ruiated equity secmrdties tire fair vaives of tire iusestmemrtu in this categsny urase

been entimated suing capitai accoumrts nepneuentiug thin tnmnpanys nmmremsirip interest in

partners capital en maP as performance inputs tire insestmentu in these tumrds emoi he

liquidated upsmr settlnmueut s/curtain defenmed compensation tabiirities

ib S/rio category rucisdos the underlying thmnd-party pulsate equity fummds within nun csnunf

dated Biack6uck-upummnsred pninate eqsit fund of tundu the fair ouiuet of the iuuautmeutu

iii tire third-patty funds haue beemm estimated using cupitai accounts representing the

tumpasyu ownership irmtemest
in each fund in the

pont/ri/in as mcii an other penfurmammce

unpub timese mnnestmneutu are nut subject to nedemptinmr however fur certain funds tire

tumpauy map out or trans/emits intunynt mhiclr may need uppnunui by tire gauenai pantmrem of

tto nmndenlying thind-party funds Dmne in the nvtume s/time isuestments in this ruteguns the

tumpany meduceu its ineeutmunt by distributions that ate neceised through tho ruafoutiur of

the underlying atueto of the fsndu it it eotimatnd tirat time undeniyimmg asuets of theue fmnndo

mel be hquidated uvun weighted-average period of tppmuuimateiy four yeamu and five yeats

at Pecemben 3t 2Ott and 20th respactiaeiy tutai nemnaining unfuodud cummhmenmts tu

ctirem tfmird-pamty fondu wane $2 mOfon at butt Decambum 31 251 and 20th mhict any

requited tube funded by capital contnibutiomms from nun-control/lug intureut molders

Total

Unfunded

qef FairVafue Commitments

Redemption Redemption

Freouenoni Notice Period

$9 Daily 100%

247

none

n/r

If

269 Monthly 11%

Quarterly 17%
n/r82% 159odays

68 57 n/r y/r

44 52 Quarterly 18%
n/r82% 6odays

27 Month/y 11%
Quarterly 89% 6090 days

n/r n/r

-i
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Fair Value Option

Upon the initial consolidation of three CLOs on January 12010

and one CLO on September 30 2011 the Company elected to

adopt the fairvalue option provisions for eligible assets and

liabilities including bank loans and borrowings of the CLO5

to mitigate accounting mismatches between the carrying

value of the assets and liabilities and to achieve operational

simplifications To the extent there is difference between

the change in fair value of the assets and liabilities the

At December 312011 the principal amounts outstanding of the

borrowings issued by the CLO5 mature between 2016 and 2019

Duringtheyearsended December31 2011 and 2010the

change in fairvalue of the bank loans along with the bonds

held atfair value resulted ins $57 million gain and $148 mil

lion gain respectively which was offset by $68 million loss

and $175 million loss respectively inthefairvalue of the

CLO borrowings

The net loss was recorded in net gain loss on consolidated

VIEs on the consolidated statement of income

The change in fair value of the assets and liabilities included

interest income and expense respectively

Variable Interest Entities

In the normal course of business the Company is the manager

of various types of sponsored investmentvehicles including

CDO5/CLO5 and sponsored investmentfunds which may be

considered VIEs The Company receives advisoryfees and/

or other incentive-related fees for its services and may from

time to time own equity or debt securities or enter into deriva

tives with the vehicles each of which is considered variable

interest The Company enters into these variable interests

principally to address client needs through the launch of such

investmentvehicles The VIEs are primarily financed via capi

tal contributed by equity and debt holders The Companys

involvement in financing the operations of the VIEs is generally

limited to its equity interests

The PB ofa VlEthat is an investment fund that meets the

conditions of ASU 2010-lOis the enterprise that has variable

interest orcombination of variable interests includingthose

of related parties that will absorb majority of the entitys

expected losses receive majority of the entitys expected

difference will be reflected as net income loss attributable to

nonredeemable non-controlling interests on the consolidated

statements of income and offset by change in appropriated

retained earnings on the consolidated statements of financial

condition

The following table presents the fairvalue of those assets and

liabilities selected for fair value accounting as of December31

2011 and 2010

residual returns or both In order to determine whether the

Company is the PB of VIE management must make signifi

cant estimates and assumptions of probable future cash flows

of the VIEs Assumptions made in such analyses may include

but are not limited to market prices of securities market inter

est rates potential credit defaults on individual securities or

default rates on portfolio of securities pre-payments real

ization of gains liquidity or marketability of certain securities

discount rates and the probability of certain other outcomes

Effective January 12010 the PB of CDO/CLC or other entity

that is ViE that does not meet the conditions 0fASU 2010-10

is the enterprise that has the powerto direct activities of the

entitythat most significantly impact the entitys economic

performance and has the obligation to absorb losses or the

right to receive benefits that
potentially could be significant to

the entity

VIEs in which BlackRock is the PB

At December 312011 and 2010 BlackPock was the PB of

five VIEs and fourVlEs respectively The VIEs included CLO5

in which BlackRock did not have an investment however

BlackRock as the collateral manager was deemed to have

both the power to control the activities of the CLO5 and the

right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to

the CLO5 In addition BlackRock was the PB of one sponsored

private equity investment fund in which it had non-sub

stantive investment which absorbed the majority of the vari

ability
due to its de facto third-party relationships with other

partners in the fund The assets of these VIEs are not available

to creditors of the Company In addition the investors in

these VIEs have no recourse to the credit of the Company At

December31 2011 and 2010 the following balances related to

these VIEs were consolidated on the Companys consolidated

statements of financial condition

Dollar amounts in millions December 312011 December31 2010

CLO Bank Loans

Aggregate principal amounts outstanding $1522 $1245

Fairvalue $1459 $1162

Aggregate unpaid principal balance in excess of fair value $63 $83

Unpaid principal balance of loans more than 90 days past due $4 $3

Aggregate fair value of loans more than 90 days past due $1

Aggregate unpaid principal balance in excess offairvalue

for loans more than 90 days past due $4 $2

CLO Borrowings

Aggregate principal amounts outstanding $1781 $1430

Fairvalue $1574 $1278



001/or amounts in millions December 312011 December31 2010

Assets of consolidated VIEs

Cashandcashequivalents $54 $93

Barkloans 1459 1162

Bonds 145 113

Other investments 35 37

Total bank loans bonds and other investments 1639 1312

Liabilities of consolidated VIEs

Borrowings 1574 1278

Other liabilities

Appropriated retained earnings 72 75
Non-controlling interests of consolidated VIEs 38 45

Total B/ackRock net interests in conso/idated VIEs

For the year ended December31 2011 the Company recorded

non-operating loss of $18 million offset by an $18 m/llion net

loss attributable to nonredeemable non-controlling interests

on the Companys conso/idated statements of income

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company recorded

non-operating loss of $35 million offset by $35 million net

loss attributab/e to nonredeemable non-controlling interests

on the Companys consolidated statements of income

At December31 2011 and 2010 the weighted-average maturity

of the bank loans and bonds was approximately 4.2 years

VIEs in which the Company holds significant variable interests or is the sponsor that holds variable interest but is not the PB

of the VIE

At December31 2011 and 2010 the Companys carryingva/ue of assets and liabilities and its maximum risk of /oss related to VIEs

in which it ho/ds significant variable interest or is the sponsor that holds variab/e interest but for which it was not the PB were

as follows

At December31 2011

Variable Interests on the Consolidated

Statement of Financisl Condition

Other Net

Assets

Liabilities

$3/

Dollar amounts in millions Investments

CDO5/CLO5 $1 $2

Other sponsored investment funds

Col/ective trusts 184 184

Other 18 54 72

Total $19 $240 $8 $276

The size of the net assets of the VIEs that the Company does

not consolidate re/ated to CDO5/CLO5 and other sponsored

investment funds including collective trusts was as follows

CDOs/CLO5 approximately $2 billion comprised of

approximately $5 billion of assets at fair value and $7 billion

of /iabi/ities primarily comprised of unpaid principal debt

obligations to CDO/CLO debt ho/ders

Other sponsored investments funds approximately

$1.2 trillion to $1.3 trillion of net assets

This amount inc/udes approximately$1 .0 trillion of col

lective trusts Each co/lective trust has been aggregated

separately and may include collective trusts that invest in

other collective trusts

The net assets of these VIEs primarily are comprised of

cash and cash equiva/ents and investments offset by

liabi/ities primarilycomprised of various accruals for the

sponsored investment vehicles

At December 312011 BlackRocks maximum risk of loss

associated with these VIEs primarily relates to advisory fee

receivables B/ackRocks investments and si $17 million

of credit protection so/d by BlackRockto third party in

synthetic COO transaction

Advisory Fee

Receivables

Maximum

Risk of Loss

$20

00



At December 312010

The size of the net assets of the VIEs thatthe Company does

not consolidate related to CDO5/CLO5 and other sponsored

investment funds including collective trusts was as follows

CDO5/CLO5 approximately $4 billion comprised of

approximately$7 billion of assets at fairvalue and $11 biSon

of liabilities primarily comprised of unpaid principal debt

obligations to CDOICLO debt holders

Other sponsored investmentsfunds approximately

$1.6 trillion to $1.7 trillion of net assets

This amount includes approximately$1 .2 trillion ofcol

lective trusts Each collective trust has been aggregated

separately and may include collective trusts that invest in

other collective trusts

The net assets of these VIEs primarily are comprised of

cash and cash equivalents and investments offset by

liabilities primarily comprised of various accruals for the

sponsored investment vehicles

At December31 2010 BlackRocks maximum risk of loss

associated with these VIEs primarily relates to advisory fee

receivables BlackRocks investments and iii $17 million

of credit protection sold by BlackRock to third party in

synthetic ODD transaction

Derivatives and Hedging

The Company entered into designated cash flow hedge

in May 2011 consisting of $750 million interest rate swap

maturing in 2013 to hedge future cash flows on floating
rate

notes due in 2013 Interest on this swap isatafixed rate of

1.03% payable semi-annually on May24 and November24

of each year commencing November 24 2011 See Note 11

Borrowings for more information.Thefairvalue of the interest

rate swap as of December31 2011 was not material to the

Companys consolidated financial statements

For the year ended December31 2010 the Company did not

hold any derivatives designated in formal hedge relationship

underASC8l5-1D

Advisory Fee

Receivables

$3

Other Net

Assets

Liabilities

$3

The Company maintains program to enter into total return

swaps to economically hedge against market price exposures

with respect to certain seed investments in sponsored invest

ment products At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company

had six outstanding total return swaps with two counterparties

with an aggregate notionalvalue of approximately $43 million

and $25 million respectively The fairvalue of the outstanding

total return swaps as of December31 2011 and 2010 was not

materialto the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Company acts as the portfolio manager in series of

credit default swap transactions referred to collectively as

the Pillars synthetic CDO transaction Pillars The Company

has entered into credit default swap with Citibank N.A

Citibank providing Citibank credit protection of approxi

mately $17 million representing the Companys maximum

risk of loss with respect to the provision of credit protection

The Companys management has performed an assessment

of its variable interest in Pillars collateral management

agreement and the credit default swap underASC 810-10 and

has concluded the Company is not Pillars PB Pursuant to ASC

815-10 the Company carries the Pillars credit default swap at

fair value based on the expected future cash flows under the

arrangement

On behalf of clients of the Companys registered life insurance

company that maintains separate accounts representing

segregated funds held for the purpose offunding individual

and group pension contracts the Company invests in various

derivative instruments which may include futures forward

foreign currency exchange contracts interest rate swaps and

inflation rate swaps Net realized and unrealized gains and

losses attributable to derivatives held by separate account

assets accrue directly to the contract owners and are not

reported in the Companys consolidated statements of income

The following table presents the carrying value as of

December31 2011 and 2010 of derivative instruments not

designated as hedging instruments

________ __________________
December 31 2010

Assets Liabilities

The fair value of the derivatives held by separate account assets is equal and offset by separate account liability

Variable Interests on the Consolidated

Statement of Financial Condition

Dollar amounts in millions Investments

CDDs/CLO5 $2

Other sponsored investment funds

Collective trusts 88 88

Other 28 52 80

Total $30 $243 $10 $290

Maximum

Risk of Loss

$22

December 312011

Assets LiabilitiesDollar amounts in millions

Credit default swap Pillars

Other liabilities $3 $3

Separate account derivatives

Separate account assets 1495 1599

Separate account liabilities 1495 1599

Total $1495 $1498 $1599 $1602

01



The following table presents gains losses recognized in income on derivative instruments for the years ended December31 2011

2010 and 2009

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Foreign currency exchange ccntractsm $5
Totalreturnswaps1 10
Credit default swaps PillarsY

Capital support agreementsni

Total $4 $7 $5

Ill
Gains losses on foreign exchange contracts and capital support agreements are included in general and administration expenses

Gains losses on total return and credit default swaps are included in non-Operating income enpnnsel

Gains losses on the interest rate swap entered into in 2011 were immaterialfor the year ended December31 2011

The Company consoidates certain sponsored investment funds which may utilize derivative instruments as part of the funds

investment strategy The fairvalue of such derivatives as of December 312011 and 2010 was not materialto the Companys con

solidated financial statements The change in fair value of such derivatives which is recorded in non-operating income expense

was not material to the Companys consolidated financial statements for the years ended December31 2011 2010 and 2009

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following

Estimated useful

lifein years

Qualifying software costs of approximately$37 million $39 million and $31 million have been capitalized within equipment and

computer software for the years ended December 312011 2010 and 2009 respectively and are being amortized over an esti

mated useful life of three years

Depreciation expense was $138 million $145 million and $85 million forthe years ended December 312011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Goodwull

Goodwill activity during the years ended December31 2011

and 2010 was as follows

Dollar amounts in millions 2011 2010

Beginning of year balance $12805 $1 2680

Goodwill acquired during the year

Goodwill adjustments related

to Quellos 13
End of year balance $12792 $1 2805

The decrease in goodwill during the year ended December 31

2011 primarily resulted from decline related to tax benefits

realized from tax-deductible goodwill in excess of bock goodwill

Duringthe year ended December 31 2010 goodwill increased

by $125 million The increase resulted from $136 million

release of common shares held in escrow in connection

with the acquisition of certain assets and the assumption

of certain liabilities of the fund of funds business of Quellos

Group LLC on October 2007 the Quellos Transaction

and the acquisition of substantially all of the net assets of

Helix FinanciaL Group LLC in January 200 offset by decline

related to tax benefits realized from tax-deductible goodwill in

excess of book goodwilL from the Quellos Transaction

At December 31 2011 the balance of the Quellos tax-deduct

ible goodwill in excess of book goodwill was approximately

$355 million Goodwill related to the Quellos Transaction will

continue to be reduced in future periods bythe amount of tax

benefits realized from tax-deductible goodwill in excess of

book goodwill from the Quellos Transaction

The impairmenttests performed for goodwill as of July 31

2011 2010 and 2009 indicated that no impairment charges

were required The Company continuoLisly monitors its book

value per share as compared with closing prices of its common

stock for potential
indicators of impairment As of December

31 2011 the Companys common stock closed at $178.24

which exceeded its book value per share of approximately

$140.07 after excluding appropriated retained earnings

December 31

2011Dollar amounts in millions 2010

Property and equipment

Land N/A $4 $4

Building 39 17 17

Building improvements 15 13 13

Leasehold improvements 1-15 452 352

Equipment and computer software 3-5 443 368

Furniture and fixtures 2-7 90 74

Construction in progress N/A 26

Gross property and equipment 1020 854

Less accumulated depreciation 483 426

Property and equipment net $537 $428

N/A Net Applicable
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10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets at December31 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following

Remaining

Weighted-Average

Estimated

Useful LifeDolloromounts in millions

Indefinite-Lived intangible assets

Management contracts N/A $15188 $15188

Trade names/trademarks N/A 1403 1403

License N/A

Total indefinite-lived intangible assets 16597 16597

Finite-lived intangibLe assets

Management contracts 5.4 1504 749 755

0ther 6.6

Totalfinite-lived intangible assets 5.4 1510 751 759

Total intangible assets $18107 $751 $17356

Remaining December 31 2010

Weighted-Average Gross

Estimated Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying

Dolloromounts in millions Useful Life Amount Amortization Amount

Indefinite-Lived intangibLe assets

Management contracts N/A $15188 $15188

Trade names/trademarks N/A 1403 1403

License N/A

Total indefinite-lived intangible assets 16.597 16.597

Finite-Lived intangibLe assets

Managementcontracts 6.3 1524 613 911

0ther1 7.6

Totalfinite-lived intangibleassets 6.3 1530 615 915

Total intangible assets $18127 $615 $17512

The impairment tests performed for intangible assets as of

July31 2011 2010 and 2009 indicated that no impairment

charges were required

Estimated amortization expense forfinite-lived intangible

assets for each of the five succeeding years is as follows

Dollor omounts in millions

11 Borrowings

Short-Term Borrowings

Amount

$155

155

148

119

83

The carryingvalue of short-term borrowings at December31

2011 and 2010 included $100 million underthe 2011 revolving

credit facility and $100 million under the 2007 revolving credit

facility respectively

2007 Revolving Credit Facility

In August 2007 the Company entered into five-year

$2.5 billion unsecured revolving credit facility the 2007 facil

ity which permitted the Company to request an additional

$500 million of borrowing capacity subject to lender credit

approval up to maximum of $3.0 billion On February 28

2011the $100 million was repaid and the 2007 facility was

terminated in March 2011

2011 Revolving Credit Facility

In March 2011 the Company entered into five-year $3.5 billion

unsecured revolving credit facility the 2011 credit facility

which replaced the 2007 facility The 2011 credit facility permits

the Company to request an additional $1.0 billion of borrowing

capacity subject to lender credit approval increasing the

overall size of the 2011 credit facility to an aggregate principal

amount not to exceed $4.5 billion Interest on borrowings

outstanding accrues at rate based on the applicable London

Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus spread The 2011 credit

facility requires the Company not to exceed maximum lever

age ratio ratio of net debt to earnings before interest taxes

depreciation and amortization where net debt equals total

debt less unrestricted cash of to which was satisfied with

ratio of approximately ito at December 312011

The 2011 creditfacility provides backup liquidity funds ongo

ing working capital for general corporate purposes and funds

various investment opportunities At December31 2011 the

Company had $100 million outstanding underthis facility with

an interest rate of 1.27% and maturity duringJanuary 2012

DuringJanuary 2012 the Company rolled overthe$100 million

in borrowings at an interest rate of 1.30% and maturity dur

ing February 2012 During February 2012 the Company rolled

December 312011

Gross

Carrying

Amount

Accumulated Net Carrying

Amortization Amount

N/A Not Applicable

Ill Other represents nieiiectirai property

Year
_________

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016
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over the $100 million in borrowings at an interest rate of 1.26%

and maturity during March 2012

Barclays has $255 million participation under the 2011 credit

facility

Commercial Paper Program

On October14 2009 BlackRock established commercial

paper program the OP Program under which the Company

could issue unsecured commercial paper notes the OP
Notes on private placement basis up to maximum aggregate

amount outstanding at anytime of$3 billion The proceeds

of the commercial paper issuances during 2011 were used

to fund portion of the repurchase of BlackRocks Series

Preferred Stock from affiliates of Merrill Lynch On May13

2011 BlackRock increased the maximum aggregate amount

that may be borrowed underthe OP Program from $3.0 billion

to $3.5 billion.TheCP Program is currently supported by the

2011 credit
facility

As of December31 2011 and 2010 BlackRock had no OP

Notes outstanding

Long-Term Borrowings

Convertible Debentures

In February 2005 the Company issued $250 million of

convertible debentures the Debentures due in 2035 and

bearing interest at rate of 2.625% per annum The excess of

the initial proceeds over the amount allocated to the liability

component created debt discount that was amortized to

interest expense over the expected life of the
liability

Interest

was payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and

August lSof each year On February 15 2009 the Debentures

became convertible at the option of the holder into cash and

shares of the Companys common stock at any time prior to

maturity and on February 20 2010 the convertible debentures

became callable by the Company On December 31 2010 the

carrying value and thefairvalue of the Debentures were

$67 million and $128 million respectively During the years

ended December31 2011 and 2010 holdersof$67 million and

$176 million respectively of Debentures converted their hold

ings into cash and shares

Long-term borrowings at December 312010 had carrying

value of $3192 million and farrvalue of $3381 million

2013 and 202 Notes

In May 2011 the Company issued $1.5 billion in aggregate

principal amount of unsecured unsubordinated obligations

These notes were issued as two separate series of senior

debt securities including$750 million of 4.25% notes and

$750 million of floating rate notes maturing in May 2021 and

2013 respectively Net proceeds of this offering were used to

fund the repurchase of BlackRocks Series Preferred Stock

from affiliates of Merrill Lynch Interest on the 4.25% notes

due in 2021 2021 Notes is payable semi-annually on May

24 and November24 of each year commencing November 24

2011 and is approximately $32 million peryear Interest on the

floating rate notes due in 2D132013 Floating Rate Notes

is payable quarterly on February 24 May 24 August24 and

November24 of each year The 2021 Notes may be redeemed

prior to maturity at any time in whole or in part at the option of

the Company at make-whole redemption price The 2013

Floating Rate Notes may not be redeemed at the Companys

option before maturity The 2021 Notes were issued at

discount of$4 million that is being amortized overthe term of

the notes The Company incurred approximately$7 million of

debt issuance costs forthe $1.5 billion note issuances which

are being amortized overthe respective terms of the notes As

of December 312011 $6 million of unamortized debt issuance

costs were included in other assets on the consolidated state

ment of financial condition

In May2011 in conjunction with the issuance of the 2013

Floating Rate Notes the Company entered into $750 million

notional interest rate swap maturing in 2013 to hedge the

future cash flows of its obligation at fixed rate of 1.03%

payable semi-annually on May24 and November24 of each

year commencing November 24 2011 The interest rate swap

effectively converts the 2013 Floating Rate Notes to fixed

rate obligation

2017 Notes

In September 2007 the Company issued $700 million in

aggregate principal amountof 6.25% senior unsecured

notes maturing on September15 2017 the 2017 Notes

Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and

September15 of each year or approximately$44 million per

year The 2017 Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity at

any time in whole or in part at the option of the Company at

make-whole redemption price The 2017 Notes were issued

at discount of $6 million which is being amortized over their

ten-year term The Company incurred approximately $4 mil

lion of debt issuance costs which are being amortized over

ten years As of December 312011 $2 million of unamortized

2.25%

Notes

due 2012

$500

The carrying value and fair value of long-term borrowings estimated using market prices at December31 2011 included the

following

Floating

Rate 3.50% 6.25% 5.00% 4.25% Total

Notes Notes Notes Notes Notes Long-term

fool/oromountsinmillions due2Ol3 due2Ol4 due2Ol7 due2Ol9 due2D2l Borrowings

Maturityamount $750 $1000 $700 $1000 $750 $4700

Unamortized discount 10
Carryingvalue $500 $750 $999 $697 $998 $746 $4690

Fairvalue $507 $749 $1074 $818 $1123 $786 $5057
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priorto the expiration of the commitment These unfundeddebt issuence costs were included in other assets on the

consolidated statement of financial condition

20122014 and 2019 Notes

In December 2009 the Company issued $2.5 billion in aggregate

principal amount of unsecured and unsubordinated obliga

tions These notes were issued as three separate series of

seniordebt securities inctuding$0.5 billion of 2.25% notes

$1.0 billion of 3.50% notes and $1.0 billion of 5.0% notes

maturing in December 2012 2014 and 2019 respectively Net

proceeds of this offering were used to repay borrowings under

the CP Program which was used to finances portion of the

acquisition of Barclays Global Investors 801 from Barclays

on December 12009 the BGI Transaction and for general

corporate purposes Interest on these notes is payable

semi-annually in arrears on June10 and December10 of each

year in an amount of approximately $96 million peryear These

notes may be redeemed prior to maturity at any time in whole

or in part at the option of the Company at make-whole

redemption price These notes were issued collectively at

discount of $5 million which is being amortized overthe

respective terms of the notes The Company incurred

approximately$13 million of debt issuance costs which are

being amortized over the respective terms of these notes As

of December 312011 $8 million of unamortized debt issuance

costs were included in other assets on the consolidated state

ment of financial condition

12 Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases its primary office space under agreements

which expire through 2035 Future minimum commitments

under these operating leases are as follows

Dotter omounts in millions

fear

201

2013

2014

2015

2016 99

Thereafter
_______ _____________

814

$1395

Rent expense and certain office equipment expense under

agreements amounted to $154 million $158 million and

$87 million for the years ended December 3120112010 and

2009 respectively

Investment Commitments

At December31 2011 the Company had $112 million of

various capital commitments tofund sponsored investment

funds including funds of private equity funds real estate

funds and distressed credit funds This amount excludes

addit.ional commitments made by consolidated funds of funds

to underlyingthird-party funds as third-party non-controlling

interest holders have the legal obligation to fund the

respective commitments of such funds of funds Generally

the timing of the funding of these commitments is unknown

and the commitments are callable on demand at anytime

commitments are not recorded on the Companys

consolidated statements of financial condition These

commitments do not include potential future commitments

approved by the Companys Capital Committee but which are

not yet legally binding The Company intends to make

additional capital commitments from time to time to fund

additional investment products for and with its clients

Contingencies

Other Contingent Payments

The Company acts as the portfolio manager in series

of credit default swap transactions and has maximum

potential exposure of $17 million under credit default swap

between the Company and Citibank See Note Derivatives

and Hedging for further discussion of this transaction and the

related commitment

Legal Proceedings

From time to time BlackRock receives subpoenas or other

requests for information from various U.S federal state

governmental and domestic and international regulatory

authorities in connection with certain industry-wide or other

investigations or proceedings It is BlackRocks policyto coop

erate fully with such inquiries The Company and certain of its

subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various legal

actions including arbitrations and other litigation arising in

connection with BlackRocks activities Additionally certain of

the investment funds that the Company manages are subject

to lawsuits any of which
potentially

could harm the invest

ment returns of the applicable fund or result in the Company

being liable to the funds for any resulting damages

lndemnifications

In the ordinary course of business BlackRock enters into

contracts pursuant to which it may agree to indemnify

third parties in certain circumstances The terms of these

indemnities vary from contract to contract and the amount of

indemnification liability if any cannot be determined

Under the transaction agreement in the MLIM Transaction the

Company has agreed to indemnify Merrill Lynch for losses it

may incur arising from any alleged or actual breach failure

to comply violation or other deficiency with respect to any

reguLatory orfiduciary requirements relatingto the operation

of BlackRocks business any fees or expenses incurred

or owed by BlackRock to any brokers financial advisors or

comparable other persons retained or employed by BlackRock

in connection with the MLIM Transaction and certain

specified tax covenants

Under the transaction agreement in the BGI Transaction

the Company has agreed to indemnify Barclays for losses it

Management after consultation with
legal counsel currently

does not anticipate that the aggregate liability
if any arising

out of regulatory matters or lawsuits will have material effect

Amount on BlackRocks earnings financial position or cash flows

$120 although at the presenttime management is not in position

131 to determine whether any such pending or threatened matters

121 will have material effect on BlackRocks results of opera-

110 tions in any future reporting period
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may incur arising from breach bythe Company of certain

representations breach by the Company of any covenant

in the agreement liabilities of the entities acquired in the

transaction other than liabilities assumed by Barclays or for

which it is providing indemnification and certain taxes

Management believes that the likeLihood of any liability

arising under the MLIM Transaction or the BGI Transaction

13 Stock-Based Compensation

indemnification provisions is remote Management cannot

estimate any potential maximum exposure due both to the

remoteness of any potential claims and the fact that items

that would be included within any such calculated claim

would be beyond the control of BlackRock Consequently no

liability has been recorded on the consolidated statements of

financial condition

The components of the Companys stock-based compensation expense are as follows

Year ended December 31

Oollcm amounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Stock-based compensation

Restricted stock and RSU5 $444 $375 $246

Long-term incentive plans funded by PNC 44 58 59

Stockoptions 12 12

Totalstock-based compensation $497 $445 $317

StockA ward and Incentive Plan Restricted Stock and RSUs

Pursuant to the BlackRock Inc 1999 StockAward and Pursuant to the Award Plan restricted stock grants and

Incentive Plan the Award Plan options to purchase shares RSU5 may be granted to certain empLoyees Substantially all

of the Companys common stock at an exercise price not less restricted stock and RSU5 vest over periods rangingfrom one

than the market value of BlackRocks common stock on the to five years and are expensed using the straight-line method

date of grant in the form of stock options restricted stock or over the requisite service period for each separateLyvesting

RSU5 may be granted to employees and non-employee direc- portion of the award as if the award was in-substance multiple

tors maximum of 27000000 shares of common stock were awards Priorto 2009 the Company awarded restricted stock

authorized for issuance underthe Award Plan Cf this amount and RSUs with nonforfeitable dividend equivaLent rights

7695603 shares remain available for future awards at Restricted stock and RSUs awarded beginning in 2009 are not

December31 2011 Upon exercise of employee stock options considered participating securities as the dividend equivalents

the issuance of restricted stock or the vesting of RSU5 the are subject to forfeiture prior to vesting of the award

Company issues shares out of treasury to the extent available

Restricted stock and RSU activityfor the years ended December31 2011 2010 and 2009 is summarized below

Restricted Stock Weighted Average

Outstanding at and Units Grant Date FairValue

December 31 2008 4603.953 $174.24

Granted 1869849 $118.43

Converted 894909 $178.53

Forfeited 218430 $157.21

December3l2009 5360.463 $154.75

Granted 3.283.321 $228.77

Converted 1400390 $156.09

Forfeited 500925 $198.86

December31 2010 6742.469 $1 87.24

Granted 2417650 $197.34

Converted 3377703 $163.66

Forfeited 253.635 $205.50

December 31 2011 5528781 $196.44

At December 31 2011 apprsximateiy 5.2 mdhon awards ale expected to vest and 0.2 miihon awards have vested but have sot been converted

The Company values restricted stock and PSUs at their grant-

date fair value as measured by BlackRocks common stock price

In 2009 the Company granted 1789685 RSU5 to employees

as part of annual incentive compensation under theAward

Plan that vest ratably over three years from the date of grant

In 2010 the Company granted the following awards under the

Award Plan

846884 PSUs to employees as part of annual incentive

compensation that vest ratably over three years from the

date of grant

455288 RSU5 to employees that cliff vested on January31

2012 the end of the service condition as BlackRock had ac

tual GAAP EPS in excess of $6.13 in 2010 The RSUs may not

be sold beforetheone-yearanniversaryofthevestingdate
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1497222 RSUsto employeesthatvest 50% on both January 31

2013 and 2014 the end of the service condition as

BlackRock had actual GAAP EPS in excess of $6.13 in 2010 and

124575 shares of restricted common stock to employees

thatvested intranches on January 31 2010 2011 and 2012

The restricted common stock may not be sold before the

one-year anniversary of each vesting date

In 2011 the Company granted the following awards under the

Award Plan

1594259 RSUs to employees as part of annual incentive

compensation that vest ratably over three years from the

date of grant and

609733 RSU5 to employees that cliffvest 100% on January

31 2014

At December 31 2D11there was $403 million in total unrecog

nized stock-based compensation expense related to unvested

RSU5 The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be

recognized over the remaining weighted-average period of 1.1

years

In January 2012 the Company granted the following awards

under the Award Plan

1365.691 RSU5 to employees as pert of annual incentive

compensation that vest ratably over three years from the

date of grant

418038 RSU5 to employees that cliff vest 100% on January

31 2015 and

616117 RSU5 which will primarily be funded by shares cur

rently
held by PNC see Long-Term Incentive Plons Funded by

PNC below The awards will vest on the fourth fifth or sixth

anniversaries of the grant date subject to pre-determined

market conditions being achieved during the six year term of

the award

Long-Term Incentive Plans Funded byPNC

Under share surrender agreement PNC committed to

provide up to 4000000 shares of BlackRock stock held by

PNC to fund certain BlackRock long-term incentive plans

LTIP In February 2009 the share surrender agreement was

amended for PNCt0 provide BlackRock series non-voting

participating preferred stock to fund the remaining committed

shares

On September 29 2011 1.3 million RSU5 vested and were

funded by PNC During 2007 through 2011 approximately

2.5 million shares were surrendered At December31 2011

approximately 0.2 million shares thatvest in January 2013

remain committed by PNC

At December 31 2011 the remaining shares committed by

PNC of approximately 1.3 million are available to fund future

long-term incentive awards including portion of the awards

granted in January 2012

Stock Options

Stock option grants were made to certain employees pursuant

to the Award Plan in 1999 through 2007 Options granted have

ten-year life vested ratably over periods ranging from two to

five years and became exercisable upon vesting The Company

has not granted any stock options subsequenttc the January

2007 grant which vested on September 29 2011 Stock option

activityfortheyearsended December31 2011 2DlOsnd 2009

is summarized below

Outstanding at

December 31 2008

Exercised

Forfeited

December 31 2009

Exercised

Forfeited

December 31 2010

Exercised

Forfeited

December 31.2011

Weighted Average

Remaining

Life Ivears

Shares under

opt ion

3140517

490617

18.064

2641836

2881 DO

9002

2344734

1515741

2.253

2190907

Weighted average

exercise price

$88.82

$34.92

$1 67.76

$98.59

$39.35

$167.76

$105.60

$1 08.59

$167.76

$105.33

Aggregate Intrinsic

Value of

Exercisable Shares

Dot/or omounta /n millions

$148

12

$160

As of December 312011 the Company had no remaining unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to unvested

stock options

At December 312011 aM options were veuted The aggregate intrinsic value of options eeercised during thu years ended December 3120112310 and 2009 yuan $13 miiihon $46 mOilion arrd

$63 mahon respectiueiy

Stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2011 were as follows

Ootions Outstanding and Exercisable

Options Weighted Average

Exercise Prices Outstanding Exercise Price

$37.36 1048933 0.79 $37.38

$167.76 1.141974 5.09 $167.76

2190907 3.03 $105.33
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Employee Stock Purchose Plan ESPP
The ESPP allows eligible employees to purchase the Companys

common stock at 95% of the fair market value on the last day

of each three-month offering period In accordance with

ASC 718-10 Compensation Stock Compensation the

Company does not record compensation expense related to

employees purchasing shares underthe ESPP

14 EmpLoyee Benefit Plans

Deferred Compensation Plans

Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company adopted Voluntary Deferred Compensation

Plan VDCPthatallows participantstoelecttodefer

between 1% and 100% of their annual cash incentive com

pensation The participants must specify deferral period of

one three five or ten years The Company funds the obligation

through the establishment of rabbi trust on behalf of the

plans participants

Rabbi Trust

The rabbi trList established for the VDCP with assets totaling

$59 million and $66 million as of December 312011 and 2010

respectively is reflected in investments on the Companys

consolidated statements of financial condition Such invest

ments are classified as trading and other investments The

corresponding liability balance of $59 million and $66 million as

of December31 2011 and 2010 respectively is reflected on the

Companys consolidated statements of financial condition as

accrued compensation and benefits Earnings in the rabbi trust

including unrealized appreciation or depreciation are reflected

as non-operating income expense and changes in the corre

sponding liability are reflected as employee compensation and

benefits expense on the consolidated statements of income

Other Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company has additional compensation plans for the

purpose of providing deferred compensation and retention

incentives to certain employees For these plans the final

value of the deferred amount to be distributed upon vesting is

associated with the returns of certain investment funds The

liabilities for these plans were $34 million and $23 million as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively and are reflected in

the Companys consolidated statements offinanoial condition

as accrued compensation and benefits In January 2012 the

Company granted approximately $60 million of additional

deferred compensation that willfluctuate with investment re

turns and willvest ratablyover three years from the date of grant

Defined Contribution Plans

BlackRock Retirement Savings Plan

Certain of the Companys employees participate in the

BlackRock Retirement Savings Plan BRSP Prior to

January 2011 employee contributions of up to 6% of

eligible compensation as defined bythe plan and subject

to Internal Revenue Code IRC limitations were matched

by the Company at 50% As part of the BRSP the Company

also made an annual reti rement contribution on behalf of

each eligible participant equalto no less than 3% of eligible

compensation plus an additional amount determined at the

discretion of the Company not to exceed 2% of eligible com

pensation for total contribution of no more than 5% of eli

gible compensation who has attained one year of service and

remain employed with the Companythrough the end of the

plan year The BRSP expense forthe Company was $43 million

$35 million and $24 million forthe years ended December31

20112010 and 2009 respectively Contributions to the BRSP

are made in cash and no new investments in BlackRock stock

or matching contributions of stock are available in the BRSP

Effective January 2011 all U.S employees including U.S

legacy 851 employees became participants in the BRSP All

plan assets in the two legacy BGI plans including the 401

Plan and Retirement Plan see below were merged into

the BRSP on January 12011 Under the combined BRSP

employee contributions of up to 8% of eligible compensation

as defined by the plan and subject to IRC limitations were

matched by the Company at 50% In addition the Company

will continue to make an annual retirement contribution to

eligible participants equal to 3-5% of
eligible compensation

BlockRock Institutional Trust Company 401k Savings Plan

formerly the BGI 401k Savings Plan

The Company assumed 401k Plan the BGI Plan covering

employees of former BGI as result of the BGI Transaction As

part of the BGI Plan employee contributions for participants

with at least one year of service were matched at 200% of

participants pretax contributions up to 2% of base salary

and overtime and matched 100% of the next 2% of base

salary and overtime as defined by the plan and subjectto PC

hmitations The maximum matching contribution participant

would have received is an amount equal to 6% of base salary

up to the IRC limitations Effective January 2011 the net

assets of this plan merged into the BRSP The BGI Plan

expense was $12 million and was immaterial for the years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectiveLy

BlackRock Institutional Trust Company Retirement Plan

formerly the BGI Retirement Plan

TheCompanyassumed adefinedcontribution moneypur

chase pension plan BGI Retirement Plan as result of the

BGI Transaction All salaried employees of former BGI and its

participating affiliates who were U.S residents on the U.S

payroll were eligible to participate Par participants earning

less than $100000 in base salary the Company contributed

6% of participants total compensation base salary over

time and performance bonus up to $100000 For participants

earning $100000 or more in base salary the Company

contributed 6% of participants base salary and overtime up

to the IRC limitation of $245000 in 2010 These contributions

were 25% vested once the participant completed two years

of service and then vested at rate of 25% for each additional

year of service completed Employees with five or more years

of service under the BGI Retirement Plan were 100% vested in

their entire balance EffectiveJanuary 12011 the net assets

of this plan merged into the BRSP The BGI Retirement Plan

expense was $13 million and was immaterial for the years

ended December31 2010 and 2009 respectively
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BlockRock Group Personol Pension Plon

BlackRock Investment Management U.K Limited BIM
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company contributes to the

BlacklRock Group Personal Pension Plan defined contribution

plan for all employees of BIM BIM contributes between 6% and

15% of each employees eligible compensation The expense

for this plan was $26 million $22 million and $13 million forthe

yearsended December31 2011 2OlOand 2009 respectively

Defined Benefit Plans

In 2009 prior to the BGI Transaction the Company had

several defined benefit pension plans in Japan Germany

Luxembourg and Jersey All accrued benefits under these

defined benefit plans are currentlyfrozen and the plans are

closed to new participants The participant benefits under the

plans will notchange with salary increases or additional years

of service

In conjunction with the BGI Transaction the Companyassumed

defined benefit pension plans in Japan and Germany which

are closed to new participants During 2010 these plans

merged into the legacy BlackRock plans in Japan the Japan

Plan and Germany At December31 2011 and 2010 the plan

assets for these plans were approximately $21 million and

$19 million respectively and the unfunded obligations were

less than $3 million and $6 million respectively which were

recorded in accrued compensation and benefits on the con

solidated statements of financial condition Benefit payments

for the next five years and in aggregate for the five years

thereafter are not expected to be material

Defined benefit plan assets for the Japan Plan of approximately

$18 million are invested using total return investment ap

proach whereby mix of equity securities debt securities and

other investments are used to preserve asset values diversify

risk and achieve the target investment return benchmark

Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on con

sideration of plan liabilities and the funded status of the plan

Investment performance and asset allocation are measured

and monitored on an ongoing basis The current target alloca

tions for the plan assets are 45-50% for U.S and international

equity securities 50-55%forU.S and internationalfixed

income securities and 0-5% for cash and cash equivalents

The table below provides the fair value of the defined benefit Japan Plan assets at December31 2011 and 2010 by asset category

The table also identifies the level of inputs used to determine the fair value of assets in each category

Dollar amounts in millions

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity Securities

Fixed income securities

Fair value of olan assets

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets

for Identical

Assets Level

$1

Significant

Other

Observable

inputsLevel2

The assets and unfunded obligation for the defined benefit pension plans in Germany and Jersey were immaterial

Post-retirement Benefit Plans

The Company provides post-retirement medical benefits to

closed population of employees based in the United Kingdom

Forthe years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

expenses and unfunded obligations for these benefits were

immaterial

In addition the Company provides retirement medical benefits

to closed population of BGI employees in the United States

At December 31 2011 and 2010 the accumulated benefit

obligation for this unfunded plan which is included in accrued

compensation and benefits on the consolidated statements

of financial condition was approximately $8 million and $7

million respectively Fortheyearsended December31 2011

2010 and 2009 expenses for these benefits were immaterial

to the Companys consolidated financial statements The

post-retirement medical plan costs are developed from

actuarial valuations that include key assumptions including

the discount rate and health care cost trends Changes in

retiree medical plan benefit costs may occur in the future

due to changes in these assumptions changes in the number

of plan participants and increases in the cast of healthcare

Benefit payments for the next five years and in aggregate for

the five years thereafter are not expected to be material The

estimated impact of one percentage-point change in the

discount rate would be change of less than $100 thousand

on the 2011 expense and would change the projected benefit

obligation by approximately $1 million

December 31

2011

$1

$10 $8 $18

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Markets Other

for Identical Observable December 31

Doliaramountsin millions Assets Level 11 Inputs Level 2010

Cash and cash equivalents $9 $9

Equity securities

Fixed income securities

Fair value of plan assets $13 $3 $16
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15 ReLated Party Transactions Merrill Lynch/Bank af America

Determination of Related Parties

Barclays

The Company considers Barclays along with its affiliates to

be related parties in accordance with ASO 850-10 Reloted

Porty Disclosures ASC 850-10 based on its level of capital

stock ownership At December31 2011 Barclays owned

approximately 2.2% of the Companys voting common stock

and held approximately 19.7% of the total capital stock

PNC

The Company considers PNC along with its affiliates to be re

lated parties based on the level of its ownership of BlackRock

capital stock At December31 2011 PNC owned approxi

mately 24.0% of the Companys voting common stock and held

approximately 21.0% of the total capital stock

As resultof the MUM Transaction in 2006 the Company

considered Merrill Lynch subsidiary of Bank of America

along with its affiliates to be related parties based on its

level of ownership Subsequent to the secondary offer

ing
in November 2010 by Bank of America of shares of the

Companys stock Merrill Lynch and Bank of America were no

longerconsidered related parties.At December31 2011 Bank

of America did not own any of the Companys capital stock

Registered Investment Companies and Equity Method

Investments

The Company considers the registered investment companies

that it manages which include mutual funds and exchanged

traded funds to be related parties as result of the

Companys advisory relationship In addition equity method

investments are considered related parties in accordance

with ASC 850-10 due to the Companys influence over the

financial and operating policies of the investee

Investment Advisory andAdministration Fees from Related Parties

Revenues for services provided by the Companyto these and other related parties are as follows

Year ended December 31

OoIIor omouots in millions 2011 2010 2009

Investment advisory administration fees and securities lending revenue

Bank of America and affiliates $37 $48

PNC and affiliates

Barclays arid affiliates 14 14

Registered investment companies/Equity method investees 5282 4833 2561

Other

Total investment advisory and administration fees 5303 4893 2516

Investment advisory performance fees 54 39 35

BlockRock Solutions and advisory

Bank of America and affiliates

PNC arid affiliates

Equity method investees 15 17 21

Total BlockRock Solutions and advisory 21 27 31

Other revenue

Bank of America and affiliates 13

PNC and affiliates

Barclays and affiliates 35 35

Equity method investees 15 22 15

Other

Totalotherrevenue 53 66 34

Total revenue from related parties $5431 $5025 $2716

The Company provides investment advisory and administra

tion services to its open- and closed-end funds and other

commingled or pooled funds and separate accounts in which

related parties invest In addition the Company provides

investment advisory and administration services to Bank of

America/Merrill Lynch Barclays and PNC and its affiliates

for fees based on AUM Further the Company provides risk

management services to PNC and Bank of America/Merrill

Lynch The Company contracts with Bank of America/Merrill

Lynch forvarious mutual fund distribution and shareholder

servicing to be performed on behalf of certain non-U.S funds

managed by the Company The Company records its invest

ment advisory and administration fees net of retrocessions

Such retrocession arrangements paid to Bank of America and

affiliates during 2010 prior to the secondary offering and

2009 were $88 million and $85 million respectively
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Aggregate Expenses for Transactions with Related Parties

Aggregate expenses included in the consolidated statements of income for transactions with related parties are as follows

Year ended December31

2010 2009Dollar amounts in millions 2011

Expenses with related parties

Distribution and servicing costs

Bank cf America and affiliates $214 $349

PNC and affiliates 11 19

Barclays and affiliates

Total distribution and servicing costs 226 368

Direct fund expenses

Bank of America and affiliates 10

Barclays and affiliates

Totaldirectfundexpenses 16

General and administration expenses

Bank of America and affiliates 11

Barclays and affiliates 15 14

Anthracite Capital Inc 14 31

Other registered investment companies 42 33 31

Other

Total general and administration expenses 60 72 73

Total expenses with related parties $73 $314 $441

Certain Agreements andArrangements with Barclays

In connection with the completion of its acquisition of BGI

BlackRock entered into Stockholder Agreement dated

December 12009 the Barclays Stockholder Agreement

with Barclays and Barclays BR Holdings SarI BR Holdings

and together with Barclays the Barclays Parties Pursuant

to the terms of the Barclays Stockholder Agreement the

Barclays Partiesagreed amongotherthingstocertaintrans

fer and voting restrictions with respect to shares of BlackRock

common stock and preferred stock owned bythem and their

affiliates to limits on the ability of the Barclays Parties and

their affiliates to acquire additional shares of BlackRock

common stock and preferred stock and to certain other

restrictions In addition the Barclays Stockholder Agreement

contains certain provisions relating to the composition of

BlackRocks board of directors including requirement that

BlackRocks board must consist of not more than 19 directors

with two directors designated by the Barclays Parties

In addition Barclays and certain of its affiliates have been

engaged by the Company to provide the use of certain indices

for certain BlackRock investments funds and for fee to

provide indemnification to clients related to potential losses

in connection with lending of client securities Forthe years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 fees incurred for these

agreements were $18 million and $14 million recorded within

direct fund expenses and general and administration expenses

respectively Such amountsfortheyearended December31

2009 were not material

Certain Agreements andArrangements

with PNCand Merrill Lynch

PNC

On February 27 2009 BlackRock entered into an amended

and restated implementation and stockholder agreement

with PNC and third amendment to the share surrender

agreement with PNC See Note 17 Capital Stock forfurther

discussion

The changes contained in the amended and restated stock

holder agreement with PNC in relation to the prior agreement

among other things revised the definitions of Fair Market

Value Ownership Cap Ownership Percentage Ownership

Threshold and Significant Stockholder and ii amended

or supplemented certain other provisions therein to incor

porate series preferred stock and series preferred stock

respectively

The amendment to the share surrender agreement with PNC

provided for the substitution of series preferred stock for

the shares of common stock subject to the share surrender

agreement

In June 2009 in connection with the BGI Transaction certain

additional amendments were made to the amended and

restated stockholder agreement with PNC

The amended and restated stockholder agreement with PNC

was changed to among otherthings revise the definitions

of Ownership Cap and Ownership Threshold amend or

supplement certain other definitions and provisions therein to

incorporate series participating preferred stock iii provide

that none of the transfer restriction provisions set forth in the

amended and restated stockholder agreement with PNC apply

to the shares purchased by PNC as partof the financingforthe

BG Transaction liv amend the provision relating to the com

position of BlackRocks Board of Directors and provide that

the amended and restated stockholder agreement with PNC

shall terminate upon the later of the five-year anniversary

of the amended and restated stockholder agreement with PNC

and the first date on which PNC and its affiliates benefi

cially own less than 5% of the outstanding BlackRock capital

stock subject to certain other conditions specified therein

Merrill Lynch

In November 2010 in connection with the secondary offer

ing by Bank of America of shares of BlackRocks common

stock the Company entered into an amended and restated

stockholder agreement and an amended and restated global

distribution agreement with Merrill Lynch
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The changes to the stockholder agreement with Merrill Lynch

provides among otherthings for the following reduction

in the number of directors Merrill Lynch is entitled to desig

nate upon its holdingfalling below 10% and 5% thresholds

reduction of the cap on total ownership of BlackRock

capital stock iii restrictions on Merrill Lynch transferring

any shares until November15 2011 and iv the setting of

termination date of the agreement to July31 2013

The global distribution agreement provides framework under

which Merrill Lynch provides distribution and servicing of

client investments in certain BlackRock investment advisory

products The amendment to the global distribution agree

ment clarifies certain economic arrangements with respect to

revenue neutrality across BlackRock products distributed by

Merrill Lynch

The total amount of related party transactions expensed by

BlackRock through November2010 and full year 2009 related

to Merrill Lynch distribution and servicing of products covered

by the global distribution agreement including mutual funds

separate accounts liquidity funds alternative investments

and insurance products was approximately $210 million and

$337 million respectively

In addition in connection with the MLIM Transaction Merrill

Lynch agreed that it will provide reimbursement to BlackRock

for employee incentive awards issued to former MLIM employ

ees who became BlackRock employees subsequent to the

MUM Transaction Reimbursements amounted to 50% of the

total amount of awards to former MLIM employees between

$100 million and $200 million The Company invoiced Merrill

Lynch following its determination of the portion of awards

entitled to reimbursement for given calendar year Through

January 2007 the Company had issued total eligible incentive

compensation to qualified employees in excess of $200 million

In 2011 2010 and 2009 Merrill Lynch reimbursed $8 million

$10 million and $25 million respectively to BlackRock for

employee incentive awards issued to former MLIM employees

who became BLackRock employees subsequent to the MLIM

Transaction Upon receipt the reimbursements were recorded

as capital contributions

Merrill Lynch and certain of its affiliates have been engaged

by the Company to provide recordkeeping administration end

trustee services to the BRSP The compensation to Merrill

Lynch and its affiliates forthese services paid by the Company

was not material

Receivables and Payables with Related Parties

Due from related parties was $142 million and $150 million

at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively and primarily

represented tax indemnification asset due from Barclays

receivables for investment advisory and administration services

provided by BlackRock and other receivables from certain

investment products managed by Blackpock Due from related

parties at December31 2011 included $56 million due from

certain funds and $69 million ofatax indemnification asset

due from Barclays Due from related parties at December31

2010 included $71 million due from certain funds $69 million

of tax indemnification asset due from Barclays and $10 mil

lion in receivables from PNC and Barclays

Accounts receivable at December 312011 and 2010 included

$540 million and $559 million respectively related to receiv

ables from BleckRock mutualfunds and iShares for invest

ment advisory and administration services

Due to related parties was $22 million and $57 million at

December31 2011 and 2010 respectively and primarily

represented liabilities assumed in the BGI Transaction Due

to related parties at December 31 2011 included $13 mil

lion and $9 million payable to certain investment products

managed by BlackRock and Barclays respectively Due to

related parties at December31 2010 included $41 million

and $15 million payable to Barclays and certain investment

products managed by BlackRock respectively The payable

at December31 2010 to Barclays included non-interest

bearing notes assumed by BlackRock at the close of the 861

Transaction related to certain acquired tax receivables and

other contractual items

16 Net Capital Requirements

The Company is required to maintain net capital in certain

regulated subsidiaries within number of jurisdictions which

is partially maintained by retaining cash and cash equivalent

investments in those subsidiaries or jurisdictions As result

such subsidiaries of the Company may be restricted in their

ability to transfer cash between different jurisdictions and to

their parents Additionally transfers of cash between interna

tional jurisdictions including repatriation to the United States

may have adverse tax consequences that could discourage

such transfers

Banking Regulatory Requirements

BlackRock InstitutionalTrust Company NA BTC
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is chartered as

national bank whose powers are limited to trust activities

BTC is subject to various regulatory capital requirements

administered bythe Federal banking agencies Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory

and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators

that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the

Companys consolidated financial statements Under the

capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework

for prompt corrective action BTC must meet specific capital

guidelines that invoke quantitative measures of BTCs assets

liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated

under the regulatory accounting practices BTCs capital

amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative

judgments by the regulators about components risk weight

ings and other factors

Quantitative measures established by regulators to ensure

capital adequacy require BTC to maintain minimum Tier

capital and Tier leverage ratio as well as Tier and Total

risk-based capital ratios Based on BTCs calculations as

of December31 2011 and 2010 it exceeded the applicable

capital adequacy requirements
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For Capital

Adequacy_Purposes

Amount Ratio

To Be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt Corrective

Action_Provisions

Amount Ratio

Broker-dealers

BlackRock Investments LLC BlackRock Capital Markets

LLC BlackRock Execution Services and BlackRock Fund

Distribution Company are registered broker-dealers and

wholly owned subsidiaries of BlackRock that are subject to

the Uniform Net Capital requirements under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 which requires maintenance of certain

minimum net capital levels

Capital Requirements

At December31 2011the Company was required to maintain

spproximately$1196 million in netcapital in certain regulated

subsidiaries including BTC entities regulated by the Financisl

Services Authority CFSA in the United Kingdom and the

broker-dealers and was in compliance with all applicable

regulatory minimum net capital requirements

17 Capital Stock

Capital StockAuthorized

BlackRocks authorized common stock $0.01 par value

was 500000000 shares at December 312011 and 2010

At December 31 2011 and 2010 BlackPock had 20000000

series non-voting participating preferred shares $0.01 par

value authorized At December31 2011 and 2010 BlackRock

had 50.000000 series non-voting participating preferred

shares $0.01 par value authorized At December31 2011

and 2010 BlackRock had 6000000 series non-voting

participating preferred shares $0.01 parvalue authorized

At December 31 2011 and 2010 BlackRock had 20000000

series non-voting participating preferred shares $0.01 par

value authorized

Common Shares Held in Escrow

On October 2007 the Company acquired the fund of funds

business of Quellos The Company issued 1191785 shares

of BlsckRock common stock that were placed into an escrow

account As of December31 2011 1188182 common shares

had been released to Quellos in accordance with the Quellos

asset purchase agreement which resulted in an adjustment

to the recognized purchase price and had dilutive effect

subsequent to the release The remaining 3603 common

shares may have dilutive effect in future periods based on

the timing of the release of shares from the escrow account in

accordance with the Quellos asset purchase agreement

February2009 Capital Exchanges

On January 12009 Bank of America acquired Merrill Lynch

In connection with this transaction BlackRock entered into

exchange agreements with each of Merrill Lynch and PNC

pursuant to which each agreed to exchange portion of

the BlackRock common stock it held for an equal number

of shares of non-voting participating preferred stock On

February 27 2009 Merrill Lynch exchanged 49865000

shares of BlackRocks common stock for alike number of

shares of BlackRocks series non-voting participating

preferred stock and ii 12604918 shares of BlackRocks

series preferred stock for like number of shares of series

preferred stock and PNC exchanged 17872000 shares

of BlackRocks common stock for alike number of shares of

series non-voting preferred stock and ii 2889467 shares

of BlackRocks common stock for like number of shares of

BlackRocks series non-voting participating preferred stock

Below is summary description of the series and preferred

stock issued in the exchanges

The series non-voting participating preferred stock

is non-voting except as otherwise provided by applicable law

participates in dividends on basis generally equal to the

common stock

benefitsfrom aliquidation preferenceof$0.01 pershare

and

is mandatorily convertible to BlackRock common stock upon

transfer to an unrelated party

The series non-voting participating preferred stock

is non-voting except as otherwise provided by applicable law

participates in dividends on basis generally equal to the

common stock

benefits from liquidation preference of $40.00 per share

and

is only convertible to BlackRock common stock upon the ter

mination of the obligations of PNC under its share surrender

agreement with BlackRock

Actual

Dolloromounts in millions Amount Ratio

December 31 2011

Total capital to risk weighted assets $720 104.1% $55 8.0% $69 10.0%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets $720 104.1% $28 4.0% $42 6.0%

Tier capital to average assets $720 45.1% $64 4.0% $80 5.0%

December31 2010

Total capital to risk weighted assets $874 103.3% $68 8.0% $85 10.0%

Tier capital to risk weighted assets $874 103.3% $34 4.0% $51 6.0%

Tier capital to average assets $874 55.1% $64 4.0% $79 5.0%
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2009 Capital StockActivities Related toBGI Transaction November2010 Capital Exchanges

In June and December 2009 the Company raised capital from

third-party investors via private placement of 19914652

shares of capital stock at an agreed upon fixed price of

$140.60 per share to finance the cash consideration of the

351 Transaction The issuance price of $140.60 was based on

the valuation of the Companys common shares for 10-day

period prior to the announcement of the BGI Transaction less

an agreed upon discount Subsequent to the determination

of the issuance price the number of shares to be issued were

fixed

In June 2009 the Company issued to an institutional

investor 2133713 shares of BlackRocks common stock at

$140.60 per share The $300 million in proceeds from this

issuance were used to fund portion of the purchase of BGI

On December 12009 pursuant to separate stock purchase

agreements entered into on June 112009 and June12

2009 as amended BlackRock sold an aggregate of 8637519

shares of common stock 5587232 shares of series

non-voting participating preferred stock and 3556188

shares of series non-voting participating preferred stock

collectively the Financing Shares to certain institutional

investors including the sale of the 3556188 shares of series

non-voting participating preferred stock to PNC each at

price of $140.60 per share The Company received approxi

mately $2.5 billion in total consideration from the sale of

the Financing Shares which was also used to fund the cash

portion of the purchaseof DCI

At the close of the BGI Transaction on December 2009 the

Company issued 3031516 common shares and 26888001

and 7647524 of series Band non-voting participating

preferred stock respectively to Barclays as part of the con

sideration for the purchase of BGI

January2010 Capital Exchange

In January 2010 600000 common shares were exchanged for

Series preferred stock and all 11203442 Series preferred

stock outstanding at December31 2009 were exchanged for

Series preferred stock

On November15 2010 the Company announced the clos

ing
of the secondary offerings by Bank of America and PNC

of 58737122 shares of BlackRocks common stock which

included 56407040 shares of common stock issued upon the

conversion of BlackRocks series non-voting participating

preferred stock Concurrently with the secondary offerings

BlackRock issued 11105000 shares of common stock to PNC

in exchange for an equal number of shares of series non

voting participating preferred stock

May2011 Barclays Sale and Conversion

In May 20112356750 shares of Series Convertible Preferred

Shares owned by Barclays were automatically converted to

shares of common stock upon their disposition

June2011 Stock Repurchase Agreement

On June 12011 BlackRock completed its repurchase of Bank

of Americas remaining ownership interest of 13562878

Series Convertible Preferred Shares for $2545 billion or

$187.65 per share

September2011 Institutional Investor Capital Exchange

In September 2011 an institutional investor exchanged

2860188 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Shares for

common shares

September2011 PNC Capital Contribution

In September 2011 PNC surrendered to BlackPock approxi

mateLy 1.3 million shares of BlackRock Series non-voting

participating preferred stock to fund certain LTIP awards in

accordance with the share surrender agreement between

PNC and BlackRock

Cash Dividends for Common and Preferred Shares/RSUs

During the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

the Company paid cash dividends of $5.50 per share or $1014

million $4.00 per share or $776 million and $3.12 per share

or $422 milton respectively
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The Companys oommon and preferred shares issued end outstanding and related activity consist ofthefollowing

Shares lsssed Shares Outstardirg

tscroe Treasury Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred Preferred

Cosmos tssrrsr torrimar Shares Shsres Shares Shares tsrrrrss Shares Shares Shares Slraras

Shares Shares Shares SsrissA Series Series Series Shares Series Series Series Series

Dscerobsr3t.2008 118.573367 911.266i 370.991 12.504.918 117291710 12.504.918

lassarcs of rharasts

irastotissalirsastars 10471232 S.S87.232 3.555788 10771.232 5.587.232 3.S5S.t88

lsssarcs of shares as

Barclays 3.031.516 35.888.001 7847254 0031.516 26.088001 7.647.254

lssua ace of cairn mar

shares far
castingart

csnsidsratisn 330.341
330.341

Paleareafcommoa stack

frarr eacrae ageat

ir cooraclisa sith

tuatoaTsaaaoioo 42.325 42.326

Set iaauaaceofcommaa

shares relatad to

amplayee stock

trarsactisar aad

coroertibla dedt

caroaraisas 596788 4tSJ89 1707.577

Eachaaga
of preferred

sharaaAforB 02.604.9t8 t2.6t4.9t8 12.604.9t8 t2.004.9t8

tac ha rgo of carr rr or

shares far preferred

shares i67737.000 67737000 5737004 67737.000

Soc ha age of comsoa

shares for preferred

shares 2.889.067 2.88445 2.8844t71 2.889467

PSt LOP capital

caatribotior 51.399
15199

Secearber3l.2009 62176.777 1808.940 tlt50t 1t2.8l7151 2.809.467 lt203.442 6t.09623h 112.817751 3.889.467 tt.2S3.442

Paleara of commoo stock

from escrow ageat

is coaractisa with

toeltosTsrsactioo 865.337 865.337

Shares reporchasad 896.102 896.192

Sac ha age of corn mao

atock far preferred

rhares 603.388 600.000 000.004 tOt0S0

Sat issuarco of comrror

shares related Is

employee atack

traaoaoiora aad

coroertible debt

coosarsiors t634.807 804243 2.439.050

Eachaoga of preferred

ohararDfarB 11.203442 tt.203.442 11.203.442 11.203402

Bechaoga of preferred

shares or

coarmoasharea 67512040 67.512.040 t7.5t2.040 67.5t2.0401

TNt LTIP capital

coatribotior 123.028 123028

Dacamderyt.20t0 131.923624 13.603 1703.460 57108003 2866439 t3t.216.5t1 07108553 2866.439

Eacharga of preferred

shares Bfar

comsoraharas 5316.939 5.218.938 0.2t6.938 5.216938

Shams repochasad 6t8.000i 13.563.878 1618.0001 t3562.8781

Nat iaaoaace of commor

shares reaf ad to

employee stack

traosac0008 sod

coaoartibla debt

cosoamiaaa 21398t8 92182 2.647.636

PNCLTlPcapita

coatributioa 11.349.202
t349.2021

December31 2811 139800380 3603 1413642 38328737 1517237 138463135 38328737 1517237

ate



18 Restructuring Charges

During the fourth quarter of 2011 the Company reduced its

workforce globally by approximately 3.4% This action was

the result of cost cutting initiative designed to streamline

operations enhance competitiveness and better position

the Company in the asset management marketplace The

Company recorded pretax restructuring charge of ap

proximately $32 million $22 million after-tax during the year

ended December31 2011 This charge was comprised of $24

million of severance and associated outplacement costs and

$8 million of expenses related to the accelerated amortization

of previously granted equity-based compensation awards

19 Income Taxes

The following table presents rollforward of the Companys

restructuring liability which is included within other liabilities

on the Companys consolidated statements of financial

condition

Dollor omounts in millions

Liability as of December 31 201 Quui $2

Additions 32

Cash payments

Accelerated amortization of equity-based awards

Liabtity as of December 312011 $18

Liabiiiity
amount as of December 31 2010 reialed toO pretax reotructuring charge of $22

miiihorr recorded during the year ended December31 2000

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Year ended December31

Dollor omounto in millions 2011 2010 2009

Current income tax expense

Federal $693 $708 $342

State and local 54 60 36

Foreign 186 200 86

Total net current income tax expense 933 968 464

Deferred income tax expense benefit

Federal 52 28

State and local 112 10 60
Foreign 77 35 22

Total net deferred income tax expense benefit 137 89
Total income tax expense $796 $971 $375

Income tax expense has been based on the following components of income before taxes less net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests

Yearerded December31

Dollor omounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Domestic $2397 $2258 $899

Foreign 736 776 351

Total $3133 $3034 $1250

The foreign income before taxes includes countries which have statutory tax rates that are lower than the U.S federal statutory

tax rate of 35% such as the United Kingdom Luxembourg Canada and the Netherlands

reconciliation of income tax expense with expected federal income tax expense computed at the applicable federal income tax

rate of 35% is as follows

Year ended December 31

Oolloromounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Statutory income tax expense $1097 35% $1062 35% $438 35%

Increase decrease in income taxes remultingfrom

State and local taxes net of federal benefit 59 53 21

Impact of foreign state and local tax rate changes

on deferred taxes 188 27 45
Effectofforeigntaxrates 197 145 81
Other 25 28 42

Incometaxexpense $796 25% $971 32% $375 30%
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Deferred income taxes are provided for the effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its

reported amount in the Companys consolidated financial statements These temporary differences result in taxable or deductible

amounts in future years

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are shown below

December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 201 2010

Deferred income tax assets

Compensation and benefits $304 $374

Unrealized investment losses 110 108

Loss carryforwards
87 67

Other 229 186

Gross deferred tax assets 730 735

Less deferred tax valuetion allowances 95 78

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowences 635 657

Deferred income tax liabilities

Goodwill and acquired indefinite-lived intangibles 5675 5813

Acquired finite-lived intangibles 208 271

Other 69 40

Gross deferred tax liabilities 5952 6124

Net deferred tax liabilities $5317 $5467

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded net

when related to the same taxjurisdiction At December31 2011

the Company recorded on the consolidated statement of finan

cial condition deferred income tax assets within other assets

and deferred income tax liabilities of $6 million and $5323 mil

lion respectively At December31 2010 the Company recorded

on the consolidated statement offinancial condition deferred

income tax assets within other assets and deferred income

tax liabilities of $10 million and $5477 million respectively

In the second and third quarter of 2011 en enacted state tax

law and state tax election went into effect which resulted

ma revaluation of certain net deferred income tax liabilities

primarily related to acquired intangible assets which resulted

in $52 million and $91 million tax benefit respectively The

United Kingdom in the third quarter of 2011 and Japan in the

fourth quarterof 2011 enacted legislation reducingcorporate

income tax rates which resulted in revaluation of certain net

deferred incometax liabilities primarily related to acquired

intangible assets which resulted in $60 million and $1.3 mil

lion tax benefit respectively

The Company had deferred income tax asset related to

unrealized investment losses of approximately $110 million

and $108 million as of December31 2011 and 2010 respec

tively reflecting the Companys conclusion that based on the

weight of available evidence it is more likelythan not that the

deferred tax asset will be realized Realized capital losses

may be carried back three years and carried forward five years

and offset against realized capital gains for federal income

tax purposes The Company expects to be able to carry back

portion of its unrealized capital losses when realized hold

certain fixed income securities over period sufficient for

them to recover their unrealized losses and to generate future

capital gains sufficienttc offset the unrealized capital
losses

At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had available

state net operating loss carry forwards of $388 million and

$182 million respectively which will expire on or before 2032

As of December31 2011 the Company had foreign net operat

ing loss carryforwards of $132 million of which $45 million

expires on or before 2021 and the balance will carry forward

indefinitely
In addition at December 31 2011 and 2010 the

Company had U.S capital loss carryforwards of $90 million

which were acquired in the BGI Transaction and will expire on

or before 2013

At December31 2011 and 2010 the Company had $95 million

and $78 million of valuation allowances for deferred income

tax assets respectively recorded on the consolidated state

ments offinancial condition The year-over-year increase in

the valuation allowance primarily
related to certain foreign

deferred income tax assets

Goodwill recorded in connection with the Quellos Transaction

has been reduced during the period by the amount of tax

benefit realized from tax-deductible goodwill See Note

Goodwill forfurther discussion

Current income taxes are recorded net in the consolidated

statements of financial condition when related to the same

tax jurisdiction As of December 31 2011 the Company had

current income taxes receivable and payable of $108 million

and $102 million respectively recorded in other assets and

accounts payable and accrued liabilities respectively As of

December 31 2010 the Company had current income taxes

receivable and payable of $57 million and $157 million

respectively recorded in other assets and accounts payable

and accrued liabilities respectively

The Company does not provide deferred taxes on the excess

of the financial reporting over tax basis on its investments in

foreign subsidiaries that are essentially permanent in dura

tion The excess totaled $1516 million and $1297 million as of

December31 2011 and 2010 respectively The determination

of the additional deferred income taxes on the excess has not

been provided because it IS not practicable due to the com

plexities associated with its hypothetical calculation
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The followingtabuLar reconciliation presents the total amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits

Yearended December31

Dolloromountsinmillions 2011 2010 2009

BalanceatJanuaryl $307 $285 $114

Additions for tax positions of prioryears 22 10 11

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 17
Additions based on tax positions related to current year 46 35 63

Lapse of statute of limitations

Settlements 25
Foreign exchange translation

Positions assumed in BGI Transaction 117

Balance at December31 $349 $307 $285

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at

December31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively are $226

million $194 million and $184 million of tax benefits that if

recognized would affect the effective tax rate

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to

income tax matters as component of income tax expense

Related to the unrecognized tax benefits noted above the

Company accrued interest and penalties of $10 million during

2011 and in total as of December 31 2011 had recognized

liability
for interest and penalties of $66 million The Company

accrued interest and penalties of $8 million during 2010 and in

total as of December 31 2010 bad recognized liabiLityfor

interest and penalties of $56 million During 2009 the Company

accrued interest and penalties of$8 million and in total as of

December 31 2009 has recognized aliabilityfor interest and

penalties of $48 million of which $28 million was assumed in

the 801 Transaction Pursuant to the Amended and Restated

Stock PurchaseAgreement the Company has been indemni

fied by Barclays for $69 million of unrecognized tax benefits

BlackRock is subject to U.S federal income tax state and local

income tax and foreign income tax in multiple jurisdictions

Tax years after 2007 remain open to U.S federal income tax

examination tax years after 2002 remain open to state and

local income tax examination and tax years after 2006 remain

open to income tax examination in the United Kingdom With

few exceptions as of December31 2011 the Company is no

longer subjectto U.S federal state Local orforeign examina

tions by tax authorities foryears before 2003

The Internal Revenue Service IRS compLeted its examina

tion of BlackRocks 2006 and 2007 tax years in March 2011

In November 2011 the IRS commenced its examination of

BLackRocks 2008 and 2009 tax years and while the impact on

the Companys consolidated financial statements is undeter

mined it is not expected to be material

In July 2011 the IRS commenced its federaL income tax audit

of the BGI group which BlackRock acquired in December

2009 The tax years under examination are 2007 through

December 12009 and while the impact on the Companys

consolidated financial statements is undetermined it is not

expected to be material

The Company is currently under audit in several state and

local jurisdictions The significant state and local income tax

examinations are in New York State and City for tax years 2006

through 2008 and New Jersey for tax years 2003 through

2009 No state and local income tax aLidits cover years earlier

than 2006 except for New Jersey No state and local income

tax audits are expected to result in an assessment material to

BlackRocks consolidated financial statements

In December 2009 Her Majestys Revenue and Customs

HMRC commenced its U.K income tax audit of BlackRocks

2007 through 2010 tax years While the impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements is undeter

mined it is not expected to be material

As of December31 2011 it is reasonably possible the total

amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will increase or

decrease within the next 12 months due to completion of tax

authorities exams or the expiration of statues of limitations

Management estimates that the
existing liability

for uncertain

tax positions could decrease by approximately $35 million to

$50 million within the next 12 months The Company does not

anticipate that any possible adjustments resulting from these

audits would result ins material change to its consolidated

financial statements
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20 Earnings Per Share

The followingtable sets forth the computation of basic EPS

Common share dividends

Net income attributable to common shares

Weighted-average shares outstanding

Basic earnings per share attributable to BlackRock

common stockholders ____________

The following table sets forth the computation of diluted EPS

Yearended December31

Dollar amounts in millions except per share doto 2011 2010 2009

Net income attributable to BlackRock $2337 $2063 $875

Less

Dividends distributed to common shares 1004 764 41

Dividends distributed to participating RSU5 10 12 10

Undistributed net income attributable to BlackPock 1323 1287 453

Percentage of undistributed net income aLlocated to

common shares 99i% 98.6% 97.3%

Undistributed net income allocated to common shares 1311 1269 441

Plus

Common share dividends 1004 764 412

Net income attributable to common shares $2315 $2033 $853

Weighted-average shares outstanding 184265367 190554510 136669164

Dilutive effect of

2139100 1008.682 682412

687192 742805 837158

24751 386050 1.292715

187116410 192692047 139481449

Non-participating PSU5

Stack options

Convertible debt

Total diluted weighted-average shares outstanding

Dilutive earnings per share attributable to BlackRack

common stockholders

lal
Aliocatien to common shareheiders is based on the tetai of common and patticinatirig security sharehoidero which represent urreested RSUs that contain nonforfeitabie rights to dioidetdol For the

years eitded December 3t 20t1 2010 arid 2000 aeetageoetstanditg participating secirtities were t.8 million 2.8 million and 3.8 million tespectieely

Due to the similarities in terms between BlackPook nan-voting

participating preferred stock and the Companys common

stack the Campany considers participating preferred stock

to bee common stack equivalent for purposes of EPS calcula

tions As such the Company has incLuded the outstanding

non-voting participating preferred stack in the calculation of

average basic and diluted shares autstanding

Far the years ended December 312011 and 2010 5125 and

1198856 RSU5 respectively were excluded fram the calcula

tion of diluted EPS because to include them would have an

anti-dilutive effect Far the year ended December31 2009

1240998 stack options were excluded from the calculation

of diluted earnings per share because to include them would

have an anti-dilutive effect

Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions except per share data 2011 2010 2009

Net income attributable to BlackRock $2337 $2063 $875

Less

Dividends distributed to common shares 1004 764 412

Dividends distributed ta participating PSU5 10 12 10

Undistributed net income attributable to BleckRack 1323 1287 453

Percentage of undistributed net incame allocated to

common sharesw 99.1% 98.6% 97.3%

Undistributed net income allocated to common shares 1311 1269 441

Plus

1004 764 412

$2315 $2033 $853

184265367 190554510 136669164

$12.56 $10.67 $6.24

$12.37 $10.55 $6.11



21 Segment Information

The following table illustrates investment advisory administra

tion fees securities lending revenue and performance fees

BlockRock Solutions and advisory distribution fees and other

revenuefortheyearsended December31 2011 2ClOand 2009

The following table illustrates the Companys total revenue for the years ended December 2011 2010 and 2009 by geographic

region These amounts are aggregated on legal entity
basis and do not necessarily reflect where the customer resides

Dollor amounts in millions

Revenue 2011 2010 2009

Americas $6064 $5824 $3309

Europe 2517 2300 1179

Asia-Pacific 500 488 212

Total revenue $9081 $8512 $4700

The following table illustrates the Companys long-lived assets including goodwill and property and equipment at December31

2011 2010 and 2009 by geographic region These amounts are aggregated on legal entity basis and do not necessarily reflect

where the asset is physically located

Dollar amounts in millions

Long-livedAssets 2011 2010 2009

Americas $13133 $13092 $1 2983

Europe 123 42 48

Asia-Pacific 73 99 94

Totallong-livedassets $13329 $13233 $13123

Americas primarily is comprised of the United States Canada Brazil and Mexico while Europe primarily is comprised of the

United Kingdom Asia-Pacific primarily is comprised of Japan Australia and Hong Kong

The Companys management directs BlackRocks operations

as one business the asset management business As such

the Company believes it operates in one business segment in

accordance with ASC 280-10

Year ended December31

Dollor omounts in millions 2011 2010 2009

Equity $4447 $4055 $1468

Fixed income 1659 1531 921

Multi-assetclass 914 773 499

Alternatives 864 961 515

Cash management 383 510 625

Total investment advisory administration fees

securities lending revenue and performance fees 8267 7830 4028

BlockRock Solutions and advisory 510 460 477

Distributionfees 100 116 100

Other revenue 204 206 95

Total revenue $9081 $8512 $4700
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22 Selected Quarterly Financial Data unaudited

The fourth quarter 2011 included $32 million of pretax

restructuring charges while third quarter 2011 included

$63 million of pretax U.K lease exit costs related to the

Companys exit from two London locations

The fourth quarter 2011 included $20 million non-cash

tax benefit primarily due to tax legislation enacted in Japan

while the third quarter 2011 included $129 million non-

cash tax benefit due to tax legislation enacted in the United

Kingdom and state tax election

23 Subsequent Events

Claymore Investments Inc

In January 2012 BlackRock announced that it has agreed

to acquire Toronto-based Claymore Investments Inc

Claymore subject to customary closing conditions

Claymore is wholly owned independent Canadian subsid

iary of Guggenheim Funds Services Group subsidiary of

Guggenheim Partners LLC The total consideration estimated

to be paid at closing will be approximately $210 million

The second quarter 2011 included $52 million non-cash

tax benefit due to enacted state legislation

The third quarter of 2010 included $30 million non-cash

tax benefit associated with tax legislation enacted in the

United Kingdom

The first second and third quarters of 2010 included $52

million $32 million and $6 million of pretax BGI integration

costs respectively

Additional Subsequent Eve nt Review

In addition to the subsequent events included in the notes to

the consolidated financial statements the Company conducted

review for additional subsequent events and determined

that no additional subsequent events had occurred that would

require accrual or additional disclosures

Dollar omounts in millions except per shore data

2011 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenue $2282 $2347 $2225 $2227

Operating income $798 $866 $777 $808

Net income $564 $622 $570 $583

Net income attributable to BlackRock $568 $619 $595 $555

Earnings per share attributable to

BlackRock Inc common stockholders

Basic $2.92 $3.26 $3.28 $3.10

Diluted $2.89 $3.21 $3.23 $3.05

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 191797365 187870001 179034837 178562187

Diluted 194296504 190579963 81825329 181987669

Dividend declared per share $1.375 $1.375 $1.375 $1.375

Common stock price per share

High $209.77 $207.42 $199.10 $179.77

Low $179.52 $183.51 $140.22 $137.00

Close $201.01 $191.81 $148.01 $178.24

2010 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenue $1995 $2032 $2092 $2493

Operating income $654 $697 $707 $940

Net income $428 $389 $584 $649

Net income attributable to BlackRock $423 $432 $551 $657

Earnings per share attributable to

BlackRock Inc common stockholders

Basic $2.20 $2.23 $2.85 $3.39

Diluted $2.17 $2.21 $2.83 $3.35

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 189676023 190975161 190494905 191057374

Diluted 1921 52251 192569.539 192.326841 193478460

Dividend declared per share $1.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00

Common stock
price per share

High $243.80 $21 2.27 $1 72.87 $1 93.74

Low $200.56 $143.01 $138.42 $161.53

Close $217.76 $143.40 $170.25 $190.58
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IMPORTANT NOTES

Opinions

Opinions expressed through page 25 are those of BlackRock

Inc as of March 2012 and are subject to change

BGI Transaction

On December 12009 BlackRock acquired from

Barclays Bank PLC all of the outstanding equity interests of

subsidiaries of Barclays conductingthe business of Barclays

Global Investors BGI the BGI Transaction

Adjusted and As Adjusted ResuLts

Diluted earnings per share operating income operating mar

gin operati rig cash flow and net income are presented on an

as adjusted basis See pages 28-30 for Explanation of Use of

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Other Revenue

On page Other Revenue includes BlackRock Solutions and

advisory Cash management base fees Investment advisory

performance fees Distribution fees and Other revenue

Operating Margin Peer Average

Source SNL as of December31 2011 Market-cap weighted

peer average includes BEN VZ TROW LM AMG Fil EV

WDR JNS CLMS CNS GBL and PZN

Performance Data

Past performance is not indicative of future results

The performance information shown is based on preliminar

ily
available data The performance information for

actively

managed accounts reflects U.S open-end and closed

end mutual funds and similar EMEA-based products with

respect to peer median comparisons and actively managed

institutional and high net worth separate accounts and funds

located globally with respect to benchmark comparisons

as determined using objectively based internal parameters

using the most current verified information available as of

December31 2011

Accountsterminated priorto December31 2011 are

not included In addition accounts that have not been veri

fied as of January 30 2012 have not been included If such

terminated and other accounts had been included the

performance information may have differed substantially

from that shown The performance information does not

include funds or accounts that are not measured against

benchmark any benchmark-based alternatives product

private equity products CDO5 or liquidation accounts man

aged by BlackRocks FMA group Comparisons are based on

gross-of-fee performance for U.S retail institutional and high

net worth separate accounts end EMEA institutional separate

accounts and net-of-fee performance for EMEA based retail

products The performance tracking information for institu

tional index accounts is based engross-of-fee performance

as of December 31 2011and includes all institutional ac

counts and all iShores funds globally using an index strategy

AUM information is based on AUM for each account or fund

in the asset class shown without adjustment for overlapping

management of the same account or fund as of December31

2011 The information reported may differ slightlyfrom that

reported previously due to the increased number of accounts

that have been verified since the last performance disclosure

BlackRock does not consider these differences to be material

The source of performance information and peer medians

is BlackRock and is based in part on data from Lipper Inc

for U.S funds and Morningstar Inc for non-U.S funds

Fund performance reflects the reinvestment of dividends and

distributions but does not reflect sales charges SP 500

Index is widely recognized unmanaged index of common

stock prices of industrial utility transportation and financial

companies in U.S markets

Barclays Capital U.S Aggregate Index is an unmanaged index

considered representative of the U.S investment-grade fixed

rate bond market

Net New Business and Net InfLows

Unless stated otherwise 2011 net new business and net

inflows figures are before giving effectto total of $28.3 bil

lion in BGI merger-related outflows These outflows reflect

manager concentration considerations prior to third quarter

2011 and outflows from scientific active equity performance

prior to second quarter 2011 BGI merger-related outflows

totaled $121.0 billion in 2010 and $2.9 billion in 2009.Total

merger-related outf lows since the December 2009 BGI

transaction represent less than 9% of acquired assets under

management

Market Share of U.S Long-Term Mutual Fund

Flows

Source SimFund as of December 31 2011 Data is for U.S

long-term open-end mutual funds and excludes ETF5 and

funds of funds

BLackRock Data Points

Debt ratings AUM ETP5 offered number of countries and

employee data as of December 31 2011 All other data reflect

full-year 2011 results unless otherwise noted BLKT0taI

Return Performance vs Peers Source SNL Ref lects full

year 2011 results and assumes reinvestment of all dividends

Market-cap weighted peer average includes BEN IVZ TROW

LMAMG Fli EV WDRJNS CL MS CN GBLand PZN

122



COMMON STOCK NFORMATION

Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrants Common Equity and Reated

Stockhoder Matters

BlackRocks common stock is Listed on the NYSE and is traded underthe symbol BLK Atthe close of business on March 15

2012 there were 372 common stockholders of record

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low reported sale prices period-end closing prices for the

common stock and dividends declared per share for the common stock as reported on the NYSE

BlackRocks closing common stock price as of February 27 2012 was $197.71

Dividends

On February 23 2012 the Board of Directors approved BlackRocks quarterly dividend of $1.50 to be paid on March 23 2012 to

stockholders of record on March 2012

BarcLays and PNC and their respective affiliates along with other institutional investors that hold non-voting participating preferred

stock receive dividends on these shares which are equivalent to the dividends received by common stockholders

Common Stock Price Ranges Closing

Price_____ gh Low

2011

First Quarter $209.77 $179.52 $201.01 $1.375

Second Quarter $207.42 $183.51 $191.81 $1.375

Third Quarter $199.10 $140.22 $148.01 $1.375

Fourth Quarter $179.77 $137.00 $178.24 $1 .375

2010

Cash

Dividend

Declared

FirstQuarter $243.80 $200.56 $217.76 $1.00

Second Quarter $21 2.27 $143.01 $143.40 $1.00

Third Quarter $1 72.87 $1 38.42 $1 70.25 $1.00

Fourth Quarter $193.74 $161.53 $190.58 $1.00
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COMMON STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder

return on BlackRocks common stockfrom December 31 2006

through December 31 2011 with the cumulative total return

of the Russell 2000 Index Russell 2000 and the SNL Asset

Manager Index The graph assumes the investment of $100 in

common stock and in each of the two indices on

December 31 2006 and the reinvestmentof all dividends if any

The following information has been obtained from sources be

lieved to be reliable but neither its accuracy nor its complete

ness is guaranteed The performance graph is not necessarily

indicative of future investment performance

Period Ending

Index 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11

BlackRock Inc 00.00 145.10 91.44 161.56 35.78 130.88

SNLAsset Manager 100.00 113.83 54.10 87.76 101.02 87.38

Russell 2000 100.00 98.43 65.18 82.89 105.14 100.75

The SNL Asset Manager index currentip corsprrses the totowing compannes Atttniated Managers Group inc AtianceBernstein Roiding Apoto Gisbai Mgrnt Artio Giobai investors inc

Etiackflock irrc Biackstooe Group LP Brookfieid Asset Mgrnt inc Caiamos Asset Mgmt inc Cohen Steers inc Diamond dliii investment Grsup Eases Vance Corp Epoch Raiding Corp Federated

investors inc Financiai Engines icc Fortress inoestnnest Gnoup Fraskils Resources isc GAMCO investors inc Hesniessy Adaisors mc irruesco Ltd Jasus Capitai Grasp isc KKR Cs LP

Legg Mason inc Mansing Napier Och-Zitt Capitai Mgrnt Grasp Pzsria isseotment Mgmt inc SEi isventnrests Co Rowe Price Group inc U.S Giobai investors inc Vaiue Line hic Vintus

iriaestrsest Partsers Waddet Reed Fisanciai isc Weatwood Hoidisgs Group isc WisdsmTreo ioaestrsests inc
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
tile Chief Executive Officer of the Company certifyingthat

BlackRock Inc he is not aware of any violation bythe Company of NewYork

55 East 52nd Street Stock Exchange corporate governance listing
standards

New York NY 10055

21 2810-5300
InquirieS

BlackRock will provide free of charge to each stockholder

Stock Listing upon written request copy of BlackRock AnnuaL Report to

BlackRock Inc.s common stock is traded on the New Stockholders Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly

York Stock Exchange underthe symbol BLK Atthe close Reports on Form 10-0 Current Reports on Form 8-K Proxy

of business on March 15 2012 there were 372 common Statement and Form of Proxy and aLl amendments to those

stockholders of record reports Requests for copies should be addressed to Investor

Relations BlackRock Inc 55 East 52nd Street NewYork NY

Internet Information 10055 Requests may also be directed to 212 810-5300 or via

Information on BLsckRocks financial results and its products e-mailto invrel@ibIackrock.com Copies may also be accessed

and services is available on the Internet atwww.blackrock.com electronically stthe SEC home page ontne Internet at

www.sec.gOv Stockholders and analysts should contact

Financial Information Investor Relations at 212 810-5300 or via e-mailat

BlackRock makes available free of charge through its
invrelMblackrock.cOm

website at www.blackrock.com underthe heading Investor
Dividend Policy

Relations its Annual Report to Stockholders Annual

Peporton Form 10-K Quarterly Reports orr Form 10-0 The declaration of and payment of dividends by BlackRock

Current Reports on Form 8-K its Proxy Statement and Form are subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors

of Proxy and all amendments to those reports as soon On February 23 2012 the Board of Directors approved

reasonably practicable after such material is electronically
dividend of $1.50 per share which was paid on March 23

filed with orfurniahed to the Securities and Exchange 2012 to stockholders oh record as of March 72012

Commission The Company has included as Exhibit 31 to

its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
Registrar and TransferAgent

December31 2011 with the Securities and Exchange Compotershare

Commission certificates of the Chief Executive Officer and 480 Washington Boulevard

Chief Financial Officer of the Company certifyingthe quality Jersey City NJ 07310-1900

of the Companys public disclosure and the Company has 800 903-8567

submitted to the New York Stotk Exchanges certificate of

BLACKROCK OFFICES WORLDWIDE

BlackRock has offices AMERICAS EMEA ASIA-PACIFIC

in 27 coLjntriea and

major presence ii
Atlanta GA Phoenix AZ Amsterdam Beijing

key global markets
Baltimore MD Pittsburgh PA Brussels Briabane

intluding the Americas
Bloonnfield Hills MI Princeton NJ Copenhagen Gurgaon

Europe the Middle
Boston MA Rs.ncho Cordovs CA Douglas Hong Kong

East and Africa vnd
Charlotte NC San Francisco CA Dubai Melbourne

Asia-Pacific
Chicago IL Santiago Chile Dublin Singapore

Dallas TX Sub Paulo Brazil Edinburgh Seoul

Durhara NC Seattle WA Frankfurt Sydney

East Wenstchee WA St Louis MO Geneva Taipei

HoustonTX Tampa FL London Tokyo

Jacksonville FL Toronto Canada Luxembourg

Jersey City NJ Washington D.C Madrid

La Jolla CA Wilmington 08 Milan

Los Angeles CA Munich

Mexico City Mexico Paris

Minneapolis MN Peteroorough

Miami FL St Heier

Montrevl Ca n.ada
Stockholm

Nework Vienna

Ne port Beach CA

RaIm Be.vch FL Zurich

Phiia.de.lphia PA
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